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December 9, 2008

To: Mayor and City Council

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

In our ongoing efforts to provide more comprehensive financial information regarding the City,
the Administrative Services Department has now completed its twenty-first Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.

The report contains critical financial information regarding the City's activities over the past
year. The report of Wisan, Smith, Racker & Prescott, LLP resulting from their annual
independent audit are included as a part of this annual report. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the City.

We believe that the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and fairly sets forth
the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial
activities of its various funds. Disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City's financial affairs have also been included.

The City concluded the year ended June 30, 2008, in sound ﬁnanc1a1 condition. The following is
an overview of the City’s financial condition.
Operating Revenues *

Similar to State government and other cities’ trends, major tax revenues began to decrease

during the fiscal year. Consequently, revenue projections for FY 09 were very conservative
and caution was exercised in the development of the budget. The revenues for capital projects
were reduced to avoid reductions in ongoing operational programs.

Revenues for the water, water reclamation and storm water funds have provided a reasonable
level of revenue in each of these areas to support both the operational and capital needs for
these three critical services.

Revenues for other service areas such as residential solid waste collection, recreation
programs, and street lighting are stable.

Expenditures
The City’s infrastructure is in good condition. There were savings in the personnel and

operational accounts of the City.

Within the last year, several significant capital projects were completed and several other
projects are underway:

e New streetlights have been constructed throughout the entire community and
streetlights are being installed in all the city parks.

-1-

56 NORTH STATE STREET OREM. UTAH 84057 (801] 229-7037 FAX (801) 229-7031



A new 20 million gallon water tank was completed and put into use in a joint venture
between the City of Orem and the Central Utah Water Conservancy District.
Construction was completed on numerous voter-approved street projects.

Fire Station #1 was remodeled to provide improved seismic construction and to
provide improved living quarters in the 30 year-old facility.

The 30 year-old portion of the Library was remodeledito improve the seismic systems,
heating and air conditioning, lighting and overall appearance of the facility.

Traffic signals were added at seven intersections.

A new Cemetery building was completed. The Cemetery lawn sprinkling system is
being improved.

Remodeling of Fire Station #2is nearly complete.

Additional Capital Funding is Needed:

To construct a new fire station to serve the growing population west of Interstate 15
was included in the FY 09 Budget, but was put on hold due to reduced revenues.

To remedel the City Center and to provide office space for the City Attorney’s offices.
This will complete renovation of existing City facilities housing City services well into
the future.

To construct additional intersection signals and upgrade existing intersections with
double left turn lanes.

To install street lights in the portions of the City prewously served by special lighting
districts.

To purchase additional open space for parks.

To construct additional sidewalks.

For continued road maintenance.

To construct an urban trail system.

To purchase and install a radio-read water meter system.

These projects will be funded over the next several years as opportunities for one-time monies,
such as land sales, unant1c1pated revenue, grants, and other resources become available to the

city.

The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not have been
accomplished without the dedicated efforts of many individuals. In particular, the efforts of the
Administrative Services Department staff have brought us to the point of having upgraded
accounting and financial reporting systems which have improved the quality of information
being reported to you, State oversight boards, and the citizens of the City of Orem.

If you have questions regarding the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, please feel free to
discuss them with Richard Manning, Brandon Nelson or me.:

Yours truly,

Jim Reams

City Manager
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Jim Reams
City Manager ;

City of Orem, Utah

The State of Utah requires that all local governments publish, within six

-months of the close of each year, a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. This Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) of the City of Orem, Utah for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
is hereby submitted to you, in accordance with these requirements.

This year’s report has been prepared according to the guidelines set forth by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement 34. This report
consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of
Orem. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for completeness
and reliability of all information presented in this report. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established
an internal control framework that is designed to both protect the assets of the
City from loss, theft, or misuse and to allow for the compiling of sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the City's internal control procedures have been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. To the best of
management’s knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects. E'

Wisan, Smith, Racker & Prescott, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants, have audited the City of Orem’s financial statements. The goal of
the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the City of Orem for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are free
of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, i'based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City
of Orem’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are fairly
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|i
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Generally accepted accountlng principles require that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
cornjunction with it.

Economic Condition and Outllook

The City of Orem is located in north central Utah and 18 currently the sixth
largest city in the state with a 2000 census population of 84,324 and an
estimated current population of 93,090. Utah Valley Umversﬂ:y (UVUD) is a
major employer in the City with student enrollment in excess of 23,000. UVU
became a university on July 1, 2008. With the change comes the addition of
masters programs, a new state of the art library/digital learning center and the
increased benefits that a university brings to any c1ty

The City has been involved in active economic development over the past two
decades attracting stable industries and organizations. This economic
development activity has directly led to the creation of approximately 7,000 non-
retail jobs and thousands of retail jobs. The University Mall is the anchor to the
largest retail area between Salt Lake County and Clark County, Nevada. The
Mall has been revitalized through a major remodeling project which attracted
several large national retailers like Costco, Nordstrom’s and Macy’s. The City,
like the rest of the country is in the midst of economi¢ uncertainty brought on by
the housing/credit crisis and has experienced a marked decline in sales tax
revenues. However, the City is cautiously optmnstlc that the Federal
government’s economic stimulus packages will result in a turn-around of the
economy.

Based on current projections, the population grdwth trend 1s expected to
continue for the next few vears. While having a positive impact, this growth
also presents challenges for the city. If the present level of services is to be
maintained, the City, in the future, will need to ‘continue to be diligent in
managing its resources.

While there have been significant increases in revenues to the City in recent
years, there has been a concerted effort to limit the growth of expenditures
related to operations and maintenance. Much of thejadditional revenue is being
used for one-time expenditures such as capital projects. Accordingly, the City is
well positioned to continue to provide municipal servmes even in the present soft
economy.



Major Initiatives

For the Year
During the year, the City identified several projects needed to benefit the
citizens and businesses of the community. These progects mcluded, but were not
limited to the following: ;
o Completion or significant progress on c1ty wide road projects and
other voter-approved road projects, including Sandhill Road
e Completion of missing sidewalk sections .along all roads within 1/3
mile of each public school
¢ Installation of street lights in many city parks
¢ Completion of a new 20 million gallon water tank through a joint
venture with the Central Utah Water Conservancy District
» Remodeling of Fire Station #2 is nearly complete

The current master plans for the water, water reclamatlon storm sewer, and
road systems are bemg implemented.

For the Future

The City faces many challenges in the future, the most significant of which are:

Continued road maintenance

Completion of the storm sewer system

City Center renovation

Construction and staffing of a new fire statlon
Treatment Plant expansion

Completion of the City-wide sidewalk system

Cash Management i

The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (MM
Act) in handling its depository and temporary investment transactions. This
law requires the depositing of C1ty funds in a qualified depository. The MM Act
defines qualified depository as “any financial institution whose deposits are
insured by an agency of the Federal government and' which has been certified by
the Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the
Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council.” The
MM Act also defines the types of securities allowed as appropriate temporary
investments for the City and the conditions for making investment transactions.
Allowable investments may consist of time certificates of deposit, repurchase
agreements, commercial paper which is rated P-1 by Moodys Investor Services
or A-1 by Standard and Poors Inc., banker's acceptances, obligations of the
United States Treasury and various other obligations of state and local
governments. Investment transactions are to be conducted through qualified
depositories or primary reporting dealers. The provisions of this act
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substantially protect the City from loss of investment principal; therefore, the
City's investments are not collateralized and are not required to be
collateralized by state law. The City has never lost ‘any invested funds.

The law requires all securities to be delivered versus payment to the Treasurer’s
safekeeping bank. It also requires diversification of investments. The City is
currently complying with all of the provisions of the MM Act for all City
operating funds. Significant portions of the City’sifunds are invested in the
Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF). All deposits are held either
by the City, its agent or a financial institution’s trust department in the City's
name.

Risk Management

The City provides for its general hability risks through a joint protection
agreement with the Utah Risk Management Mutual Association (URMMA)
URMMA provides for the City's lawful liabilities resultmg from bodily injury,
property damage, personal injury and/or public official's errors and omissions
limited to $6,000,000 per occurrence. The City maintains a Self-insurance Fund
to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under this program, the
Self-insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $400,000 for
each worker's compensation claim, $15,000 for general liability, and $10,000 for
property damage. Additional coverage for forgery, embezzlement and other
potential internal losses is provided by commercial policies and is renewed
annually. The City maintains a risk management office, which identifies areas
of potential risk and provides training in risk avoidance and solutions to current
risk concerns.

Other Information \f

Internal Audlts |

In 2005, the City Manager and Executive Staff contracted with Peterson, Allred
and Jackson CPAs for internal audit services on a quarterly basis. It was
believed that improvements to the City’s financial|processes and procedures
could be more readily identified by a third-party. These internal audits have
continued into calendar year 2008. The internal 'auditors have focused on
particular procedures within the City. Over the past three years they have
focused on cash handling, fixed asset verification, credit card usage, liability
accounts procedures, and travel authorizations processing. These audits have
helped City staff to improve processes in each of the above mentionéd areas.

Awards i
The Government Finance Officers Association of the iiUnited States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007. This was the twentieth year that the City has
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received this prestigious award. In order to be lawarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report, the contents of which conform to
program standards. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and appllcable legal requirements. :

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to conform to
the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it
to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another ‘pertiﬁcate.

Acknowledgments

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished
without the efficient and dedicated services of, the entire staff of the
Administrative Services Department. I would like tolexpress my appreciation to
all members of the department who assisted and contributed to its preparation
and to our auditors, Wisan, Smith, Racker & Prescott, LLP for their cooperation.
I would also like to thank the Mayor and City Council for their interest and
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a
responsible and progressive manner. ;

Respectfully submitted,
HANE Yoo

Richard B. Manni.ng
Administrative Services Director
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
-1n Financial
Reporting

City of Orem
Utah

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2007

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting,

President

Gy

‘Executive Director

-11-



Each year the City selects a
department to highlight its
efforts and accomplish-
ments. In 2008, Develop-
ment Services has hean

selected.

Development
Services
+ Building Safety
« Engineering

s Planning

‘Building Safety
"¢ Building Permits

0 - Plan Review

4+ Building Inspections

Commercial Plans Examiner,

Jim Yeoman and Building
Inspector, Curl Davis

Department Focus 2008

‘City-o'f' Orem

‘Development Se'_r"v;ic'es Department 2008:

- Department Focus

Development Services Department 2008

The City of Orem Development Services Depart-
ment is responsible for providing those services
that facilitate development within the City. The
department is divided into three divisions: Build-
ing Safety, Engineering, and Planning.

This year, the department has been involved in
numerous projects starting from the design stages
to the initial plan review and through the final
stages of construction .

In March, Development Services received an A+
rating in office/industrial development from Utah
Chapters of the National Association of Industrial
and Office Properties and the Society of Industrial
and Office Realtors.

Development Services also provides the support
staff for the Planning Commission, Historical
Preservation Commission, Board of Adjustment
and the Board of Appeals.

800 East Reconstruction Project

Building Safety Division

The Building Safety Division is responsible for enforcing adopted building codes and stan-
dards to protect the life and property of those who work, live, and visit the City of Orem.

This division issues permits, approves residential and commercial plans, and performs
progress inspections for all new construction, additions, remodeling, fences, retaining
walls, swimming pools, etc.

All residential and commercial plans are examined for structural integrity according to the
International Building codes. The plans are approved when they have been examined for
safety and code compliance.

Building inspectors make routine and scheduled inspections during each phase of con-
struction. The inspectors conduct business license inspections and abate dangerous build-
ings and structures. In addition to these duties, they serve as staff advisors to the Board of
Building and Fire Code Appeals.
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Development Services Department 2008: DeparmlentéPucus

Neorthgate Condominiums
837 North 900 West

Engineering Division

+ Construction
Management

+ Design

+ Private Development

¢+ Transportation

800 East Water Line
and Road Qverlay

Building Safety 2008 Highlights

+ Conducted 6,143 building-safety inspections with 768 of those completed the same
day of request; 5,357 completed within 24 hours of request; and 18 completed within
48 hours of request

¢ Issued 1,242 building permits, including 72 new houses, 142 condominiums, 100
apartment units and 20 new commercial buildings

-

Engineering Division

The Engineering Division is comprised of four sections under the
management of the City Engineer: Construction Management, De-
sign, Private Development, and Transportation. The Division has 5
professional engineers, 4 professional land surveyors, 3 associate
engineers and 2 planners.

Construction Management: Orem currently has five construction
managers who inspect and manage all new public works type of
construction in the City. The construction managers supervise Orem
Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) for all new sewer, water, storm
drain, fiber optic, concrete, and asphalt construction. They also su-
pervise Private Development projects adding new infrastructure to
the City.

Design: The Design Section is responsible for the design and survey- &
ing of CIP, right-of-way acquisition, and property issues for the City. @
The Design Engineers produce plans and specifications for projects (g
such as: Storm Drain, Sanitary Sewer, Culinary Water, Parks and
Landscaping, Streets, and City Buildings. They are currently in the
process of updating the City's storm drain, sewer, and water master
plans.

Private Development: Private development issues are managed
through Orem's Development Review Committee (DRC) and the
private development team. Nearly 40% of their time is spent work-
ing directly with the customer, whether it is the developer, engineer,
contractor, or the general public.

Transportation: Engineers are continually involved with transportation studies on many
levels and often involve other entities throughout the City of Orem. This section plans,
coordinates, and improves the intersections, local roads, and regionally significant roads.
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Department Focus 2008

Engineering 2008 Highlights

¢ Completedatotalof 7.5 ¢ Completed site plan Completed 400 North
million dollars worth of engineering for Fire Water Main, 500 East
CIP projects Station #4 Water Line, and 800 East

¢ Completed Sandhill ¢+ Helped coordinate utili- Water Line
Road Construction ties and installation for Coordinated with UDOT

\ ) . 800 North in the 1-15 Reconstruc-

+ Coordinated with resi- fion Corridor Planning

dents on Orchard Es- ¢+ Completed street over-

tates for new fence
along 400 East

lays and reconstruction
for 2008

Processed large private
utility requests from

Questar and Qwest
Planning Division

The Planning Division includes four planners, all of whom are certified by the Ameri-
can Institute of Certified Planners. This Division’s responsibilities include reviewing
residential, commercial, and industrial developments; site plans; zoning and subdivi-
sion requests; ensures zoning compliance on all building permits; and works closely
with the Development Review Committee (DRC), Planning Commission, Board of Ad-
justment, Historical Commission, and City Council.

The Development Review Committee {DRC), chaired by the Planning Division Man-
ager, consists of key personnel from Development Services and other City departments
who ensure compliance with all applicable City codes. The DRC reviews all requests
requiring city approval and makes recommendations to the Planning Commission on
items such as preliminary plats, final plats, site plans, conditional use permits, xezones,
general plan amendments, annexations, and city boundary adjustments.

The Planning Commission is composed of seven citizens appointed by the City man-
ager for a four year term. The Commission reviews and acts on most items recom-
mended by the DRC. Over the past ten years the Planning Commission acted on an
average of 157 items per year.

Using Geographic Information Systems technology, the Planning Division has devel-
oped a database that tracks progress on all development projects in Orem. This data-
base is updated daily by the planners who make sure the data base is current, accurate,
and available on the City’s web page.

Planning 2008 Highlights

¢ Processed 232 DRC applications; The Planning Commission reviewed /approved
117 of these applications and the City Council reviewed /approved 31 of them

¢ Of the 232 DRC applications, 26% were site plans, 38% were subdivisions, and 14%
pertained to Ordinance Amendments

+ Oversaw the development process for major projects throughout Orem including:
Sleepy Ridge Golf Course clubhouse, Northgate/ Tuscan Villas PUD/ Milano Vil-
lage, University Mall Theaters and retail village, Fire Station #2, Kohl’s remodel of
the former Fred Meyer building, Timpanogos Regional Hospital Addition , Telos
Residential facility, etc.

-14-
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WISAN, SITIL, RACKER s PRESCUTTwr

CERTI1IFIETD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Orem, Utah

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Orem, Utah (the City), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Orem, Utah, as of June 30, 2008,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the general fund, for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 4, 2008, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for
assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 17 through 31 is not a required part
of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied _certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Salt Lake City, Utah
December 4, 2008
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As management of the City of Orem, we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of
the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

e As of the end of the current fiscal year, the government-wide assets of
the City exceeded its liabilities by $209,953,522 (total net assets). Of
this amount, $36,273,116 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

o Total government-wide net assets consist of $168,978,941 in capital
assets net of related debt and $40,974,581 in other net assets.

o Ag of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $26,148,141. Of this
amount, $21,446,676 (82.02%) is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance) with the balance of
$4,701,465 reserved for capital projects, debt service, and prepaid
expenditures.

s As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s enterprise funds
reported an increase In net assets of $3,479,166 compared to the prior
year's increase of $4,485402. The decrease was due primarily to
decreased contributions from developers of $2,618,280 reflecting the
decrease in residential and commercial construction. This decrease
was partially offset by a water fund net income increase over the prior
vear of $1,278,640. The increase was due primarily to an increase in
water rates averaging approximately 12%.

e« The City issued sales tax revenue refunding bonds in October of 2007
for $5,720,000 to replace a portion of the existing 2002 Series bonds.
This refunding took place in order to gain a more favorable interest
rate saving the City $205,550 in total debt service payments.

e The City issued water and storm sewer revenue honds in March of
2008 for $5,590,000 to be used to repair and improve the City’'s water
and storm sewer system.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction
to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements
comprise of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also includes other supplementary information in addition to the basie
financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers

with a broad overview of the City of Orem’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.
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e The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating. However, you will also need to consider
other non-financial factors.

e The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the
City’s net assets changed during the fiscal year reported. All changes
in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus
all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of
the City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City
include the general government, public safety, redevelopment, highways and
public improvements, parks, recreation and arts, and economic and physical
development. The business-type activities of the City include culinary water
distribution, water reclamation, storm sewer operations, recreation (fitness
center and outdoor pool), solid waste disposal, and street lighting.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself
(known as the primary government), but also a legally separate entity, the
Commission for Economic Development in Orem (CEDQ), for which the City
is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit 1s
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

» Governmental funds. These funds are used to account for essentially
the same functions reported as governmenial activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the

government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar

-18-



City of Orem
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains eleven individual governmental funds.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance
sheet and 1n the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and
Capital Projects fund, which are considered major funds of the City.
Data from the other nine governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

o  Proprietary funds. The City of Orem maintains two different types of
proprietary funds. FEnterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its
Water, Water Reclamation, Storm Sewer, Recreation, Solid Waste, and
Street Lighting activities. J[nternal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to
account for servicing its fleet of vehicles, for providing self-insurance,
and for procurement and warehousing. Because these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for
the Water, Water Reclamation, and Storm Sewer funds, which are
considered major funds of the City. The Recreation, Solid Waste, and
the Street Lighting funds are classified as nonmajor and are included
in the combining statements within this report. Conversely, the three
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual
fund data for the internal service funds are provide in the form of
combining statements within this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. As mentioned in the highlights section,
assets exceeded liabilities by $209,953,522 at June 30, 2008.

By far the largest portion of the City’'s net assets (80.48%) is its investment in
capital assets {e.g. land, buildings, improvements other than buildings,
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure assets) less any outstanding
debt related to the acquisition of those assets. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital
assets 1s reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Orem's Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current and other assets § 51,260,414 8 47,685,570 § 18,553,997 § 13,512,030 § 69814411 $ 61,197,600
Capital assets 162,846,732 159,875,200 71664090 68,226,067 234,510,822 228,102,366

Total assets 214,107,146 207,561,862 90,218,087 81,738,087 304,325,233 289,299.966
Long-term deht

outatanding 49,063,171 50,592,829 27,019,828 20,557,156 76,082 929 71,149,985
Other liabilities 15,648,117 11,528,602 2,640,535 4,102 443 18,288,712 15,531.045

Tatal liabilities 64,711,288 62,121,431 29,660,423 24,659.599 94 371,711 86,781,030
Net assets!
Invested in capital ussets,

net of related debt 117,130,313 114,171,270 51,848,628 52,823,374 168,978,941 166,994,644
Restricted 4,701,465 4,388,201 - - 4,701,465 4,388,201
Unrestrictad 27,564,080 26,880,967 8,709.036 4,255,124 36,273,116 31,136,081

Total net assets § 149395858 $ 145440438 § B0,357.664 § 5T,078498 $ 200953522  $ 202,518,936

A portion of the City of Orem’s net assets (2.24%) represent resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining
balance of unrestricted net assets ($36,273,116) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Street Lighting Fund was the only
fund reporting a deficit in unrestricted net assets ($380,471). This deficit was
created by timing differences between debt service payments on leases and
the implementation of fees assessed to property owners and will eventually
be eliminated when the debt is retired.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Orem 1is able to report
positive balances in all three categories of net assets, for the government as a
whole, as well as for its separate business-type activities. In the prior year,
the City of Orem was able to report positive balances in all three categories of
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net assets, for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities.

In comparing the current fiscal year to the prior fiscal year, the government’s
net assets, net of the prior period adjustment, increased by $7,434,586
(3.67%), total revenues decreased by $4,436,828 (4.89%) due in large part to
decreases in federal and state capital grants, and expenses increased by
$6,030,466 (8.16%). The following is a summary of the changes in net assets:

Revenues:

I'rogram Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and

Contributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions

General Revenues:
Sales Taxes
Property Taxes
Cther Taxes
Cther

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Public
Improvements
Parks. Recreation & Arts
Economic and Physical
Development
Redevelopment
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Water
Water Reclamation
Storm Sewer
Recreation
Solid Waste
Street Lighting
Totul Expenses
Inerease (Decrease) in Net
Asseta before Tranafers
Transfers ln (Out}
Incresse in Net Assets
Net Assets, Beginning -
As Previously Reported
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Assets, Beginning -
As Restated

Net Assets, Ending

City of Orem's Changes in Net Assets

B 145,440,438

21-

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$ 15858973 0§ 14785255 0§ 23193312 8§ 21449496 § 39,052,285 0§ 36,234751
1,438,884 §52,45¢ 248,000 1,438,584 1,100,452
4,127,289 5,800,844 426,500 2.677.880 5,053,789 8,478,724
20,618,891 21,330,290 20,615,891 21,330,290
9,082,809 9,538,706 9,082,992 9,538,706
8,405,861 8,003,203 . - 8,405,561 8,093,293
2,134,577 5,303,210 574,974 £97.655 2.700,551 6,000,865
G1,665,467 65,724,050 24 694,786 25,073,031 $6,360,253 90,797,081
15,187,762 14,331,656 15,187,762 14,331,656
19,481,181 17,855,027 19,491,191 17,855,927
8,646,549 6,574,954 8,646,549 6,574,954
8,416,719 7,904,959 9,416,719 7,504,955
2,096,573 2,000,244 2,096,573 3,000,244
593,283 1,189,544 593,283 1,189,544
2,217,525 2,263,478 - - 2,917,525 2,963,478
: - 8,388,226 7,431,471 8,388,236 7,431,471
5,982,610 5,894,276 5.982,610 5,894,276
2,004,281 1.725,747 2.004,281 1,725,747
1,617,587 1,567 468 1,617,587 1,367 468
3,014,707 2935318 3,014,707 2,955,318
: : 1,244 305 1,166,820 1,244,305 1,166,820
57,649,602 53,129,762 22,251,726 20,741,100 79,901,328 73,870,862
4015,865 12,594,288 2,443,060 4,331,931 6,458,985 16,526,219
(1,036, 106) (153,471) 1,036,106 158,471 - -
2,979,759 12,440,817 3,479,166 4,485,402 6,458 945 16,926,219
145,440,438 137,199,621 57.078,498 52,593,096 202,518,936 189,792,717
975,661 (4,200,000} - 975,661 {4,200,000)
146,416,099 132,999,621 57.078,49% 52,593,096 203,494,597 185,592,717
$ 149,395,858 § 60557664 § 57.078,498 & 200953522 § 202,518,935
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of
Orem’s net assets, net of the prior period adjustment, by $3,955,420 which
represents 53.20% of the total growth of net assets of the City of Orem.
Although the City increased its net assets in the current fiscal year, general
revenues decreased 9.13% and total expenses increased 8.51%. The increase
In net assets represents a 2.72% increase for the current year but is a
decrease of 52.00% when compared to the prior year’'s net asset change.

The following graph displays the governmental activities reflected in the
table “City of Orem’s Changes in Net Assets”. Note that the graph below
does not include general revenues of $40,240,321 because these revenues are
not specific to a particular department.

Program Expenses & Revenues - Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

525,000,000
B Expenses Revenues

520,000,000
$15,000,000
510,000,000
$5,000,000
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Key elements affecting the change in governmental activities net assets are
as follows:

» Total revenues decreased by $4,058,583 (6.18%).

¢ General revenues decreased by $4,045,178 (9.13%). This decrease is
due in large part to the prior fiscal year sale of the City’s public works
building and property which resulted in other revenue of
approximately $3,624,000. Property tax revenues decreased by
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51';5,7)14 (4.98%) and sales tax revenues decreased by $713,399

.34%).

o Total expenses increased by $4,519,840 (8.51%). This increase is
primarily due to increases in expenses for highways and public
improvements of $2,071,595 (31.51%), parks, recreation and arts of
$1,511,760 (19.12%), and public safety of $1,635,264 (9.16%). The
increase in highways and public improvements expenditures is due in
large part to the increase in road and sidewalk repair and maintenance
projects totaling $1,204,382 and an increase in depreciation expense of
$469,041 related to several large road reconstruction projects that
were completed. The increase in parks, recreation and arts is due
primarily to the first distribution to approved applicants of the
Cultural Arts & Recreation Enrichment (CARE} tax of $1,038,750.
The increase in public safety expenditures is due primarily to an
increase in personnel costs totaling $1,011,345 (7.01%).

The following graph displays the governmental activities revenues by source.
The information reflected in this graph comes from the “City of Orem’s
Changes in Net Assets” table previously shown.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

Property Taxes Sales Taxes
14.73% / 33.43%
= i ‘

Capital Grants
6.69%

Other Taxes
13.63%

Operating Grants
2.33%

Charges for Interest & Other
Services 3.46%
2572%

23



City of Orem
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net
assets by $3,479,166 which represents 46.80% of the total growth in net
assets of the City of Orem. Although the City increased its net assets in the
current fiscal year, total operating revenues decreased 1.51% and total
operating expenses increased 7.28%. The increase in net assets represents a
6.10% increase for the current year but i1s a decrease of 22.43% when
compared to the prior year’s net asset change. As of the end of the current
fiscal year, all of the City’s business-type funds reported positive net assets.

The following graph displays the business-tvpe activities for enterprise funds
reflected in the table “City of Orem’s Changes in Net Assets”.

Program Expenses & Revenues - Business-type Activities
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008
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Key elements affecting the change in business-type activities net assets are
as follows:

¢ Business-type activities reported decreased total revenues over the
prior year of $378,245 (1.51%). Total revenues increased or decreased
as follows:

o Water fund total operating

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities

revenues increased by For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

$1,670,616 or 21.81%, due G Invesmans
. : Contribulions Earnings

primarily to an average 2.3%

increase in the per meter
base rate of approximately
12% and an increase to the
per gallon used assessment of
10%. However, contributions
from developers decreased by
31,058,880 or 99.25% which
reflects the downward trend s
in residential and commercial o
construction. T i

o Water Reclamation fund contributions
decreased by $1,449,200 or 96.79%, due primarily to the
construction downturn that was previously mentioned.

o Recreation fund operating revenues increased by $136,436 or
9.39%, primarily due to an increase in fitness center annual
passes.

o Business-type activities reported an increase in total operating
expenses from the prior year of $1,510,626 or 7.28%. The increase 13
primarily due to an increase in water fund depreciation expense of
$535,643 or 57.41% which was due to several large capital projects
being completed early in the vear and overall personnel costs that
increased by $658,964 or 12.77% due to annual salary increases and an
increase in health benefit costs of approximately 8%.

The graph above displays the business-type activities revenues by source.

The information reflected in this graph comes from the “City of Orem’s
Changes in Net Assets” table previously shown.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Orem uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of government’s net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $26,148,141. Of this total
amount, $21,446,676 (82.02%) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is
available for spending at the government’'s discretion. The remaining fund
balance of $4,701,465 1s reserved to indicate that it 1s not available for new
spending because it has already been committed to pay debt service or a
variety of other restricted purposes.

The General fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the
current fiscal vear, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was
$10,962,112 while total fund balance reached $12,619,933. As a measure of
the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved
fund balance represents 24.87% (prior year was 22.63%) of total general fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 28.63% (prior year was
26.99%) of that same amount.

Although the General Fund’s total fund balance increased by $1,847,851 in
the current fiscal year, the prior year had an increase of $3,278,891. Thus,
there was a decrease from the prior vear of $1,431,040 (43.64%). The
following elements were key factors in this decrease:

¢ Decreased taxes and special assessments revenues of $479,628 due to a
decrease in sales taxes of 3.34% and property taxes of 4.98%.

¢ Increased intergovernmental revenues in the form of federal, state,
and local grants of $595,625 (18.85%). The largest piece of this
increase is related to federal drug task force funding of $397,677.

o Increased capital outlay expenditures of $1,832,918 (94.38%). Material
purchases include a new fire engine, ambulance, loader, phone system,
and increases in various road maintenance and/or construction
projects.

¢ Increased personnel costs of approximately $2,064,000 (7.35%) due to
general salary increases and increased health benefit costs.

¢ Decreased transfers out of $2,548,450. The decrease was due to a prior
year transfer to the Capital Projects Fund for fire station renovation,
cemetery building renovation, sidewalk replacements, landscape
improvements, and five new intersection traffic signals.
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The Capital Projects fund has a total fund balance of 4,314,558, all of which
18 designated for the payment of capital improvement or economic and
physical development projects. The net decrease in fund balance during the
current year of $4,124,350 represents a decrease of 48.87%.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
J(Linformatlon found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more
etail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water fund at the end of the year amounted to
$2,916,078. Total net assets increased by $2,145,661 (8.23%) during the
current fiscal year. Operating revenues increased by $1,670,616 (21.81%).
Water revenues increased primarily due to meter base rate increases which
totaled approximately 3$440,000 for the year and the per gallon used
assessment increased by 10.00% which increased revenues by approximately
$360,000. Water consumption increased by 3.50% which also increased
revenues when compared to the prior year. Operating expenses increased by
$941,355 (13.76%) in comparison with the prior year. The increase in
expenses is primarily associated with an increase in depreciation expense
and personnel costs. The $535,643 increase in depreciation expense was due
to several large capital projects being completed early in the year. Increases
in personnel costs of $211,982 (12.15%) were due to general salary increases
and the increasing cost of healthcare benefits of approximately 8%.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Reclamation fund at the end of the year
amounted to $2,415,564. Total net assets increased by $238,276 (1.34%)
during the current fiscal year. Operating revenues decreased by $80,710
(1.31%). Consumption revenues for the water reclamation fund will generally
follow that of the water fund because the water reclamation fund computes
the amount to bill the user based upon the amount of water the user
consumes. Despite increased revenues from water consumption, decreases in
permit violation fees (16.19%) and sewer connection fees (23.51%) created a
decrease in operating revenues for the current vear. Operating expenses
increased by $94,757 (1.62%) in comparison with the prior year. The increase
1n expenses is primarily due to increases in personnel costs. The increase in
personnel costs (11.02%) were due to general salary increases and the
1ncreasing cost of healthcare benefits of approximately 8%.

Unrestricted net assets of the Storm Sewer fund at the end of the year
amounted to $2,644,286. Total net assets increased by $623,958 (5.97%)
during the current fiscal year. Operating revenues increased by $25,657
(1.02%). Operating expenses increased by $287,577 (19.51%) in comparison
with the prior year. Personnel cost increases of $166,500 (35.58%) are the
majority of the increase in expenses from the prior year. A large portion of
the personnel cost increases were due to a newly created position whose
primary function is to monitor construction sites to ensure that developers
are following federal and state environmental regulations regarding storm
water runoff. Depreciation expense also increased by $89,876 (27.35%) due to
the completion of several large capital projects during the year.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the fiscal year, the General Fund’s original budget was amended from
an original budget expenditure total (including net transfers) of $47,199,312
to a final budget of $49,689,028, an increase of $2,489,716. The increases to
the General Fund budget are briefly summarized as follows:

The administrative services department purchased a new server
through a capital lease purchase for $83,983 and increased funds for
computer and network upgrades by $280,000.

The engineering division had a $100,000 aerial flyover that was
budgeted in the prior vear carried over and, therefore, added to their
current year budget.

Various public safety grants received during the year totaled $636,961.
Public safety also purchased a storage shed for $11,000 and had a need
to increase their subcontracted ambulance collection fees by $50,000
due to an increase in actual cash collections.

The City had a need to purchase a new loader for the streets division
for $171,293.

The library received a federal grant of $242,685 for an RFID project
and purchased a copier under a capital lease for $6,800. The senior
citizens center had an organ donated to them that was valued at
$34,500. Various other parks, recreation, and arts grants were added
to the budget totaling $97,311.

Various capital equipment and projects were carried over from the
prior year and, therefore, were added to the budget in the current year.
This increased the budget by $287,664.

Various outstanding purchases were carried over from the prior year
and, therefore, were added to the budget in the current year. This
mcreased the budget by $203,573.

Various grants that did not have all funds spent by the end of the prior
fiscal year were carried over and, therefore, were added to the budget.
This increased the current year budget by $122,225.

Several General Fund revenue and expenditure categories were significantly
higher or lower than their final budgeted amounts. These variances are
briefly summarized as follows:

Charges for Services — Revenues — Exceeded budgeted amount by
$670,164 (18.08%). Ambulance service fees exceeded its budget by
$272,172 due to more transports and collections than expected.
Cemetery lot sales and burial fees exceeded its budget by $109,859.
Plan check fees and E911 surcharge fees exceeded their budgeted
amounts by $100,622 and $151,582, respectively.

General Government — Expenditures — Actual amounts were lower
than budgeted by $918,546 (7.04%). Most of this variance was due to
the Information Technology division, Administrative Services, not
upgrading as many computers as expected, not incurring all of the
costs for the new phone system by fiscal year end, and terminating
maintenance agreements on the old phone system.
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Public Safety — Expenditures — Actual amounts were lower than
budgeted by $1,309,458 (6.47%). A large portion of the variance,
$510,755, is due to lower than expected overtime and fringe benefits.
There were also three large projects that were budgeted that had yet to
incur any costs.

Highways and Public Improvements — Expenditures — Actual amounts
were lower than budgeted by $267,533 (4.23%). Most of this variance
can be attributed to the Streets division’s difficulty in hiring enough
temporary personnel during the year.

Parks, Recreation and Arts — Expenditures — Actual amounts were
lower than budgeted by $669,281 (9.08%). Most of the variance is due
to four projects that were budgeted that had not yet actually incurred
much, if any, of their budgeted costs. The largest of which is a library
RFID project.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2008, amounts to $234,510,822
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and
equipment (including vehicles), infrastructure, and construction in progress.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year include the
following:

Public safety purchased several new vehicles and replaced a number of
aging police vehicles totaling $331,115. The fire division also
purchased a new fire engine and ambulance totaling $588,739.
Administrative services purchased several new vehicles for the City's
vehicle pool, I'T division, and utility billing division totaling $67,122.
Work on the new Public Works building, public library remodel,
cemetery remodel, and fire station #1 & #2 remodel/renovation was
completed or in process with additional current year costs of
approximately $556,000.

Various road projects completed or added to construction in process
were approximately $4,257,000.

Work on a new 20 million gallon water tank was completed with
current vear additions totaling $982 367.

Remodel work on the Orem Fitness Center was completed with
additional current vear costs of approximately $99,000.

Various structural renovations or new construction work at several
city parks was completed or in process totaling approximately
$133,000.

Various water, sewer, and storm sewer line improvements totaled
approximately $4,589,000.
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City of Orem's Capital Assets

(Net of Depreciaton)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Tatal
2008 2007 2008 2007 £008 2007

Land % 53,007,221 8 58,784,875 g 891,439 & 891,439 kS 59,888660 % H9,ATEA14
Buildings and Systems 16,776,318 17,693,180 3,783,719 3,856,205 20,540,037 21,546,395
Tmprovements other

than Buildings 16,843,514 17,847,472 10,103,082 1,518,987 26,946,596 19,366,459
Machinery and Equipment 5,347,653 4,013,122 1.828,853 1,603,875 7,166,608 8,516,997
Infrastructure £2,748,108 56,392,889 52,718,700 48,624 734 115,464,898 100,017,623
Construetion in Progress 2,135 828 4,344,751 2,858,157 18,6300 827 4,484,025 20,075 678

Tatal Caplial Assets 3 162846732 § 159876209 § 71664090 8 68826067 § 234510822 § 238102366

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in the
footnotes to this financial report on pages 67-70.

Long-term debt. At the end on the current year, the City had total bonded
debt outstanding of $66,011,757. Of this amount, $19,960,000 comprises debt
backed by the full faith and credit of the government and $46,051,757 1s debt
that is secured solely by specific revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

City of Orem's Qutstanding Debt

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental Business-type
Activitiea Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
General Obligation Bonds & 18,960,000  § 1,025,000 - 8§ 199680,000 § 21025000
Revenue Donds 20,003.000 21,670,000 § 26048787 § 19,642,757 46,051 757 41315757
Total Bonds S 38963000 § 42698000 § 26048757 § 19642757 § 66011757 § 62340757

The City's total bonded debt increased by $3,671,000 (5.89%) during the
current fiscal year. During the year, $5,720,000 in Sales Tax Revenue
Refunding bonds were issued and $5,515,000 of the 2002 Sales Tax Revenue
bonds were defeased. There were $5,590,000 in new Water and Storm Sewer
Revenue bonds issued as well.

The City of Orem maintains a “AA” rating from Fitch Ratings and from
Standard & Poor’s,

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental
entity may issue to 4% of its total taxable value. The current limitations for
the City are $269,165,352, which is significantly in excess of the City's
outstanding general obligation debt. In addition, state statutes allow for an
additional 4% to be used for water, sewer, or electrical projects thus resulting
1n a debt limit of 8% of total taxable value. The current limitation for these
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water, sewer, or electrical projects is $538,330,704, which again significantly
exceeds the outstanding business-type activity debt.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in the
footnotes to this financial report on pages 73-80.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

¢ The unemployment rate for Orem at June 30, 2008 was 3.7%. The
City’s unemployment rate compares favorably to the national rate and
1s relatively close to the county and state. The table below provides
current year comparative information as well as a historical
perspective. (Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics).

HISTORICAL ANNUAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATES

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
City 3.5% 4.7% 2.1% 2.8% 3.7%
County 3.8% 4.7% 3.1% 2.8% 3.5%
State 4.5% 4.9% 3.3% 2,9% 3.5%
Nation 5.5% 5.0% 4.6% 1.5% 5.5%

¢ The General Fund budget for the fiscal year-ending June 30, 2009
reflects a decrease of 9.25% in revenues, excluding appropriations of
surplus, compared to the final fiscal vear ending June 30, 2008, This
decrease in revenues is due primarily to decreases in federal and state
grants. Budgeted expenditures decreased by 5.74% over the final fiscal
year ending June 30, 2008 expenditures.

» Economic trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
However, sales tax revenues have heen declining compared to
equivalent prior yvear time periods. These declines are being monitored
very closely so that the City can identify what future construction
projects or anticipated spending may need to be modified or suspended
should this trend continue.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the
2009 fiscal year.

Request For Information

This financial report provides a general overview of the City of Orem’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: City of
Orem, Director of Administrative Services, 56 North State Street, Orem, UT
840567,
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables (Net of Allowance for Unesllectibles)

Property Taxes Receivable
Other Taxes Receivahle
Special Assessments Receivable
Internal Balances
Inventory
Notes Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Charges
Restricted Assets!
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Debt Service
Capital Improvement Projects
Intergovernmental Receivable
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets (net)
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payahle
Customer Deposits
Accrued Liabilities
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Liahilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Noncurrent Liahilities:
Due within One Year
Pue in meore than One Year
Total Liahilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Construction
Other Purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

City of Orem
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Primary Government Component
Governmental Business-type Unit
Activities Activities Total CEDO
3 25,255,207 & 10,651,856 § 35,907,152 % 263,101
77,544 1,670,819 1,748,363 -
4,341,572 - 4,341,572
4,978,096 4,978,096
8,634,128 8,634,128
400,004 (400,004 -
371,006 371,006
408,440 408,440 731,288
22,636 22 636 -
495,654 376,822 R72.476
2,747 978 2,747,978
2,941,910 6,254,506 9,196,415
a86,150 586,150
61,143,048 3,249,636 64,392,684 15,000
101,703,684 68,414,454 170,118,138 101,474
214,107,146 90,218,087 304,325,233 1,110,863
1,000,854 1,467,609 2,518,463
3,627,619 11,002 3,638,621
2,645,092 271,807 2,916,899
6,661,480 410,866 6,972,346 731,288
655,201 79,311 1,134,512 -
1,107,871 . 1,107,871
10,685,323 1,199,322 11,884,645
38,377,848 25,820,606 64,198,354
64,711,288 29,660,423 94,371,711 731,288
117,130,313 51,848,628 168,978,941 116,474
2,747,418 2,747,418
1,931,411 1,931,411
22 636 22,636
27,564,080 8,709,036 36,273,116 263,101
149,395,858 3§ 60,657,664 § 209,953,622 & 379,675

-33-



Functions/Programs

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Public Improvements
Parks, Recreation and Arts
Eeconomic and Physical Development
Redevelopment
Interest on Long-term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

Water

Water Reclamation

Storm Sewer

Recreation

Solid Waste

Street Lighting

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government,

Component Unit:
CEDC
Total Component Unit

City of Orem
Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 15,187,762 $ 11,697,008 & 71,179 b3
19,491,191 3,339,720 810,859 161,667
8,646,549 - - 2,704,380
9,416,719 545,132 20,284
2,096,573 277,113 556,846 1,240,958
593,283 - - -
2,217,525
57,649,602 15,858,973 1,438,884 4,127,289
8,388,236 9,331,098 874,900
5,882,610 6,073,791 48,000
2,004,281 2,549,082 3.600
1,617,587 1,588,894 -
3,014,707 2,961,104
1,244,305 689,343
22,251,726 23,193,312 926,500
% 79,901,328 3 39,052,285 $ 1,438,884 $ 5,053,789
3 211,846 b 165,000
3 211,846 $ 165,000

General Revenues:
Sales Taxes
Property Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Vehicle Taxes
Other Taxes
Grants and Contributions not restricted to specific programs
TUnrestricted Investment Earnings
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers In (Out)
Total General Revenunes and Transfers
Change in Total Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning, As Previously Reported
Prior Period Adjustment
Total Net Assets - Beginning. As Restated
Total Net Assets - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Net (Expense} Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government Component
Governmental Business-type Unit
Activities Activities Total CEDO
$ (3,419,575) (3,419,575) £
(15,178,945) (15,178,045)
(5,942,169) (5,942,169)
(8,8%1,303) (8,851,303)
(21,656) (21,656)
(593,283) (593,283)
(2,217 525) (2,217,525)
(36,224,458) (36,224,456)
1,817,762 1,817,762
139,181 139,181
548,401 548,401
(28,693) (28,693)
(53,603) (53,603)
(554,962) (554,962
- 1,868,086 1,868,086
$ (36,224.456) % 1,868,086 (34,356,370)
8 (46,846)
$ {46,846)
20,616,891 20,616,891
9,082,992 9,082,992
7,291,044 7,291,044
854,088 854,088
260,729 260,729
- - 37,402
1,468,514 443,870 1,912,384 11,808
666,063 131,104 797,167 .
(1,036,108) 1,036,106 -
39,204,215 1,611,080 40,815,295 49,210
2,979,759 3,479,166 6,458,925 2,364
145,440,438 57,078,498 202,518,936 377,211
975,661 975,661
146,416,099 57,078,498 203,494,597 377,211
$ 149,395 858 60,557,664 209,953,522 $ 374,575
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Property Taxes Receivable
Other Taxes Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Intergovernmental Receivable
Nates Receivable
Prepaids
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Debt Service
Capital Improvement Projects
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Paysble
Customer Deposits
Aeccrued Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
liabilities Payahle from Restricted Assets
Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Reserved for!
Class "C" Road
Debt Service and Capital Improvements
Prepaids
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund
Capital Projects Funds
Debt Service Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

City of Orem
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2008

Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental

(General Projects Funds Funds
$ 13,086,003 s 4,374,494 3 6,217,829 % 23,678,326
77,544 - - 77,544
4,541,572 4,341,572
1,672,109 305,987 4,978,096
8,654,128 - 8,631,128
400,004 - 400,004
- 586,150 - 586,150
- - 408,44 408,440
22,636 - - 22 636
- 2,747,978 2,747 978
2,646,245 - 205,665 2,941,910
$ 33,880,241 & 4,960,644 g 9075899 3 48,816,784
307,476 646,086 31,353 984,915
3,627,619 - - 3,627,619
1,748,945 3,685 1,752,630
14,468,397 727,211 15,195,608
1,107,871 - 1,107,871
21,260,308 646,086 TH2,249 22,668,643
1,635,185 - 1,635,185
- 3,043,644 3,043,644
22,636 - 22,636
10,962,112 10,962,112
- 4,314,558 4,314,558
- 661,707 661,707
5,508,299 5,508,299
12,619,933 4,314,558 9,213,650 26,148,141

8 33,880,241 $ 4,960,644 % 9,975,899

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net asscts are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures.

Certain revenue ie deferred in governmental funds but not in the statement of net assets because it

gualifies for recognition under the economic resources measurement focus.

[nternal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of fleet management, self-insurance,

and purchasing/warehousing. The current assets and liabilitics of internal service funds are ineluded

in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and compenaated ahbsences, are not due and payable

in the current pericd.

Interest payable on long-term ohligations does net require current finaneial resources and is not.

reported in the governmental funds.

Net assets of governmental activitics

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statcment

162,846,732
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City of Orem

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
(General Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes and Special Assessments $ 31,658,231 ] $ 6,859,513 38,517,744
Licenses and Permits 1,596,935 - - 1,596,935
Intergovernmental 3,755,769 12,600 556,846 4,325,215
Charges for Services 4,377,739 - 454 820 4,832,559
Fines and Forfeitures 580,510 - a80,510
Charges for Services - Other Funds 3,921,154 - 3,921,154
Interest Income 1,015,707 305,482 1,321,189
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,447,255 757,681 106,861 2,311,797
Total Revenues 48,353,300 770,281 3,283,522 57,407,103
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 11,620,136 11,620,136
Public Safety 17,851,249 17,851,249
Highways and Public [mprovements 4,107,184 - 4,107,184
Parks, Recreation and Arts 6,491,069 - 1,316,258 7,807,327
Economic and Physical Development - 1,400,593 698,082 1,998,675
Redevelopment - - 577,702 577,702
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 159,635 3,101,315 3,260,950
Interest and Fiscal Charges - 2,007,451 2,007,451
Bond Issuance Costs - 139,440 139,440
Capital Lease Payments - Principal 68,361 - 68,361
Capital Lease Payments - Interest 5,824 - - 5,824
Capital Outlay 3,774,921 3,593,517 3,152,376 10,520,814
Total Expenditures 44,078,379 4,994,110 10,892,624 59,965,113
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over {under) Expenditures 4,274 921 (4,223,829) (2,609,102) (2,558,010)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of Bonds - - 5,720,000 5,720,000
Issuance of Notes Payable - 1,400,593 - 1,400,593
Payment to Bond Refunding Agent - . (5,7560,946) (5,750,046}
Bond Issuance Premium - 169,576 169,576
Capital Leases 90,783 - - 90,783
Transfers In 1,493,254 310,000 4,859,229 6,662,483
Transfers Out (4,011,107) (1,611,114 (1,430,543) (7,052,764)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,427,070) 99 479 3,567,316 1,239,725
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,847 851 (4,124,350 958,214 (1,318,285)
Fund Balance - Beginning, Az Previously Reported 10,772,082 8,438,908 7,279,775 26,490,765
Prior Period Adjustment - - 975,661 975,661
Fund Balance - Beginning, As Restated 10,772,082 8,438,908 8,255,136 27,466,426
Fund Balance - Ending § 12,619,933 $ 4,314,558 ¥ 9,213,650 3 26,148,141

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Orem
Reconciliation of The Statemeni of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To The Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for Governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (1,318,28R)

(rovernmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital Asset Purchases Capitalized $ 6,022,245
Depreciation Kxpense (6,030,611 2,991,634

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resourees to
governmental funds, while the payment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.
Issuance of Long-term Deht recorded as a long-term liability % (7,211,376)
Principal Payments recorded as a reduction of the long-term liability 8,844,311 1,632,935

Governmental funds report the effect of bond issuance costs, preminms,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts ara deferred and amortized in the statement of activiities.

Bond Issuance Costs Capitalized - Refundings 3 139,440
Bond (Premiums) Discounts 66,370
Amaortization of Bond Issuance Costs (47,593)
Amortization of Bond Issuance Costs - Refundings (26,915)
Amortization of Bond Premiums (Discounts) (57,948) 73,353

Some expenses reporied in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.
Compensated Absences $ (227,743
Interest Expense (145,817 (373,560}

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 241,058

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management, purchasing/warehousing and self-insurance to individual
funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is
reported with governmental activities. (967,376)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 5 2,979,759

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Taxes and Special Assessments
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Charges for Services - Other Funds
Interest Revenues
Miscellanecus Revenues
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Legislative
Exccutive
Personnel Administration
Administrative Services
Development Services
Other - Uneclagsified
Total General Government
Public Safety:
Administration
Police
Fire
Total Public Safety
Highways and Public Improvements:
Administration
Engineering
Total Highways and Public Improvements
Parks, Recreation and Arts
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Capital Lease Payments - Principal
Capital Lease Payments - Interest
Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING S0URCES (USES)
Capital Leases
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balanee
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

City of Orem
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget -
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
F 31,734,000 § 31,734,000 $ 31,658,231 ] {75,769)
1,400,000 1,400,000 1,596,935 196,935
2,926,305 3,817,502 3,755,769 (61,733)
3,624,000 3,707,575 4,377,739 670,164
520,000 540,525 580,310 39,985
3,921,154 3,921,154 3,921,154 -
930,281 430,281 1,015,707 85,426
1,060,072 1,295,457 1,447,255 151,758
46,115,812 47,346,494 48,353,300 1,006,806
295,005 208,200 293,004 5,200
4,330,433 3,704,599 3,474,576 230,023
407,497 410,478 380,586 20,802
3,204,848 3,769,310 3,343,869 425,441
3,195,371 3,325,262 3,264,689 60,573
1,691,835 1,548,788 1,381,371 167,417
13,124,989 13,056,637 12,138,091 918,546
618,087 832,838 608,942 223 896
12,228,781 12,934,387 11,962,411 971,976
6,202,140 6,481,929 6,368,343 113,586
19,048,008 20,245,154 18,939,696 1,309,458
1,332,876 1,358,504 1,301,368 57,136
4,573,273 4,971,486 4,761,089 210,397
5,905,949 6,329,990 6,062,457 267,533
6,508,067 7,373,596 6,704,315 669,281
159,635 159,635
68,361 68,361 68,361
3,824 3,824 5,824
74,185 233,820 233,820
44 662,198 47,243,197 44,078,379 3,164,818
1,453,614 103,297 4,274,921 4,171,624
90,783 90,783
1,492,754 1,493,254 1,493,204
14,020,868) {4,029,868) (4,011,107) 18,761
(2,637,114 {2,445,831) (2,427,070) 18,761
(1,083,500 {2,342,534) 1,847,851 4,190,385
10,772,082 10,772,082 10,772,082
3 0,688582 3 5,429,548 § 12,619,933 ¥ 4,190,385

The notes te the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
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City of Orem
General Fund
Revenues and Expenditures - Actual
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

GENERAL FUND - REVENUES|

. . Charges for Services -
Fines & Forfeitures Other Funds

1.2% 8.1%

Interest
2.1%

Miscellaneces Revenues
3.0%

Other Charges for
Services
5.9%

Sales Taxes
38.6%

Arbulance Services
3.2%

Intergovernmental

7.8% Franchise & Other

Taxes
15.2%

Property Taxes
11.6%

Business Licenses Building Permita
1.3% 2.0%

GENERAL FUND - EXPENDITURES |

Debt Service .
0.2% Personnel Services

68.4%

Contract Services
1.9%

Materials, Supplies, &
Other Operational Costs
21.0%
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts)
Inventories
Prepaids
Restricted Cagh:
Capital Improvement Projects
Total Current Assets
Nonecurrent Asaets:
Deferred Charges
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings and Systems
Improvements other than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

Less Accumutated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets (et of Accumulated

Depreciation)
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liahilities:
Accounts Payable
Customer Deposits
Acerued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Bond Premiums
{Capital Leases Payable - Current Portion
Bonds Payable - Current Partion

Total Current iabilities

Noncurrent, Liahilities:
Accrued Vacatinn and Sick Leave
Bond Premiums - Long-term Portion
Capital Leascs Payable - Long-term Portion
Bends Payable - Long-term Portion

Total Noncurrent Liabilitiea
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Dabt
Unrestrieted

Total Net Assets

City of Orem

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2008

Business-type
Water Water
Water Water Reelamation Reclamation
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year
g 4,014,876 b 1,171,578 2,212,635 & 1,667,772
712,280 657,601 479,110 506,871
6,254,605 4,381,656
10,983.661 6,210,835 2,691,675 2,174,643
286,248 195,418
557,654 5A7,654
1,722,649 1,722,649 3,380,352 3,380,362
9,194,323 152,231 AR89, 4496 578,018
1,294,705 1,252,951 3,762,205 3,276,845
47,293,914 40,679,147 37,062,774 36,134,181
1,816,620 12,743,322 133,361 5T79.613

(23,178,591}

(21,708,909

(28,300,083

(27,362,730

38,143,620 54,740,431 17,185,757 17,543,943
38,429,866 34,835,840 17,165,767 17,543,943
49,413,627 41,146,684 19,857,432 19,718,586
1,004,950 1,868,937 108,925 56,668
11,002 10,4914
74,321 49,682 89,217 65,619
90,792 75,152 81,7589 36,139
60,207 48,808
343,264 241,326 21,963 24,690
29,112 25,182 .
9,172 9,379
332,883 514,263 154,000 187,000
2,155,708 2,843,643 465,564 372,116
4,778 3,955 4,247 3425
480,893 431,233
726 2,210
18,558,162 11,791,044 1,311,757 1,505,757
18,044,559 12,235,442 1,316,004 1,509,182
21,200,267 15,075,085 1,781,868 1,881,298
285,297,182 26,048,805 15,660,000 15,851,188
2,916,078 17,794 2,115,564 1,986,102
3 28,213,260 % 26,067,500 18,075,664 8 17,837,288

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Other Activities
Storm Sewer Storm Sewer Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Fund Fuand Funda Funds Total Service Funds
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Current Year
$ 2,788,108 2,938,310 1,634,248 1,306,086 10,661,855 § 1,576,971
166,867 186,973 312,532 325,823 1,670,819
- 371,006
488,338 6,254,605
2,955,063 3,613,621 1,946,780 1,631,919 18,577,179 1.947.977 .
90,5676 95,865 376,822
298,963 293,963 35,828 39,822 851,439
468,845 468,845 4,121,830 4,121,630 9,693,486 150,000
357,034 346,825 1,499,210 1,459,210 11,640.063 17,185
1,061,823 1,089,971 142,067 142,067 6,250,800 219,221
13,846,542 10,169,323 502,953 787,317 99,004,183
224,865 3,307,892 183,351 - 2,358,197
{2,355,279) (1,936,811) (4,432,113 (4,318,361} (58,266,078) (184,698)
13,897,793 13,690,008 2,456,920 2,251,685 71,664,090 201,720
13,088,369 13,785,873 2,456,920 2,251,685 72,040,912 201,720
16,843 432 17,399,494 4,403,700 3,883,604 90,618,091 2,149,697
12,203 885,046 341,437 26849580 1,467,609 55,939
- 11,002 -
25,499 16,232 82,770 71,075 271,807 892,462
. 400,004 410,271 400,004
30,447 25,647 36,862 37,389 200,860 60,281
- 360,659 376,186 410,866 -
114,084 117,302 475,311 29
12,696 12,697 41,808
10,482 10,719 19,654 5,551
201,117 192,737 828,000
406,617 1,263,380 1,211,732 1,162,879 4,235,921 1,026,262
1,602 1,350 1.940 1,968 12,567 44,663
204,733 217,428 685,626
230 11526 1,656 519
5,250,838 5,451,956 25,120,757
5,458,003 5,681,260 1,940 1,568 25,820,506 45,182
5,864,620 6,944,640 1,213,672 1,164,847 30,060,427 1,070,444
8,434,526 8,670,698 2,456,920 2,251,685 51,848,628 194,650
2,644,286 1,784,156 733,108 467,072 8,709,036 884,603
§ 11,078,612 10,454,854 3,190,028 2,718,757 60,567,664 § 1,079,253
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OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Other Revenues
Total Operating Hevenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services
Supplies and Maintenance
Administrative Fee
Utilities
Contract Services
Equipment Lease and Rentals
Insurance
Charges in Lieu of Property Tax
Depreciation Expense
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
AND EXPENSES
Interest Revenue
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Donations / Grants
Deferred Charges
Interest Expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues
Income (Loss) before Transfers
and Contributions

Contributions from Developers
Contributions Expense
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning
Total Net Assets - Ending

City of Orem
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Business-type Activities -

Water Water
Water Water Reclamation Reclamation
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year

% 8,522,976 & 7,308,889 £ 5,682,018 § 5,678,134
808,122 261,593 391,778 476,367
9,331,098 7,660,482 6,073,791 6,154,501
1,956,252 1,744,270 2,036,850 1,834,659
1,706,079 1,673,860 645,748 603,480
1,051,781 1,004,280 788,930 770,625
588,783 514,877 451,799 458,212
637,086 580,921 712,946 696,470
34,016 33,883 3,484 5,186
108,814 97,021 61,742 B5,230
95,000 92,500 45,000 92,500
1,468,682 933,039 1,061,720 1,258,685
138,372 48,859 67,851 56,286
7,784,865 6,843,510 5,928,090 5,831,333
1,546,233 816,972 147,701 323,168
240,178 457,699 60,037 53,318

- 3,262 151,104 3,738

866,900 - - -
(15,059) {13,540 -
(588,312 (493,093} (56,520 (62,943}
503,707 (45,672) 134,621 (3,887}
2,049,940 771,300 282,322 319,281
8,000 1,066,880 48,000 1,497,200
- (59,487 . (1,505)

104,371 97,139 - -
(16,850) {71,559 {92,040) (139,723
2,145,661 1,804,273 238,276 1,674,253
26,087,599 24,263,326 17,837,288 16,162,035

$ 28,213,260 $ 26,067,599 & 18,075,564 & 17,837,288

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statoment
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Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Other Activities
Storm Sewer Storm Sewer Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Fund Fund Funds Funds Total Service Funds
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Current Year
£ 2,548,853 & 2,523,425 3 5,237,414 % 5,029,285 § 21,991,261 3 2,349,930
229 . 1,627 475 1,202,051 -
2,549,082 2,523,425 3,239,341 5,029,760 23,193,312 2,349,930
634,456 467,956 1,191,257 1,112,966 3,818,815 763,616
175,993 163,467 206,754 274,858 2,734,574 1,850,716
303,240 296,769 333,674 318,278 2,477,645 -
5,645 2,334 558,158 498,173 1,604,285 -
151,233 150,321 2,709,950 2,678,826 4,211,215 -
11,450 11,585 709,007 705,159 768,047
27,001 24 074 - 23,593 197,567
- - - 184,000
418,468 328,592 113,752 60,022 3,062,622 16,664
34,338 29,149 53,957 17,731 294,518 .
1,761,824 1,474,247 5,876,509 5,689,608 21,349,378 2,670,996
7R7,258 1,049,178 (637,268) (659,848) 1,843,934 (321,066)
89,283 128,801 54,372 57,083 443,870
(9,1486) - - 131,104
- 248,000 . - 866,900
(5,289 (5,289 (20,348) -
{237,168) (248,211) (882,000) (485}
(153,174 116,155 54,372 57,983 539,526 (485)
634,084 1,165,333 (532,586) {601,863) 2,883,460 {321,551)
3,600 113,800 59,600
(435,764) -
48 824 - 1,084,968 855,177 1,238,163
{62,550) {61,216) (20,811 (29,591) (202,057) (545,825)
623,958 782,153 471,271 223,723 3,479,166 (967,376)
10,454,854 9,672,701 2,718,767 2,495,034 57,078,498 2,046,629
& 11,078,812 § 10,454,854 § 3,190,028 % 2,718,757 5 60,557 664 § 1,079,253
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City of Orem
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Busineaa-type

Water
Water Water Reclamstion
Fund Fund Fund
Current Year Prior Year Current Year
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 8,622,976 % 7,480,217 8 5,682,018
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 808,122 261,593 391,773
Fayments to Suppliers {4,190,685) (3,718,235) (1,933,954
Payments to Employees (1,934,789 (1,735,225) {2,028,408)
Payments for Interfund Services Used {1,051,781) (1,004,280} (788,950)
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities 2,148,843 1,284,070 1,327,449
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Daonations / Grants 866,900
Transfers In 104,371 97,139
Transfers Out {16,650) (71,559 (92,046}
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noneapital Activities 954,621 23,580 (92,046}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets (1,864,871) (7,453,913 (635,534}
Proceeds from Bonds Issued 7,300,000 1,180,000
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 133,104
Principal paid on Outstanding Debt (522,953 (501,708) {187,000)
Interest paid on Dutstanding Nebt (538,671} (517.968) (59,247
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 1,374,505 {7,283,589) {(TR0.67T)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Revenue 240,178 457,699 60,037
Net Cazh Provided (Used) by lnvesting Activitics 240,178 457,699 60,037
Ner increase (Deerease) in Cash and Cash Equivalenta 4,718,147 {5,516,240) 344,763
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 5,553,234 11,069,474 1,667,772
Cash and Cash Equivalenta - End of Year $ 10,271,381 8 5,503,234 $ 2,212,535
Reconciliation of Operating Income {Loss) to Net Cash
Provided {Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Logs) g 1,546,233 & 816,972 3 147,701
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income ta Net Cash Provided
{Used? by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense g 1,468,682 & 933,039 3 1,061,720
{Increase) Decrease in Receivables (54,679} {AG,008) 27,731
{Tncrease) Decrease in laventory
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaids
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Pavable (863,982) (422,095) 53,257
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits a8 2 953
Increase (Decrcasze) in Accrued Liabilities 24,639 2,516 23,598
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned/Deferred Revenue 11,399 7,748
Increase (Decrease) in Acerued Vacation and Sick Leave 16,463 9,045 13,442
Total Adjustments 502,610 487,098 1,179,748
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities & 2,148,843 % 1,284,070 % 1,327,449
Noneash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activitiea’
Contributions of Capital Asaets from Developers 3 8,000 % 1,066,880 g 48,000
Contributions of Capital Assets to Governmental Funds (59,487) .

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Other Other Governmental
Reclamation Storm Sewer Storm Sewer Enterprise Enterprise Total Activities
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Current Internal
Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Year Service Funds
g 5,678,134 5 2,548,853 & 3,523,425 8 5237414  $ 5,029,285 $ 21,991,261 $
476,367 2249 1,927 475 1,202,051 2,349,930
2,120,312) (1,252,041) (328,667 (4,175,245) (4,087,174} (11,551,955} (1,472,622)
{1,83:4,370) (629,404} (461,288) (1,191,813) (1,136,063} (3,784,413) (760,927)
(770,625) (303,240} (296,769) (333,674) (318,278) (2,477,645} -
1,429,194 364,397 1,436,701 (461,390) (511,755) 3,379,299 116,381
248,000 866,900
48,824 1,084,968 858,177 1,238,163
{139,723) (62,550} (61,216 (30,811} (29,591) (202,067) (645,825}
(139,723) (13,726) 186,784 1,054,157 825,586 1,903,006 (613,825)
(1,294,928) {622,653) {3,558,870) (318,987 (412,005} 6,141,015 (13,000}
- - 7,300,000 -
2,233 - 113,301 131,104
{181,000) (202,669) {191,238) {(912,629) (6,208)
(65,582} {253,084) {2060,181) - {851,002) (561)
(1,539,277) (1,078,406) {3,896,538) (318,987) (412,005) {773,565) (19,772)
55,318 89,283 128,801 54,372 57,983 443,870
53,318 #9,28% 128,801 54,372 57,983 443,870
(194,188) {638,432) (2,144,252) 328,152 (40,191) 4,952,610 (549,216)
1,862,260 3,426,648 5,570,900 1,306,096 1,346,287 11,953,750 2,126,187
% 1,667,772 ) 2,788,196 3 3,196,648 g 1,634,248 & 1,306,096 $ 16,906,360 § 1,576,971
$ 323,168 % 787,258 & 1,049,178 8 (637,258) % {659,6486) 1,843,934 8 (321,066)
% 1,258,683 $ 418,468  § 328,592 8 113,752 § 60,022 3,062,622 % 16,664
(§9,638) 20,106 (11,462 13,291 {10,461} 6,449 -
- (80,842}
(69,454) (875,754 61,766 72,478 {8,317 (1,614,001} 45,491
- 88
6,144 9,267 1,849 1,428 85,275 58,932 453,445
(24,526) 44571 (13,127
289 5,062 6,668 {555} (23,097) 34,402 2,689
1,106,026 {422,861) 387,523 175,868 148,091 1,535,266 437,447
8 1,420,194 g 364,307 & 1,436,701 % (161,29 & (511,755) § 3,379,200 % 116,381
g 1,497,200 $ 3,600 % 113,500 % & $ 59,600 &
{1,505) {435,764) .

-47-



City of Orem
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies
A. Reporting Entity

The basic financial statements of the City of Orem (the City) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles.

The City of Orem was incorporated in 1919 and covers approximately 18.25
square miles. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of

overnment. As required by GAAP, the City and its component uniis
%entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable)
present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The City is
considered to be financially accountable for an organization if the City
appoints a voting majority of that organization or there is a potential for that
organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific
financial burdens on the City. The City is also considered to be financially
accountable for an organization if that organization is fiscally dependent (i.e.,
it 1s unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates or charges, or 1ssue
bonded debt without approval from the City).

The component units discussed below are included as part of the City's
reporting entity as blended component units within its governmental funds.

¢ The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Orem (RDA) was established
to prepare and carry out plans to improve, rehabilitate and redevelop
blighted areas within the City. The RDA is governed by a board of
trustees composed of the Mayor and members of the City Council.
Although it 18 a legally separate entity from the City, the RDA 1s
reported as if it were part of the primary government because of the
City's ability to impose its will upon the operations of the RDA. The
RDA is included in these financial statements as the Redevelopment
Agency Special Revenue Fund. Separate financial statements are not
issued for the RDA.,

¢ The Municipal Building Authority of the City of Orem (MBA) was
established to finance and construct municipal buildings that are then
leased to the City. A seven-member board of trustees composed of the
Mayor and the City Council governs the MBA. Although it is a legally
separate entity from the City, the MBA is reported as if it were part of
the primary government because of the City's ability to impose its will
upon the operations of the MBA. The MBA i1s included in these
financial statements as the Municipal Building Authority Debt Service
Fund. Separate financial statements are not issued for the MBA.

¢ The Orem Foundation Trust is a nonprofit charitable foundation. The

Internal Revenue Service (IRS) granted permission for the City to form
and operate as an approved IRS section 501(c)3 charitable foundation.
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City of Orem
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

A. Reporting Entity (continued)

This enables donors broader charitable donation capabilities as
donations will be fully tax deductible. Although it is a legally separate
entity from the City, the Orem Foundation Trust is reported as if it
were part of the primary government because of the City's ability to
impose its will upon its operations. It is included in these financial
statements as the Orem Foundation Trust Special Revenue Fund.
Separate financial statements are not issued for this entity.

The component unit discussed below is included as part of the City's
reporting entity as a hlended component unit within its proprietary funds.

The Special Service Lighting District of the City of Orem (SSLD) was
established to purchase, install, and maintain street lights, poles, and
fixtures within the City. The SSLD is to collect fees to pay for the
street lighting system and the electricity to operate it. The SSLD is
governed by a board of directors composed of the Mayor and members
of the City Council. Although it is a legally separate entity from the
City, the SSLD is reported as if it were part of the primary government
because of the City's ability to impose its will upon the operations of
the SSLD. The SSLD is included in these financial statements as the

Street Lighting Fund. Separate financial statements are not issued for
the SSLD.

The component unit discussed below is included as part of the City's
reporting entity as a discretely presented component unit.

The Commission for Economic Development in Orem (CEDO) was
created to encourage the economic growth and development of the City,
primarily through its function as the administrator of the City's
revolving business loan program. Although it i primarily financed by
the City and, therefore, fiscally dependent on the City, CEDO is a
legally separate entity with an independently appointed board, which
appointments are approved by the City Council (a City Council
member is always one of the board members), which provides services
both to the City and to the citizens of the City directly. As exclusion
from the financial statements of the City would be misleading, CEDO
is included as a component unit consisting of a single governmental
type fund in the Basic Financial Statements. Separate financial
statements are not issued for CEDO.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets
and the statement of activities) report information on all activities of the City
and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
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City of Orem
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
B. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)

normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement
presentation

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct
expenses are those which are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
proprietary funds.  Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

The use of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as
assets In the government-wide financial statements, rather than reported as
expenditures. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a lability in the
government-wide financial statements, rather than as an other financing
source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt of the City are reported as a
reduction of the related liability, rather than expenses in the government-
wide financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (within sixty
days) to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
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City of Orem
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement
presentation (continued)

debt-service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Sales taxes, use taxes, franchise taxes, and earned but unreimbursed state,
federal, and other grants associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and therefore have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Property taxes are measurable as of the
date levied (assessed) and are recognized as revenues when they become
available. Available means when due, or past due, and received within the
current period or collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current period. All other revenues are considered to be measurable
and available only when the City receives cash.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

¢ The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

o The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities of the City (other than those
financed by proprietary funds) as well as the use of resources for the
improvement, rehabilitation, or construction of new roads.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

o The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the City's water
production, treatment and distribution operations.

o The Water Reclamation Fund accounts for the operation and
maintenance of the City's sewer operations.

o The Storm Sewer Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of
the City's storm sewer operations.

The City reports the following internal service funds:

o The Selfinsurance Fund accounts for the self'insurance activities of
the various funds throughout the City.

o The Fleet Mammtenance Fund accounts for the costs of operating and
maintaining vehicles and equipment owned by the City.

s The Purchasing/Warehousing Fund accounts for the centralized
purchasing and warehousing operations of the City.
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City of Orem
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement
presentation {(continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to
follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

The effect of interfund activity has, generally, been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements, Exceptions to this are payments to
the General Fund by various enterprise funds for providing administrative
and billing services. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of all enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is

the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources
as they are needed.

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

1. Cash and ecash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and deposits in other types of accounts or cash
management pools that have the general characteristics of demand
deposit accounts. City policy allows for the investment of funds in the
following types of investments (in compliance with the State of Utah’s
Money Management Act):
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City of Orem
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

1. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

e Time certificates of deposit with federally insured
depositories.

¢ Investment in the Utah Public Treasurer's Investment
Fund (PTIF).

¢ Open-end managed money market mutual funds.

o Qualified repurchase agreements with qualified
depositories, certified dealers, or certified depositories.

¢ Other investments allowed by the State of Utah's Money
Management Act.

Investments are reported at fair value. The Utah Public Treasurer’s
Invesiment Fund (PTIF) and the Ziens Bank Liquid Asset
Management Fund (LAM) both operate in accordance with state laws
and regulations. The reported value of these funds is not materially
different than the fair value of each Fund’s shares.

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term highly liguid investments
that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near
maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value
because of changes in interest rates. Investments with maturities of
three months or less when purchased meet this definition.

2. Receivables and pavables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to
as "due to” or “due from” other funds. In the Water, Water
Reclamation, and Solid Waste funds, the City records utility revenues
billed to customers when meters are read on a monthly basis. Unbilled
service accounts receivable at June 30, 2008 do not represent a
material amount and, therefore, have not been accrued as revenues
and receivables.

3. Inventories and prepaid items

Inventories of materials and supplies in the Purchasing/Warehousing
internal service fund consist principally of materials used to repair the
transmission, distribution, collection and treatment systems of the
City’s proprietary type services. These inventories are valued at cost
and accounted for on a first-in, first-out basis (FIFO).

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future

accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both
government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

4. Capital assets

The City’s capital assets, which includes property, plant, equipment,
and infrastructure assets (i.e. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.

The City defines capital assets as assets with an individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructure 33 -50
Buildings and systems 25 - 38%/;
Machinery and equipment 5-20
Vehicles 5-20
Furniture and equipment 5-20
Emprovements other than buildings 6-10

b. Compensated absences

For governmental funds, vested or accumulated vacation leave and
compensatory time-off are not expected to be liguidated with
expendable available financial resources and are thus excluded as a
hability in each fund's balance sheet and as an expenditure in the
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance.
These balances would only be reported in a governmental fund’s
financial statements as a liability and expenditure if they have
matured (are due).

For proprietary funds, vested or accumulated vacation leave and
compensatory time-off i1s recorded as an expense and a liability of those
funds as the benefits accrue to the employees.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity {continued)

5. Compensated absences (continued)

The government-wide financial statements reflect the entire amount of
vested and/or accumulated vacation leave and compensatory time-off
for all governmental and proprietary funds and are thus recorded as a
liability in the statement of net assets and as an expense in the
statement of activities.

Employees are limited to two years of accumulated vacation leave.
Sick pay amounts are charged to expenditures when incurred.
Employees may accumulate sick leave without limitation. City
employees earn twelve days of sick leave per year.

6. Long-term oblizations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund
types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as labilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
type statement of net assets. Bond premiums, discounts, and issuance
costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the applicable debt. In
the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt 1ssued is reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

7. Festricted assets

Restricted assets are comprised of cash restricted for future payments
of principal and interest on debt service as well as unexpended
portions of bonds issued for capital construction purposes.

8. Fund equity reserves

Fund balance

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally segregated for a specific purpose.

Restricted net assets

In the government-wide financial statements as well as the
proprietary fund financial statements, restricted net assets are
legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose.
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Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)
D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

8. Contributions from developers

Contributions from developers in the proprietary fund financial
statements arise from outside contributions of capital assets, or
from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to
capital acquisition and construction.

E. Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fotal
governmental fund balances and net assets of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. This difference
primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net
assets versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund
balance sheets.

Capital related items

When capital assets (property, plant and equipment) that are to be used in
governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the statement
of nclet assets Includes these capital assets among the assets of the City as a
whole.

Cost of Capital Assets % 233,322,432
Accumulated Depreciation (70,475,700}
Total difference % 162,846,732
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Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements
(continued)

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund
balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets
(continued)

Long-term debt transactions

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as
fund Habilities in the governmental fund financials. All liabilities (bhoth
current and long-term) are reported in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabhility balances at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

General Obligation Bonds % 19,960,000
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 9,985,000
Municipal Building Authority Bonds 7,343,000
Special Improvement District Bonds 2,675,000
Notes Payable 7,476,274
Capital Leases 140,400
Less: Internal Service Funds - Current Portion (8,551)
Bond Premiums Deferred 442 561
Bond Loss on Defeasance Deferred - Refunding (383.4086)
Bond Issuance Costs Deferred - Refunding (312,450)
Compensated Absences 1,736,792
Less! Internal Service Funds - Current Portion (60,281)
Total Difference $ 48,996,339

B. Explanation of differences between governmental fund operating
statements and the statement of net activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balance -
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental
activitles as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One of
these differences is explained here in greater detail.

The second element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-
term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the payment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets.” The details of this difference are as follows:
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Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

(continued)

B. Explanation of differences between governmental fund operating
statements and the statement of net activities (continued)

Debt issued or incurred:

Issuance of Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds $ (5,720,000
Issuance of Interim Warrants (1,400,593)
Capital Lease Financing (90,783)

Subtotal (7,211,376)

Principal payments:
Payment to Escrow Agent for Sales Tax Revenue

Bonds Debt Refunding 5,515,000
Municipal Building Authority Bonds 1,080,000
General Obligation Bonds 1,065,000
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 530,000
Special Improvement District Bonds 265,000
Notes Payable 320,950
Capital Leases 68,361

Subtotal 8,844,311

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund
balance - total governmental funds to arrive at
changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 1,632,935

Stewardship, compliance and accountability
A. Budgetary Information

Prior to the first regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May, the
City Manager and appointed Budget Officer, submits to the City Council a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal vear commencing the following July
1st. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the proposed
sources of revenues.

Between May 1#t and June 22nd, the City Council reviews and adjusts the
proposed budget. On or before June 22nd, a public hearing is held and the
budget is legally adopted through passage of a resolution, unless a property
tax increase is proposed. If a property tax increase is proposed, a hearing
must be held on or before August 17th, which does not conflict with other
taxing entities that have proposed a property tax increase. At this time the
final balanced budget is adopted.
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Stewardship, compliance and accountability (continued)
A. Budgetary Information {(continued)

The City Manager, in conjunction with the Budget Officer and the
appropriate department head, has the budget authority to transfer budget
appropriations within and between any divisions of any budgetary fund.

An individual department, such as Public Works, is composed of several
divisions, e.g., water, water reclamation and storm sewer. These divisions
may be located in many different funds. Budget transfers may be made
between divisions in a fund even if the divisions involved are not in the same
department.

The City Council (administrators of the legal level of control), by resclution,
have the authority to transfer budget appropriations between individual
budgetary funds. A public hearing must be held to increase the total
appropriations of any one governmental fund type: however, afier the
original public hearing, operating and capital budgets of proprietary fund
types may be increased by resolution without an additional hearing.

Annual budgets for the General Fund, all Special Revenue Funds, all Debt
Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds were legally adopted by the City
and are prepared on the modified-accrual method of accounting. Although
Utah State law requires the initial preparation of budgets for all City funds
(both governmental and proprletaryg it only requires the reporting of actual
versus such budgets for governmental funds.

Tax revenues

Property taxes are collected by the Utah County Treasurer and remitted to
the City in two to three installments in December, January, and a final
gettlement generally in March of the calendar vear. Taxes are levied and are
due and payable on November 1st and delinquent after November 30% of
each year at which time they become liens if not paid. An accrual of
uncollected current and prior vear's property taxes beyvond those received
within 60 days after the fiscal year end has not been made, as the amounts
are not deemed to be material.

Sales taxes are collected by the Utah State Tax Commission and remitted to
the City monthly. An accrual has been made for all taxes received by the
State for the period ended June 30t and thus due and payable to the City.

Franchise taxes are charged to various utility companies doing business
within the City including telephone, cable television, gas utility, and electric
utility companies. The fees are remitted on a monthly, quarterly, or annual
basis. Again an accrual has been made for all fees due and payable to the
City at June 30th.
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Detailed notes for all funds
A. Deposits and investments

The City’s deposits and investment activities are governed by the Utah
Money Management Act (I/tah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7) and rules of the
State of Utah Money Management Council.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the City’s deposits may not be recovered. The Money Management
Act requires deposits be in a qualified depository. The Act defines a qualified
depository as any financial institution whose deposits are insured by an
agency of the federal government and which has been certified by the State
Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the
Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council.

The deposits in the bank in excess of the insured amount are uninsured and
uncollateralized. Deposits are not collateralized nor are they required to be
by state statute. As of June 30, 2008, $5,345,867 of the City’s bank balance
of $5,908,675 1s exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and
uncollateralized. The carrying amount of the deposits at June 30, 2008 is
$2,540,903.

Investments

The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as
appropriate Investments and the conditions for making investment
transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted only through
qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of investment
securities.

The Act authorizes investments in hboth negotiable and nonnegotiable
deposits of qualified depositories and permitted negotiable depositories;
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is
classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations, one of which must be Moody's Investors Services or Standard
& Poor’s; bankers’ acceptances:! obligations of the United States Treasury
including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage derivative
products, issued by U.S. government sponsored enterprises FU.S. Agencies)
such as the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddie Mac), Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie
Mae), and Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie Mae); bonds, notes,
and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State: fixed
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)

A. Deposits and investments (continued)

Investments (continued)
rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher, or
the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating

organizations; and shares or certificates in a money market mutual fund as
defined in the Act.

The City’s investments at June 30, 2008 are presented below:

Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6 - 10 Than 10

Debt Securities
Utah Public Treasurer's

Investment Fund $ 36,477,573 5 36,477,573 8 - $ - ks
Zions Bank Liquid Asset

Management Fund 5,043,107 5,043,107 -
Corporate Notes 2,000,000 1,500,000 500,000
U.S. Treasuries 1,414,534 1,414,534 -
Total Debt Securities $ 44,935,214 % 44,435,214 5 300,000 & - 8

Interest Rate Risk - Investments
Interest rate risk 1s the risk that changes in interest rates of debt
investments will adversely affect the fair value of an investment,

The City’s policy for managing interest rate risk is to comply with the State’s
Money Management Act. Section 51-7-11 of the Act requires that the
remaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of
availability of the funds to be invested. The Act further limits the remaining
term to maturity on all investments in commercial paper, bankers
acceptances, fixed rate negotiable deposits, and fixed rate corporate
obligations to 270-365 days or less. In addition, variable rate negotiable
deposits and variable rate securities may not have a remaining term to ﬁnal
maturity exceeding two yvears.

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment
will not fulfill its obligations. The City follows the Money Management Act
as previously discussed as its policy for reducing exposure to investment
credit risk.
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)

A. Deposits and investments (continued)

Credit Risk of Debt Securities (continued)
The City’s debt investments ratings at June 30, 2008 are presented below:

Quality Ratings

Fair
Rated Debt Investments Value AAA AA A Unrated

Debt Sceurities
Utah Public Treasurer's

Investment Fund % 36,477,573 & - % - % - % 36,477,573
Zions Bank liquid Asset

Management Fund 5,043,107 5,043,107
Corporate Notes 2,000,000 2,000,000 - -
U.8. Treasuries 1,414,534 - - - 1,414,534
Total Debt Securities 5 44,935,214 8 7.043,107 % -8 - F 37,892,107

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure
of the counter party, the City will not be able to recover the value of the
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The City does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.

Most of the City’s investments at June 30, 2008 were with the Utah Public
Treasurer’s Investment Fund and therefore, are not categorized as to
custodial credit rigk. The investments in the Zions Bank Liquid Asset
Management Fund and the corporate notes do have custodial credit risk
exposure. Of the $7,043,107 invested, $2,200,894 of the related securities are
uninsured, unregistered and held by the City’s investment firm which 1s also
the underlying issuer for these particular securities.

Additional information regarding the Utah Public Treasurer's Investment
Fund and Zions Bank Liquid Asset Management Fund is available in
footnote 4.B. of these notes to the financial statements.

The investment in U.S. Treasuries represent amounts held in various bond
trust funds.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments ‘
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude of
a government’s investment in a single issuer.
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Detailed notes for all funds {continued)

A. Deposits and investments (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments (continued)

The City’s policy for reducing this risk of loss is to comply with the Rules of
the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council
limits investments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate
obligations to between 5 and 10 percent depending upon the total dollar
amount held in the portfolio. The Money Management Council limitations do
not apply to securities issued by the U.S. government and its agencies.

Most of the City’s investments at June 30, 2008 were with the Utah Public
Treasurer’s Investment Fund and therefore, are not categorized as to
concentration of credit risk.

Amounts invested directly in Zions Bank securities either as corporate notes
or as securities within the Liquid Asset Management Fund total $2,200,894
(5.06%) which falls within the acceptable percentage range for a single issuer.

Additional information regarding the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment
Fund and Zions Bank Taquid Asset Management Fund is available in
footnote 4.B. of these notes to the financial statemenis.

B. External investment pools

Public Treasurers Investment Fund (PTIF)

The City invests in this external investment pool which is administered by
the Treasurer of the State of Utah. State agencies, municipalities, counties,
and local governments within the state are allowed to invest in the PTIF.
There 1s no required participation and no minimum balance or
minimum/maximum transaction requirements.

The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The
PTIF 1s authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act, Chapter
51-7, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended. The Act establishes the
Money Management Council which oversees the activities of the State
Treasurer and the PTIF. The Act details the investments that are
authorized, which are high-grade securities, and therefore, there is very little
credit risk except in the most unusual and unforeseen circumstances.

Deposits in the PTTF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of
Utah and participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on
investments.
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)

B. External investment pools (continued)

Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF) (continued)

The PTIF allocates income and issues statements on a monthly basis. The
PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The
participants’ balance is their investment deposited in the PTIF plus their
share of income, gains and losses, net of administration fees, which are

allocated to each participant on the ratio of each participant’s share to the
total funds in the PTIF.

Twice a year, at June 30 and December 31, the investments are valued at fair
value to enable participants to adjust their investments in this pool at fair
value. The Bank of New York and the State of Utah separately determine
each security’s fair value in accordance with GASB 31 (i.e. for almost all pool
investments the quoted market price as of June 30, 2008) and then compare
those values to come up with an agreed upon fair value of the securities.

As of June 30, 2008, the City had $36,477,573 invested in the PTIF which
had a fair value of $36,366,389 for an unrealized loss of $111,184. Due to the
insignificance of this amount in relation to the funds affected by the
unrealized loss, the fair value of investments in this external investment pool
15 deemed to be the amortized cost of the investment.

The table below shows statistical information about the investment pool:

Investment

Investment Type Percentage
Corporate Bonds and Notes 90.23 %
Money Market Accounts and Certificates of Deposit 7.39 %
U.8. Government Securities 2.38%
Total 100.00 %

Zions Bank Liguid Asset Managsement Fund (LAM)

The City invests in this external investment pool which is administered by
the Investment Management and Capital Markets Division of Zions
Bancorporation. The required minimum balance is $5,000,000. There are no
minimum/maximum transaction requirements.

The LAM is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The
LAM is a registered investment advisor and is certified by the Utah Money
Management Council. The Utah Money Management Act details the
imvestments that are authorized, which are high-grade securities, and
therefore, there is very little credit risk except in the most unusual and
unforeseen circumstances.

-64-



City of Orem
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Detailed notes for all funds (continued)

B. External investment pools (continued)

Zions Bank Liguid Asset Management Fund (LAM) (continued)

Deposits in the LAM are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by Zions Bank.

The LAM issues statements on a monthly basis. [t operates and reports on
an amortized cost basis. The LAM balance is the City's investment plus
income and gains less losses and administration fees.

As of June 30, 2008, the City had $5,043,107 invested in the LAM which had
a fair value of $5,039,076 for an unrealized loss of $4,031. Due to the
insignificance of this amount in relation to the funds affected by the
unrealized loss, the fair value of investments in this external investment pool
1s deemed to be the amortized cost of the investment.

The table below shows statistical information about the investment pool:

Investment

Investment Type Percentage
Corporate Bonds and Notes 81.76 %
U.S. Government Securities 9.95 %
Money Market Accounts and Certificates of Deposit 8.29 %
Tuatal 100.00 %

C. Customer Deposits

Enterprise fund deposits are deposits the City requires from residential or
business customers who are receiving a utility connection but have a
bankruptey on record. The deposit is refundable after 2 years of satisfactory
payment history.

D. Loans receivable - CDB@G and EDA loans

The City uses monies from the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) program to create housing rehabilitation and business
redevelopment loans. Additional funds from the Economic Development
Agency (EDA) and the Utah Revolving Loan Fund are used to supplement
the business redevelopment loan program. The principal balance of the loans
at June 30, 2008, as summarized below, has been shown 1n the government-
wide statement of net assets as follows:

Housing rehabilitation loans $ 408,440
Total F 408,440
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)

E. Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the government’s individual major funds, as
well as nonmajor and internal service funds in the aggregate, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Special Assessmonts
Accounts
NDue from Other Funds
Subtotal - General

Capital Projecta:
Intergovernmental

Water:
Accounts

Water Reclamation:
Accounts

Storm Sewer:
Accounts

Nonmajor Funds:
Other Taxes
Accounts
Naotes Receivable

Subtotal - Nonmajor

Tatales

Allowance for Net Taotal
Receivable Uncollectiblesa Receivables

& 4,341,572 & - & 4,341,572
4,672,109 - 4,672,109
8,654,128 - 5,634,128
78,406 (862) 77.644
400,004 - 400,004
18,128,219 (B62) 18,125,357
586,150 - 586,150
719,717 (7.437) 712,280
484,158 (3,018) 479,140
169,061 (2,194) 166,867
305,987 - 305,987
316,168 (3,638) 312,532
408,440 - 408,440
1,030,595 (3,636) 1,026,959

$ 21,115,900 i {19,147)

B 21,096,753

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables
for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of
the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue
and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Property tax receivahle (general fund)

Donations and other funds to be used for specific programs

(general fund)

Grant money used in revolving loan programs

(special ravenue fand)

Special assessments not yet due (gencral fund)

Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds
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k $ 4,341,372
883,704
- 727,211
8,634,128 608,993
$ 8,634,128 $ 6,561,480
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)

F. Capital assets

Governmental activities capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,

2008 was as [ollows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increascs Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not heing depreciated:
Land §  5B,784,875 & 222,345 8§ $ 59,007,220
Construction in progress 4,344,751 3,881,074 (6,085,997 2,135,828
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 63,129,626 4,103,419 (6,089,997) 61,143,048
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and systems 27,058,468 144,053 (59,731) 27,142,790
lmprovements other than huildings 26,920,397 182,798 27,103,195
Machinery and equipment 14,083,193 1,726,940 (177,718) 15,632,415
Infrastrueture 93,332,952 8,968,032 102,300,984
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 161,395,010 11,021,823 (237,440) 172,179,384
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and systems {9,465,278) {960,9235) 59,731 (10,366,472)
Improvements other than buildings {9,072,925) {1,186,756) (10,259,681)
Machinery and equipment (9,170,071) (1,284,872) 160,181 (10,294,762)
Infrastructure {36,940,063) (2,614,722 (39,554,785)
Total accumulated depreciation (64,648,337) (6.047,275) 219,912 (70,475,700)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 96,746,673 4,974,548 {17,637 101,703,684
Governmental activities eapital assets, net § 159,876,299 8% 9077967 8§ (6,107,534) $ 1628467352
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)

F. Capital assets (continued)

Business-type activities capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,
2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Deereases Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land ¢ 891,439 & -8 - § 891,439
Construction in progress 16,630,827 - (14,272,630 2,358,197
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 17,524,266 - (14,272,630) 3,249,836
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and systems 9,693,486 - - 9,693,486
Improvements other than buildings 2,576,284 9,063,779 - 11,640,063
Machinery and equipment 5,811,874 563,281 {124,353) 6,260,800
Infrastructure 87,949,968 11,146,215 - 99,096,183
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 166,031,612 20,773,275 {124,353) 126,680,532
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and systems (3,907,132) (22.635) - (5,929,767)
Improvements other than buildings (1,058,315} (478 666) - (1,536,981}
Machinery and cquipment (4,208,000} (338,202) 124,355 (4,421,847)
Infrastructurc (44,154,364} (2,223,119 - {46,377,483)
Total accumulated depreciation (55,327.811) (3,062,622 124,355 (58,266,078)
Total capital assets, heing depreciated, net 50,703,801 17,710,653 - 68,411,454

Business-type activities capital assets, net & 68,226,067 S 17,710,653 ¢ (14,272,630) 8 71,664,090
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)
F. Capital assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:

Covernmental Activities:

General Government 8 196,240
Public Safety 1,124,611
Highway and Strocts 3,207,773
Parks, Recreation and Arts 1,403,166
Redevelopment 15,581
Eeonomic and Physical Development 83,240

Capital assets held by the government's internal

service funds are charged to various functions
based on their usage of the asscts 16,664
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 6,047,275

Business-type Activitios:

Water 8 1,468,682
Water Reclamation ’ 1,061,720
Storm Scwer 418,468
Recrcation 20,771
Street Lighting 23,981
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities § 3,082,622

Construction commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2008. The projects
include street construction in areas with newly developed housing, widening
and construction of existing streets and sidewalks, water, water reclamation,
and storm sewer system improvements, new construction and improvements
to various public facilities, and improvements and additions to parks and
recreation facilities. At year-end, the City's commitments with contractors
are as follows:

Spent-to- Remaining

Project DNate Commitment
Water Systems [mprovements & 1,347,395 8 4,118,174
Street Construction and Improvements 2,471,521 2,263,993
Publie Facility Construction & Improvements 307,247 877,789
Water Reclamation Improvements 98.370 441,793
Storm Sewer Improvements - 94,484
Park and Recreation Improvements 183,350 27,788

Total £ 4,408,083 g 7,824,021
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F. Capital assets (continued)

Diseretely presented component unit
Activity for the Commission for Economic Development in Orem (CEDQ) for
the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital asscts, not being depreciated:
Land $ 15,000 - - B 15,000
Tatal capital assets, not being depreciated: 15,000 - - 15,000
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 199,100 - - 199,100
Impravements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment - - -
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 199,100 - - 199,100
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (89,168} (8,458) - (7,626}
Improvements cther than buildings - - -
Machinery and equipment
Tatal accumulated depreciation (89,168} (8,458) - (97,626)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 109,932 (8,158) - 101,474
CEDO capital assets, net ¥ 124,932 5 (8438 3 - % 116,474

G. Interfund receivable, payables and transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Due to/from other funds

Loans have been made between funds and are reflected as “due to, due from”
on the respective funds’ Balance Sheet (governmental funds) andfor
Statement of Net Assets (business-type funds) are as follows:
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G. Interfund receivable, payables and transfers (continued)

Due to/from other funds (continued)

Receivable Fund  Pavable Fund Amount
General Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 400,004
Total 8 400,004

The outstanding balances between funds are primarily due to the time lag
between the dates that (1) inferfund good and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the

accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers

Transfers between funds occur primarily to finance programs accounted for in
one fund with resources collected in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations. Interfund transfers for the yvear ended June 30, 2008 are as

follows:
in Out

Major Funds:
General 1,493,254 4,011,107
Capital Projeets Fund 310,000 1,611,114
Water Fund 104,371 16,6560
Water Reclamation Fund - 92,046
Storm Sewer Fund 48,824 62,550
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,859,229 1,430,543
Nonmajor Entcrprise Funds 1,084,968 30,811
Internal Service Funds - 645,825
7,900,646 7,900,646
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)
H. Jointly governed organizations

The City in conjunction with other governmental entities, jointly governs
several organizations, Each organization's board is Lomprlsed of one member
from each participating entity. Except for customary fees, no participant has
any obligations, entitlement or residual interest. A brief description of the
City's relationship with each organization follows:

Utah Risk Management Mutual Association (URMMA) - The City provides
for its general liability risks and worker's compensation through a joint
protection agreement with URMMA. During the year ended June 30, 2008,
the City paid premiums of approximately $244,000 to URMMA.

Utah County Solid Waste Special Service District (UCSWSSD) - The City
disposes of its solid waste through an agreement with UCSWSSD, which
operates a solid waste transfer station. During the yvear ended June 30,

2008, the City paid solid waste tipping fees of approximately §953,000 to
UCSWSSD.

Utah Telecommunication Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA) — UTOPIA
was formed under the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act by its 18 founding
cities, of which, the City of Orem is a member. This agency has the
aqglgnment to deblgn finance, build, operate and maintain a fiber-to-home
and fiber-to-business fiber optic communication network. UTOPIA will build
the infrastructure but private companies will deliver the services over the
network. During the year ended June 30, 2008, the City paid 578,482 to
UTOPIA to pay for interest and fees associated with the current bond
outstanding as well as costs associated with the refinancing of these bonds.
See footnote 5.B. (Other information, contingent liabilities) for additional
information.

North Utah Valley Animal Services Special Service District (NUVAS) - The
City, through agreement, delivers stray, homeless, endangered, injured or
other animals to the district's shelter facility. NUVAS 1s charged with
identifying and/or locating the animal’s rightful owner. Personnel of the
district also evaluate, house, treat and/or humanely dispose of any animal
brought to them by the City. NUVAS also handles all licensing and licensing
renewals. During the yvear ended June 30, 2008, the City paid participation
fees of approximately $94,000 to NUVAS.
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I. Capital Leases

The City has entered into certain lease agreements under which the related

equipment will become the property of the City when the terms of the lease
agreement are met.

All City lease contracts contain a fiscal non-funding clause that allows the
City Council the option of terminating the lease agreement at the end of any

fiscal year. In the opinion of City management, the likelihood of this clause
being exercised 1s remote.

The following is a schedule, by year, of future minimum lease payments of all

capital leases as well as the present value of the net minimum lease
pavments as of June 30, 2008:

Governmental Business-tvpe
Year ending June 30, Activities Activitiss
2009 $ 89,715 3 20,315
2010 36,458 1,563
2011 19,509 -
2012 -
Therealier
Total minimuim lease payments 145,682 21,878
Less? Amount representing interest (5,283) (667
Present value of net minimum lease payments % 110,399 F 21,211

Equipment and related accumulated depreciation under capital leases is as
follows:

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities
Cost of equipment $ 204270 % 52,829
Accumulated Depreciation (37.166) (17,302)
Difference & 257,104 % 33,027

J. Long-term debt

General obligation bonds

The City 1ssues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition
and construction of major capital projects. All general obligation bonds
1ssued are for governmental activities. The original amount of general
obligation bonds 1ssued in prior years was $29,125,000.
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J. Long-term debt (continued)

General obligation bonds {continued)

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and
credit of the government.

General obligation bonds currently outstanding at June 30, 2008 are as
follows:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Governmental activities:
1998 Road Construction 5.25% to 5.409% $ 3,125,000
2004 Road Construction-Refunding 3.00% to 4.00% 3,580,000
2005 Road Construction 3.50% to 5.00% 8,100,000
2006 Road Construction 3.63% to 5.00% 5,155,000
Total $ 19,960,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above reflected general
obligation debt is as follows:

Year Ended CGovernmental Activities
June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2009 $ 1,095,000 8 834,274 $ 1929274
2010 1,150,000 793,054 1,943,004
2011 1,200,000 749,039 1,949,039
2012 1,245,000 701,722 1,946,722
2013 1,305,000 650,072 1,955,072
2014-2018 6,930,000 2,370,528 9,300,528
2019-2023 4,895,000 1,075,709 5,970,709
2024-2027 2,140,000 108,250 2,248 250
Totals $ 19,960,000 & 7,282,648 $ 27,242 648

Revenue bonds
The City has the following revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2008:

Water Quality Revenue Bonds

In April of 1994, the City entered into an agreement to issue
revenue bonds through the Utah State Department of Water
Quality of up to $3,500,000. As of June 30, 1997, the City had
1ssued $3,100,000 of such bonds. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998 the City issued the remaining $400,000. The
proceeds of the honds were used to construct facilities at the
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Detailed notes for all funds (continued)
J. Long-term debt (continued)

Revenue bonds (continued)

Water Quality Revenue Bonds (continued)

Water Reclamation Plant. The terms of the bond contract
require principal and interest payable annually on February 1 of
each year commencing February 1, 1995 through February
2015. Payments on the bonds are paid from sewer charges to
customers. The interest rate 1s fixed at 3.5%.

Lease Revenue Bonds - Series 2000

In September of 2000, the City issued lease revenue bonds of
$7,985,000 through private placement for the completion of a
street lighting project. Payments on the bonds are paid from
utility charges to customers. The terms of the bond contract
require principal payable annually commencing March 15, 2002
with interest payvable semi-annually on September 15 and
March 15 of each yvear commencing March 15, 2001 through
September 15, 2010. The interest rate varies between 4.45%
and 5.5%.

Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds — Series 2001

In October of 2001, the City issued lease revenue refunding
bonds of $5,345,000 through private placement that were placed
in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources
for all future debt service payments of related defeased
liabilities. The terms of the bond contract require principal
payable annually commencing June 15, 2002 with interest
payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 through
June 2011. The interest rate varies between 2.50% and 4.50%.

Canyon River SID Bonds — Series 2001

In October of 2001, the City issued Canyon River special
mprovement district bonds of $3,680,000 through private
placement for the improvement of property. Payments on the
bonds are paid from assessments levied against the property. In
the event a deficiency exists because of unpaid or delinquent
special assessments at the time a debt service payment is due,
the City must provide resources to cover the deficiency until
other resources are received. The terms of the bond contract
require principal payable annually and interest payable semi-
annually commencing March 2002 through June 2016. The
Interest rate varies between 4.59% and 5.00%.
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Detailed notes for all funds {(continued)
J. Long-term debt (continued)

Revenue bonds {continued)

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds — Series 2002

In February of 2002, the City issued sales tax lease revenue
bonds of $12,175,000 through private placement for completion
of recreation projects. Payments on the bonds are paid from
sales tax. The terms of the bond contract require semi-annual
payments through April 2023. The terms of the bond contract
require principal payable annually commencing April 15, 2003
with interest payable semi-annually commencing October 15,
2002 and April 15, 2003, respectively, through April 2023. The
interest rate varies between 3.00% and 5.50%.

Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series 2005 A

In March of 2005, the City issued revenue bonds of $17,390,000
through private placement for completion of improvements to
the city’s water and storm sewer systems. The terms of the bond
contract require principal payable annually commencing July
15, 2006 with interest payable semi-annually commencing
January 15, 2006 through July 2025. The interest rate varies
between 3.50% and 5.25%.

Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds — Series 2005 B

In March of 2005, the City entered into an agreement to issue
revenue bonds through the Utah State Department of Drinking
Water of up to $3,000,000. The City issued an additional
£1,710,000 in the current fiscal year. As of June 30, 2008, the
City had issued $2,950,000 of such bonds. The proceeds of the
bonds are to be used for the completion of improvements to the
city’s water and storm sewer systems. The terms of the bond
contract require principal pavable annually commencing July
15, 2006 with interest payable semi-annually commencing
January 15, 2006 through July 2025. The interest rate is fixed
at 1.48%.

Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds — Series 2007

In January of 2007, the City issued lease revenue refunding
honds of $3,826,000 through private placement. The proceeds
were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future debt service payments of related
defeased liabilities. The terms of the bond contract require
principal payable annually commencing March 15, 2007 with
interest payable semi-annually on March 15 and September 15
through March 2018. The interest rate is 3.761%.
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J. Long-term debt (continued)

Revenue bonds (continued)

Refunding Sales Tax Revenue Bonds — Sertes 2007

In October of 2007, the City issued sales tax revenue refunding
bonds of $5,720,000 through private placement. The proceeds
were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating
resources for all future debt service payments of related
defeased liabilities. The terms of the bond contract require
principal payable annually commencing April 15, 2009 with
interest payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15
through April 2023. The interest rate varies between 3.80% and
5.00%.

Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds — Series 2008

In March of 2008, the City issued revenue bonds of $5,5690,000
through private placement for completion of improvements to
the city’s water and storm sewer systems. The terms of the bond
contract require principal pavable annually commencing July
15, 2009 with interest payable semi-annually on January 15 and
July 15 through July 2028. The interest rate varies between
3.25% and 5.25%.,

Current vear advance refunding

In 2008, the City issued $5,720,000 of sales tax revenue refunding bonds.
The funds were placed in a trust for the purpose of generating resources to
pay the remaining outstanding principal balance at April 15, 2015 of the
Series 2002 sales tax revenue bonds. The amount to be paid at April 15,
2015 iz $5,515,000. As a result, this amount of Series 2002 sales tax revenue
bonds are considered defeased and the liability has been removed from the
governmental activities column of the statement of net assets. The
reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by
$235,946. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized
over the remaining life of the refunded debt. The advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 15 1/2 years
by $205,550 and resulted in an economic gain of $151,404.

Prior vear advance refunding

In 2007, the City issued $3,826,000 of municipal building authority lease
revenue refunding bonds. The funds were placed in a trust for the purpose of
generating resources to pay the remaining outstanding principal balance at
September 15, 2010 of the Series 2000 municipal building authority lease
revenue bonds. The amount to be paid at September 15, 2010 1s $3,520,000.
As a result, this amount of Series 2000 municipal building authority Tease
revenue bonds are considered defeased and the liability has been removed
from the governmental activities column of the statement of net assets. The
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J. Long-term debt (continued)

Prior year advance refunding (continued)

reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by
$250,800. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized
over the remaining life of the refunded debt. The advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 11 years by
$208,615 and resulted in an economic gain of $173,645.

Revenue bonds currently outstanding at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount

Governmental Activities:

Recreation Projects 3.00%-5.50% & 9,985,000

Bond Refunding 2.50%-4.50% 5,453,000

Property Improvement 5.00% 2,675,000

Street Lighting 4.45%5.50% 1,890,000
Business-type Activities:

Water and Storm Sewer 1.48%-5,25% 24,543,000

Wastewater Treatment 3.50% 1,505,757

Total $ 46,051,757

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above reflected revenue
bond debt 1s as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Totals
2009 F 1,981,000 % 884,097 § 928.000 § 1,060,148 § 4,853,245
2010 2,077,000 798,744 1,016,000 1,074,215 4,965,959
2011 1,883,000 706,161 1,060,000 1,040,965 4,690,126
2012 1,574,600 619,245 1,105,000 1,004,447 4,302,692
2013 1,671,000 537,286 1,139,000 964,662 4,311,948
2014-2018 9,202,000 1,493,876 5,659,757 4,193,011 20,448,647
2019-2023 1,615,000 173,893 6,318,000 2,951,364 11,058,257
2024-2028 - - 7,383,000 1,327,786 8,710,786
2029-2029 - - 1,540,000 40,425 1,680,425

Totals $ 20,003,000 % 5,213,302 F 26,048,757 $ 13,657,026 $ 64,922,085
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J. Long-term debt (continued)

Notes pavable

Notes payable currently outstanding at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Purpose Interest Rates Amaount
Governmental Activities:
Interim Warrant - Parking Garage Variable $ 3,251,386
Interim Warrant - Building Variable 2,627,959
HUD Section 108 Loan -

Economic Development Variable 1,254,930
Land Purchase - Park 6.00% 300,332
Land Purchase - Fire Station 5.50% 61,667

Total $ 7,476,274

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above reflected notes
pavable is as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Activities
June 30, Principal Interest Totals

2009 3 6,002,042 3 339,242 $ 6,341,284
2010 67,019 79,072 146,091
2011 68,068 75,397 143,465
2012 69,182 71,658 140,840
2013 70,365 87,850 138,215

2014-2018 427 288 275,737 703,025

2019-2023 482 380 147,513 629,393

2024-2027 289,930 30,713 320,643
Totals $  7.476,274 $ 1,087,182 § 8,583,456

Changes in long-term liabilities ‘

Changes in bonds payable, deferred bond premiums, capital leases, and
compensated absences during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 are as
follows:
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J. Long-term debt (continued)

Changes in long-term liabilities (continued}

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
Ceeneral obligation bonds $ 21,025,000 ¢ - % (1,065,0000 § 19,960,000 § 1,095,000
Revenue bonds 21,673,000 3,720,000 (7,390,000 206,003,000 1,981,000
Plus issuance premiums 297,476 169,576 (24,490) 442,562 27,682
Less deferred amounts:
On refunding {429 826) (575,386) 109,355 (695,857) (118,418)
Total bonds payable 42 565,650 5,514,190 (8,370,133} 39,709,705 2,087,264
Notes payable 6,396,631 1,400,593 {320,950 7,476,274 6,002,042
Capital leases 124,186 90,783 (74,569} 140,400 85,719
Compensated absences 1,506,362 396,130 {185,700) 1,736,792 1,610,298
Governmental activities
Long-term liabilities $ 50,592,820 ¢ 7,401,896 5 (8,931,354) § 49,063,171 S 10,685,323
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds $ 19642757 % 7,500,000 3 (894000} 8 26,048,737 & 928,000
Plus issuance premiums 686,540 79,918 (39,024} 727,434 41,808
Total bonds pavable 20,329,297 7,379,918 {933,024) 26,776,191 969,808
Capital leases 39,834 - (18,624} 21,210 19,654
Compensated absences 188,025 75,210 (40,808) 222,127 209,860
Busimess-type activities
Long-term liabilities $ 20,557,156 § 7,455,128 § (992,456) § 27019828 5§ 1,199,322

Compensated absences

City employees earn vacation based upon the employee’s vears of service.
Employees, upon termination, may be paid up to forty-two days of earned
vacation. Amounts of vacation vested and not paid have been accrued as a
liability at June 30, 2008. The General Fund has typically been used in prior
years to liquidate this liability for governmental funds.

Of total compensated absences, %42,718 has been recorded in the Self -
insurance Internal Service Fund. This liability relates to an old City benefit
policy. On June 30, 1981, employees had their accumulated hours of vacation
and sick leave frozen in a vacation and sick leave bank. Upon separation
from service for any cause, an emplovee shall be paid 100% of their vacation
bank and 50% of their sick leave bank. The total liability will not increase,
but only decrease as the related employees retire or separate from service.
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Other information
A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets: errors and omissions: injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. The City maintains a Self-insurance Fund to account for
and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under this program, the Self-
imsurance Fund provides coverage up to $400,000 for each worker's
compensation claim. Third party insurance provides coverage for claims
between $400,000 and $1,000,000. The Self-insurance Fund would provide
coverage for the portion of any individual claim that exceeded $1,000,000.
The Self-insurance fund also provides coverage up to $15,000 for general
liability and $10,000 for property damage. The City is insured through the
Utah Risk Management Mutual Association (URMMA) for liability and
claims 1n excess of coverage provided by the Self-insurance Fund for Lability
and property claims. While URMMA pays for any liability and property
claims exceeding the deductible amount, these claims are repaid by the City
through a recapture program. Thus, each year the City pays its annual
premium plus a recapture component. The City is insured by Midwest
Employers’ Company for worker’'s compensation claims in excess of coverage
provided by the Self-insurance Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded such
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

All Funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the
Self-insurance Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior
and current year claims. Estimates of incurred but not reported claims,
which are reported but not settled do not represent a material amount and,
therefore, have not been accrued at year end. The activity in worker's
compensation claims (all retained risk) for the years ended June 30, 2007 and
2008 1s as follows:

Year ended June 30, 2007 2008
Claim liability, beginning of year $ -8

Claims incurred during the year 264,060 164,898
Changes in estimates of claims of prior periods - 179,742
Payments on claims during the year (264,060) {164,808
Other - -
Claim liabihty, end of year b - % 179,742

B. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any
disallowed claims including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable fund. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may
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Other information (continued)
B. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the
City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits 1s not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's counsel
the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition of the City.

The City is a member of Utah Telecommunication Open Infrastructure
Agency (UTOPIA), an interlocal, nonprofit agency. UTOPIA was formed
under the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act by its 18 founding cities, of which
the City is one of the eleven pledged members. This agency has the
assignment to design, finance, build, operate and maintain a fiber-to-home
and fiber-to-business fiber optic communication network. UTOPIA will build
the infrastructure but private companies will deliver the services over the
neiwork. UTOPIA acts as the wholesaler, not the retailer. In July 2004,
UTOPIA issued an $85,000,000 revenue bond. In June 2008, UTOPIA issued
$185,000,000 in new revenue bonds to pay and cancel the 2004 revenue
bonds, pay and cancel other related debt, pay outstanding unfunded
construction commitments, provide two vears of capitalized interest and LOC
payments, provide approximately $10,000,000 in operational and
construction funds, and to pay the costs of issuing the 2008 bonds. The 2008
revenue bonds have principal payments due quarterly commencing on
September 1, 2010 through June 1, 2040 and interest payments due monthly
commencing on July 1, 2008 through June 1, 2040. Net revenues from the
communication network will reimburse a debt service reserve fund for
payments on the bond debt. To the extent that there are insufficient net
revenues to pay the debt service, the eleven pledged members are required to
reimburse the UTOPIA debt service reserve fund of any shortfall by their
respective percentages up to a specific dollar amount. The City’'s vearly
hability limit, prior to the refinance, was set at a maximum of $2,189,704. In
relation to this yearly liability limit, the City was required on July 2, 2007 to
deposit $2,061,527 with the trustee (the trustee already held $128,177 from
an initial deposit made in 2004) as its pledge amount for Fiscal Year 2008.
The City’s vearly liability limit will increase by 18.05% or $395,385 to a new
liability limit of $2,585,089 for Fiscal Year 2009 due to the terms of the
refinancing with an annual increase not to exceed 2%. It is expected that
interest earnings on the City’s original pledged amount will cover the
increase 1n the liability limit. The current estimated cost to construct the

fiber optic network in all member cities is estimated to total approximately
$410,000,000.
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C. Conduit debt obligations

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRB's) to
provide financial assistance to private sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public
interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable
solely from payments received on underlying mortgage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the
private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. The City, the State, or any
political subdivision thereof is not obligated in any manner for repayment of
the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2008, there are three series of Industrial Revenue Bonds
1ssued and outstanding. The aggregate principal amount payable could not
be determined; however, their original issue amounts totaled $9.715 million,
comprising of the following issues:

Original Tssue

Organization Maturity Principal Amount
Utah Valley State College - 1991 November 2008 4,205,000
Albertsons - 1993 November 2008 1,110,000
Utah Valley State College - 1991 November 2011 4,400,000
Total $ 9,715,000

D. Employee retirement systems and pension plans

Plan description

The City contributes to the Local Governmental Contributory Retirement
System, Local Governmental Noncontributory Retirement System, Public
Safety Contributory Retirement System, Public Safety Noncontributory
Retirement System, and the Fire Fighters Retirement System, (hereafter
referred to cumulatively as the Systems) which are cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the Utah Retirement
Systems (URS). The Systems provide retirement benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments, death henefits, and refunds to plan members and
beneficiaries in accordance with retirement statues.

The Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of
Chapter 49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Utah State
Retirement Office Act in Chapter 49 provides for the administration of the
Systems under the direction of the Utah State Retirement Board (Board)
whose members are appointed by the Governor. URS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Systems.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

Other information (continued)
D. Employee retirement systems and pension plans (continued)

Plan description {continued)

A copy of the report may be obtained by writing to the Utah Retirement
Systems, 540 East 200 South, Salt Lake City, UT 84102 or by calling 1-800-
365-8772.

Funding policy

Plan members in the Local Governmental Contributory Retirement System
are required to contribute 6.00% of their annual covered salary (all or part
may be paid by the employer for the employee) and the City is required to
contribute 7.61% of their annual covered salary.

In the Local Governmental Noncontributory Retirement System the City is
required to contribute 11.62% of their annual covered salary. In the Public
Safety Contributory Retirement System division members are required to
contribute 10.50% of their annual covered salary (all or part may be paid by
the employer for the employee) and the City is required to contribute 15.69%
of their annual covered salary. In the Pubhic Safety Noncontributory
Retirement System the City is required to contribute 25.49% of their annual
covered salary. In the Firefighters Retirement System plan members are
required to contribute 9.30% of their annual covered salary (all or part may
be paid by the employer for the employee) and the City 1s not required to
contribute. The contribution rates are the actuarially determined rates. The
contribution requirements of the Systems are authorized by statute and
specified by the Board.

The City's contributions in dollars to each of the Systems for the years ending
June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, were equal to the required contributions for
each year. The contribution amounts are as follows:

IMscal Year Ending June 30,

2008 2007 2006
Local governmental contributory retirement system & 281,396 § 283,723 § 261,904
Governmental noncontributory retirement system 1,331,067 1,267,954 1,081,775
Public safety contributory retirement system 156,692 188,757 176,002
Public safety noncontributory retirement system 1,038,168 1,017,742 771,696
Firefichters retirement system 297,238 270,149 221,553
Total Contributions S 3,104,561 $ 3,028325 § 2,512,930
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Other information (continued)
D. Employee retirement systems and pension plans (continued)

401(k) defined contribution plan

The City’s 401(k) defined contribution plan is administered by ICMA
Retirement Corporation (ICMA). The payroll covered by the defined
contribution plan for the year ended June 30, 2008 was $25,205,367. The
City's expense for this plan for the year ended June 30, 2008 was
approximately $1,383,000 or 5.13% of the total participants' salary.

The contribution rates were previously fixed by the City Council and the
contributions were remitted on a timely basis. All emplovees are fully vested
for the contributions made by the City.

In the early 1980’s, the City elected to withdraw from the Utah Retirement
Systems (UURS) pension plan and contribute these funds to each employee’s
401(k) account. However, State lawmakers soon mandated that all
employees were required to join the URS except certain classes of employees.
The City Council was allowed to identify which emplovees qualified. They
elected to allow department heads, the City Manager, and City Council
members the option of whether or not to participate in the URS. There are
currently 4 emplovees who have elected to not participate in the URS.

457 deferred compensation plan

The deferred compensation plan was created in 1981 as a Social Security
replacement program for the employees of the City. The deferred
compensation is not available to emplovees until termination, retirement,
death, or unforeseeable emergency. The City participates in four plans. The
assets assoclated with these plans are not included in the bhasic financial
statements, as they are not legal assets of the City.

All elected officials and permanent employees may also elect to participate in
the City's deferred compensation plan and all temporary employees are
required to participate in a deferred compensation plan. Under this plan,
participants defer a percentage of their compensation up to 7.5% for
executive management personnel and up to 5.5% for all other employees
(except for the City Manager, whose participation in the plan is determined
through negotiation with the City Council, and employees required to pay
Medicare insurance premiums) for employees hired prior to March 1986. For
those hired after March 1986 the percentage is 6.0% and 4.0% respectively.

The City matches the amount deferred by the participants, not to exceed the
legal limit. The payroll covered by the deferred compensation plan for the
yvear ended June 30, 2008 was $25,205,367. The City's expense for this plan
for the year ended June 30, 2008 was approximately $1,054,000 or 4.18% of
the total participants' salary. The contribution rates were determined by the
City Council and the contributions were remitted on a timely basis.
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Other information (continued)

E. Segment information for enterprise funds

The City has i1ssued revenue bonds to finance certain improvements to its
culinary water distribution system, water reclamation plant, and storm
sewer system. Because each of these activities is accounted for in separate
funds and all of those funds are reported as major funds in the fund financial
statements, segment disclosures herein are not required.

F. Redevelopment agency of the City of Orem

For the yvear ended June 30, 2008, the following activity occurred in the City’s
Redevelopment Agency:

Tax Increment Collected From Other Taxing Agencies For

The Project Area Tatal

Orem 85-01: Orem Tek Development b 429,381
Orem 85-02: Timpanogos Technological Center 308,392
Orem 85-03A! University Parkway Development 498,610
Orem 85-03B: Umiversity Parkway Development 597,956
Orem 85-04° Economic Zone in Central Orem 224,900
Orem 87-10¢ Boyer Project on Center and State Street 254,584
Orem 90-08: 800 North and State Street Economic Zone 172,726

Tatal $ 2,576,549
Outstanding Loans to Finance RDA Projects $

During the year ending June 30, 2008, the RDA expended monies in the
categories below as follows:

Economic Development 5 1,463,207
Interest :
Total § 1,463,207
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G. Prior period adjustment

Government-wide total net assets, Governmental Funds total fund balances,
and Governmental Non-Major Funds total fund balances

Upon further evaluation of three funds formerly considered to be fiduciary
type funds, the City has concluded, using the criteria from GASB 14 and 39,
that the Senior Citizens’ and Friends of the Library funds should be
recategorized and reported as special revenue funds and that the Orem
Foundation Trust should also be recategorized as a blended component unit
and reported as a special revenue fund. GASB 14 and 39 require a primary
government that is “financially accountable or can significantly influence the
programs, projects, activities, or level of services performed or provided by
the other organization” or that the other organization is "closely related or
financially integrated” to be included within the primary government’s
financial statements. The total effect of this prior period adjustment
increases total net assets and total fund balances by $975,661.
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Combining Financial Statements
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest.

Debt Service Fund — This fund is used to account for all general obligation debt of the
City of Orem. Operating transfers are made from the General Fund to service the debt
payments made by this fund. The source of fund revenue for retiring the general
obligation debt is principally the power of the City to levy general property tax;
however, certain debt is serviced by sales tax and franchise tax revenues.

Municipal Building Authority Debt Service Fund — This fund is used to account for all
lease revenue debt of the Municipal Building Authority of the City of Orem
Corporation. Lease payments are made from the General Fund of the City. The debt
is secured by the value of the underlying property.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Road Bonds — Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for the
improvement, rehabilitation, or construction of new roads throughout the City.

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

CARE Tax Fund — This fund is used to account for the preparation and implementation
of plans to improve, rehabilitate and/or develop cultural arts and recreation facilities
within the City.

Redevelopment Fund — This fund is used to account for the preparation and
implementation of plans to improve, rehabilitate and redevelop blighted areas within
the City.
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Combining Financial Statements
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Community Development & Rehabilitation Fund — This fund is used to account for a
variety of efforts to assist development. It is financed principally by federal
entitlements from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
Community Development Block Grants. Grants and loans are made from this fund to
assist housing rehabilitation, business development, and equipment and services that
aid the indigent, handicapped, elderly, etc.

Friends of the Library Fund — This fund is used to account for the financial
transactions of the Friends of the Orem Public Library, a volunteer group which
supports the Labrary’s collections, services, and programs. The group may also help
with other various community oriented programs as it sees a need. One of the largest
programs funded by this group is the Timpanogos Storytelling Festival.

Orem Foundation Trust Fund — This fund is used to account for the financial
transactions of the Orem Foundation Trust, an approved IRS Section 501{(c)3
charitable organization. All funds received by the trust are used to support and
enhance services and programs provided by the City.

Senior Citizens Fund — This fund is used to account for the financial transactions of
those activities related to the Senior Citizen Friendship Center and its senior citizen
patrons,
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City of Orem

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2008

Debt Service Funds

Capital Projects Funds

Municipal
Building Road
Authority - Bonds
Debt Debt Capital
Serviee Service Total Projects Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 655,990 ¥ 5,717 $ 661,707
Taxes Receivable - - -
Notes Receivable
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Debt Service 2747178 240 2,747,418
Capital Improvement Projects -
Total Assets 3,403, 168 5,957 3,409,125
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrucd Liabilities
Deferred Revenues
Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Restricted for Debt Service and
Capital Improvements 2,747,178 240 2747,418
Unreserved 655,990 5,717 661,707
Total Fund Balances 3,403,168 5,957 3,409,125
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 8 3,403,168 E] 5,957 3 3,409,125

' Includes the Friends of the Library Fund, Orem Foundation Trust Fund, and Senior Citizens Fund.

A summary of these funds can be found on the next page.
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Special Revenue Funds

Community Other Total
Development & Special Nonmajor
CARE Tax Redevelopment Rehabilitation " Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds ' Total Funds
$ 3,068,543 § 1,101,205 % 349,616 & 1,038,758 8 5,550,122 b 6,217,829
305,987 - - 305,987 305,987
- 408,440 - 408,440 408,440
360 - 580 2,747,978
- . 295,665 - 295,665 295,665
3,374,530 1,101,205 1,064,281 1,036,768 6,566,774 5,975,809
153 - 297,159 4,039 31,353 31,353
. 3,685 - 3,685 3,685
727,211 - 727,211 727,211 ‘
1563 - TH8,0565 4,039 762,249 T62,249
296,226 - 296,226 3,043,644
3,374,375 1,101,205 . 1,032,719 4,508,299 6,170,006
3,374,375 1,101,205 296,226 1,032,719 4,804,525 9,213,650
$ 3,374,530 3 1,101,205 % 1,084,281 $ 1,036,758 $ 6,568,774 B 9,975,899

-91-



City of Orem
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Other Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2008

Other Special Revenue Funds

Tatal
Friends Orem Other
of the Foundation Senior Special
Library Trust Citizens Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 892,724 3 5,427 & 138,607 $ 1,036,758
Total Assets 892,724 5,427 138,607 1,036,758
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 2,365 - 1,674 4,039
Accrued Liabilities . - -
Total Liabilities 2.365 - 1,674 4,039
Fund Balances:
Restricted for Debt Service and
Capital Improvements - - - -
Unreserved 390,359 5,427 136,933 1,032,719
Total Fund Balances 890,359 5,427 136,933 1,032,719
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ES 892,724 § 5,427 £ 138,607 S 1,086,738
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City of Orem
Governmental Funds
Fund Balance
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE II

Hedevelopment Fund
$1,101,205 Friends of the Library
Fund
$890,359
. CARE Tax Fu:
MBA Debi Service Fund $3 371)(375“[1 )
25,717 B Orem Foundation Trust

Fund
$5,427

Debt Service Fund

T
$655,990

Senior Citizena Fund
$136,933

Capital Projects Fund
$4,314,558

General Fund
$10,962,112

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - RESERVED/RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE I

Community Dev. &
MBA Debt Service Fund Rehab. Fund
$240 $296,226

General Fund
$1,657,821

Debt Service Fund
52,747,178
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City of Orem
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Debt Service Funda Capital Projects Funds
Municipal
Building Road
Authority - Bonds
Debt Debt Capital
Service Service Total Prajects Total
REVENUES
Property Taxes 3 1,938,762 ¢ - % 1938782 % - B
Salea Taxes - - - -
Special Assesaments 412 000 - 412,000
Intergovernmental - - -
Charges for Scrvices - - : . . -
Interest Income 102,590 149 102,735 14,934 44,934
Miscellanecus Hevenues - - - . -
Total Revenues 2,453,352 149 2,453,501 44,934 44,924
EXPENDITURES
Current:
" Economic and Physical Development
Redevelopment
Farks, Kecreation and Arts
iJebt Service:
Principal Retirement 1,976,315 1,080,000 3,058,315
Intereat and Fiscal Charges 1,616,182 351,455 1,967,637
Bond Issuance Costs 139,440 - 139,440
Capital Qutlay - - . 1,556,758 1,056,758
Taotal Expenditures 3,731,937 1,431,456 5,163,392 1,956,768 1,956,758
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues '
over (under) Expenditures (1,278,585) (1,431,308) (2,709,891) (3,911,824} (1,911,524
QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of Bonds 5,720,000 . 5,720,000
Payment to Bond Refunding Agent (3,750,946) - (5,750,948)
Bond Issuance Premium 169,576 - 169,576
Transfers In 3,340,912 1,431,397 4,781,308
Transfers Out - . .
Tatal Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 3,488,542 1,431,397 4,819,939
Net Change in Fund Balances 2,200,957 a1 2,210,048 (1,911,824} (1,911,824
Fund Balances - Beginning, As Previously Reported 1,193,211 5,866 1,199,077 1,911,824 1,911,824
Prior Period Adjustment : - - - N
Fund Balances - Beginning, As Restated 1,193,211 5,866 1,199,077 1911,824 },911,824
Fund Balances - Ending § 3,403,168 § 5067 % 3,409,126 3 - 8

' Includes the Friends of the Library Fund, Orem Foundation Trust Fund, and Senior Citizens Fund.
A summary of these funds can be found on the next page.
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Special Revenue Funds

Community Other Total
Development & Special Nonmajor
CARE Tax Redevelopment Rehabilitation Hevenue Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds ' Total Funds
8 % 4676,549 % % 2,576,549 % 4,515,311
1,532,202 - 1,932,202 1,932,202
- - 412,000
556,846 566,846 556,846
277,113 17,707 454,820 454,820
24,601 20,389 12,818 157,809 306,482
- 2,785 104,076 106,861 106,861
2,026,802 2,576,549 857,133 324.602 5,785,087 4,283,522
598,082 398,082 598,082
577,702 . 577,702 577,702
1,049,214 267,044 1,316,258 1,316,268
45,000 45,000 3,101,315
29,814 39,811 2,007,451
- - 139,440
298 344 885,505 87,768 1,195,818 3,152,376
1,271,559 1,463,207 770,664 267,044 3.772,474 10,802,624
Th5,244 1,113,342 86,469 57,558 2,012,618 {2,609,102)
5,720,000
(8,750,946)
169.576
- - 42,120 33,800 77,920 4,855,229
{14,130 {1,260,000) (120,113) (36,300 {1,430,543) (1,430,547
(14,130 {1,260,000) (77,983) {500 (1,552,623 3,567,316
741,114 (146,658} 8,476 57,058 659,950 958,214
2,633,261 1,247,863 287,750 4,168,874 7,279,775
3 3 - 975,661 975,661 975,661
2,633,261 1,247,863 287,760 975,661 35,144,530 8,256,438
z 3,374,375 3 1,101,206 2 296,224 5 L032,719 5,804,525 £ 9,213,650
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City of Orem
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Other Special Revenue Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Other Special Revenue Funds

Total
Friends Drem Other
of the Foundation Senior Special
Library Trust Citizens Revenue
Fund Fuand Fund Fundas
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 150,730 b3 - $ 26,957 & 177,707
Interest Income 37,274 - 5,645 42,819
Miscellaneous Revenues 81,110 6,004 16,962 104,076
Toetal Revenues 269,134 6,004 49,464 324,602
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Parks, Recreation and Arts 233,842 - 33,202 267,044
Total Expenditures 233,842 - 33,202 267,044
Exeess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures 35,292 6,004 16,262 57,558
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 35,800 - 35,800
Transfers Out - (36,300) - {36,300)
Total Other Financing Scurces and (Uses) 35,800 (36,300} - (500
Net Change in Fund Balances 71,002 (30,296} 16,262 37,068
Fund Balances - Beginning, As Previously Reparted - - - .
Prior Pericd Adjustment 819,267 35,723 120,671 975,661
Fund Balances - Beginning, Az Restated 819,267 35,723 120,671 975,661
Fund Balances - Ending & £90,359 8 5,427 S 136,933 % 1,032,719
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Combining Financial Statements
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Recreation Fund — This fund is to account for the services provided by the City's
Fitness Center. The Fitness Center complex includes an indoor swimming pool, indoor
track, basketball court, handball courts, racquetball courts, an outdoor swimming
pool/water park (Scera Park), and other facilities. A variety of classes and open play
are made available to residents and non-residents on a fee basis.

Solid Waste Fund — This fund is to account for the collection of residential garbage
within the City. Residential garbage collection services are provided by a private
contractor through a contract with the City. Businesses and commercial concerns
within the City are not serviced, but may contract with private firms for these same
services.

Street Lighting Fund — This fund is to account for providing the residents and
businesses of the City with a new street lighting system. Lease Revenue Bonds were
issued to cover the purchase and installation of the system. Payment and costs of these
bonds are not accounted for here, but are in the Debt Service Fund.

-97-



City of Orem
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
dune 30, 2008

Recreation Recreation Solid Waste Solid Waste
Fund Fund Fund Fuand
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year
ASSETS '
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,221683 § 831,908 % 412,665 § 474,188
Accounts Receivable (Net of
" Allowance for Doubtful Accounts) 260,080 270,396
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Capital Improvement Projects - - - -
Total Current Assets 1,221,583 831,908 672,745 744,584
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land 39,822 39,822
Buildings and Systems 4,121,630 4,121,630
[mprovements other than Buildings 1,499,210 1,499,210
Machinery and Equipment 47,468 47,458
Infrastructure - -
Construction in Progress 183,351 -
Less Accumulated Depreciation (4,352, 870) (4,263,099
Tatal Capital Assets (Net of .
Aceumulated Depreciation) 1,538,601 1,445,021 - -
Total Assets 2,760,184 2,276,929 672,745 744 584
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilites!
Accounts Payable 94,362 19,956 230,390 227,057
Accrued Liabilities 76,413 68,266 . -
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 27,478 28,706
Due to Other Funds - -
Deferred Revenue 350,659 375,185 . -
Total Current Liahilites 548 912 492 113 230,390 227,057
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 1,447 1,611
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,447 1,611 - -
Total Liabilities 550,359 493,624 230,390 227,057
NET ASSETS
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt 1,538,601 1,445,021
Restricted for Capital Improvements - iy : -
Unrestricted 671,224 338,284 442 355 517,627
Total Net Assets b 2,209,825 § 1,783,305 $ 442,356 § 517,627
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Total Total

Nonmajor Nonmajor
Street Lighting Street Lighting Proprietary Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year

£ - 3 1,634,248  § 1,306,096

52,452 56,427 312,532 325,823
52,452 55,427 1,946,780 1,631,919

- 39,822 39,822

- 4,121,630 4,121,630

- - 1,499,210 1,499,210

94,609 94,609 142,067 142,067
902,953 767,317 902,953 767,317

- - 183,351 -
(79,243) (55,262) (4,432,113) (4,318,361)
918,319 806,664 2,456,920 2,251,685
970,771 862,091 4,403,700 3,883,604
16,685 21,946 341,437 268,959

6,357 2.809 82,770 71,075

9,384 8,683 36,862 37,389
400,004 410,271 400,004 410,271

- - 350,659 375,185

432 430 443,709 1,211,732 1,162,879

493 457 1,940 1,968

493 457 1,940 1,968

432,923 444,166 1,213,672 1,164,847
918,319 206,664 2,456,920 2,251,685
(380,471) (388,739) 733,108 467,072
537,848 % 417,925 3 3,190,028 § 2,718,767
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Other Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

‘OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services
Supplies and Maintenance
Administrative Fee
Utilities
. Contract Services
Equipment Lease and Rentals
Insurance
Depreciation
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
AND EXPENSES
Interest Revenue
Total Nonoperating Revenues
Tncome (Loss) before Transfers

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

City of Orem

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Recreation Recreation Solid Waste Solid Waste
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year
$ 1,588,694 & 1,451,983 2,961,104 $ 2,893,062
200 475 - -
1,588,894 1,452,458 2,961,104 2,893,052
1,077,448 1,009,965 - -
173,364 205,046 25,428 49,344
- 3,295 333,674 314,983
244,202 261,682 - -
11,028 12,077 2,627,474 . 2,590,791
- 23,593
89,771 36,122 - -
21,774 15,688 28,131 200
1,617,587 1,567,468 3,014,707 2,955,318
{28,693) (115,010) (53,603) (62,266)
41,070 39,807 8,342 16,545
41,070 39,807 8,342 16,545,
12,377 (75,203) (45,261) (45,721)
414,968 215,379 - -
(825) (825) (29,911) (28,691)
428,520 139,149 (75,172) (74,412)
1,783,305 1,644,156 517,527 591,939
% 2,209,825 & 1,783,305 442355 § 517 627

-100-



Total

Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor
Street Lighting Street Lighting Proprietary Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year
GR7.616 & 684,250 5,237,414 5,029,285
1,727 - 1,927 475
689,343 684,250 5,239,341 5,029,760
113,809 103,001 1,191,257 1,112,966
7,962 20,468 206,754 274,858
- - 333,674 318,278
313,956 236,491 558,158 498,173
71,448 75,958 2,709,950 2 678,826
709,097 705,159 709,097 700,159
- _ - - 23,593
23,981 23,900 113,752 60,022
4,052 1,843 53,957 17,731
1,244,306 1,166,820 5,876,594 5,689,606
(554,962) {482,570 {(637,258) (659,846)
4,960 1,631 54,372 57,983
4,960 1,631 54,372 57,983
(550,002) (480,939) (582,886) (601,863)
670,000 640,000 1,084,968 855,177
(75) (75) (30,811) (29,591)
119,923 158,986 471,271 223,723
417,925 258,939 2,718,757 2,495,034
537,848 % 417,925 3,190,028 2,718,757
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City of Orem

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Propretary Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Recreation Recreation Solid Waste Solid Waste
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Current Year Prior Year Current Year  Prior Year
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users 3 1,688694 § 1,451,983 $ 2,961,104 § 2,893,062
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 200 475 - .
Payments to Suppliers (392,341) (475,976) (2,667,384)  (2,644,139)
Payments to Employees . . (1,078,740 (1,034,290) - -
Payments for Interfund Services Used - {3,295} (333.674) (314,983)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities 117,813 (61,103) (39,954) (66,070)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In 414,968 215,177 - -
Transfers Out, (823) (825) {29.911) (28,691)
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Noncapital
Activities 414,143 214,352 (29,911) {28,691)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets (183,351) (155,031) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities (183,351) (155,031) -
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest Revenue 41,070 29,807 8,342 16,645
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing
Activities 41,070 39,807 8,342 16,545
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents 389,675 38,025 (61,523) (78,216)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
of Year 831,908 793,883 474,188 552,404
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 1221583 8 831,908 & 4126656 § 474,188
Reconciliation of Operating Tneome (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (28,6930 5  (115,010) % (53,603) §  (62,266)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided (Used) hy Operating
Activities:
Depreciation Expense 3 89,771 8 36,122 g - 8 -
{(Increase) Decrease in Receivables - - 10,316 (8,203)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 74,406 769 3,333 4,399
Increase {Decrease)} in Accrued Liabilities 8,147 (3,330) - :
Incrcase {Decrease) in Deferred Revenue (24,526) 44671
Increase (Decrease) in Acerued Vacation
and Sick Leave {1,292 (24,325) - -
Total Adjustments 146,506 53,907 13,649 {(3,804)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Qperating
Activities $ 117813 8§ (61,108 $ (39,954) 8§  (86,070)

-102-



Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor
Street Lighting Street Lighting Proprietary Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year

$ 687.616 % 684,250 % 5,237,414 § 5,029,285

1,727 - 1,927 475
(1,115,520) (967,059) (4,175,245) (4,087,174)
(113,072) {101,773) (1,191,812 (1,136,063}
- - (333,674 (318,278)
(539,249) {3584,582) {461,390) (511,755)

670,000 640,000 1,084,968 855,177

(75) (78) (30,811) (29,591)

669,925 639,925 1,054,157 825,556
(135,636) (256,974) (318,987) (412,005)
{1385,636) (256,974) (318,987) (412,005)

4,960 1,631 54,372 57,983

4,960 1,631 54,372 57.983

- 328,152 (40,191)

- 1,306,006 1,346,287

$ $ - $ 1,634,248 § 1,306,096
§ (554,962) § (482 570) (637,258) (659,8486)

$ 23,981 & 23,900 113,752 60,022
2,975 (2,258) 13,291 (10,461

(5,261) {13,485) 72 478 (8,317

6,719 88,603 1,428 85,273

- - (24,526) 44 871
737 1,228 (555) {23,007}

15,713 97 988 175,868 148,091
% (539,249) % (384,582) % (161,390) § {511,755)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DEBT SERVICE FUND
MBA DEBT SERVICE FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
ROAD BONDS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
CARE TAX FUND
REDEVELOPMENT FUND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & REHABILITATION FUND
FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY FUND
OREM FOUNDATION TRUST FUND
SENIOR CITIZENS FUND
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For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Special Assessments
Interest Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Bond Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under} Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Tssuance of Bonds
Payment to Bond Refunding Agent
Bond Issuance Premium
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

City of Orem
Debt Service - Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)

1,942,909 § 1,942,909 $ 1,938,762 $ {4,147
412,000 412000 412,000 -

- - 102,590 102,590
2,954,909 2,354,909 2,453,352 98,443
2,020,330 2,020,330 1,976,315 44,015
3,748,081 3,748,081 1,616,182 2 .131,899.
139,440 139,440 -

5,768,411 5,907,851 3,731,937 2.175,014
(3,413,502 (3,552,942) (1,278,585) 2,974,357

5,720,000 5,720,000
(5,750,946) (5,750,946)
170,386 169,576 (810)
3,413,502 3,413,502 3,349,912 (63,590}
3,413,502 3,552,042 3,488,542 (64,400)
2,209,957 2,209,957
1,193,211 1,193,211 1,193,211

1,193,211 $ 1,193,211 $ 3,403,168 % 2,209,957
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City of Orem
Municipal Building Authority - Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budgest -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest Revenues % - 3 - $ 149 149
Total Revenues - - 149 149
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Prineipal Retirement 1,080,000 1,080,000 1,080,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 352,297 352,297 351,400 542
Total Expenditures 1,432,297 1,432,297 1,431,455 842
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures (1,432,297 (1,432,297 (1,431,306) g1
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 1,432,297 1,432,297 1,431,397 (900)
Transfers Out - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,432,297 1,432,297 1,431,397 {900)
Net Change in Fund Balance - . 91 91
Fund Balance - Beginning 5,866 5,866 5,866
Fund Balance - Ending b 5,866 S 5,866 3 5,957 3 91
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Capital Projects - Capital Projects Fund

City of Orem

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneaus Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Capital Qutlay
Economic and Physical Development
Total Expenditures
Fxcess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under} Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
[ssnance of Notes Payable
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
87,600 12,600 $ {75,000}
288,177 688,177 757,681 69,504
288,177 775,777 770,281 {5,496)
257,862 7,589,364 3,593,517 3,995,847
- 4,108,222 1.400,593 2 707,629
257,862 11,697,586 4,994,110 6,703,476
30,315 (10,921,809) (4,223,829) 6,697,980
4,108,222 1,400,593 {(2,707,629)
1,476,528 8,470,430 310,000 (8,160,430)
(1,506,813) (1,656,843) (1,611,114) 45,729
(30,315) 10,921,809 99,479 {10,822,330)
- (4,124,350) (1,124,350)
8,438,908 8,438,908 8,438,908
8 438,908 $ 8,438,908 4,314,558 % {4,124,350)
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City of Orem
Road Bonds - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Interest Revenues
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Capital Qutlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Changs in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ ES 70,000 8 44,934 ¢ {25,066)
70,000 44,934 {25,066)
1,956,758 1,956,758
1,956,758 1,956,758
(1,886,758) (1,811,824) {25,066)
{1,886,758) (1,911,824 (25,066)
1,911,824 1,911,824 1,911,824
$ 1,911,824 $ 25,066 g $ (25,066)
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City of Orem
CARE Tax - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Sales Taxes $ 1,800,000 £ 1,800,000 $ 1,932,202 8 132,202
Interest Revenues 5,000 5,000 94,601 89,601
Total Revenues 1,805,000 1,805,000 2,026,803 221,803
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Arts and Recreation Development 1,790,870 3,718,525 1,049,214 2,669,311
Capital Outlay - 222 345 222,345 .
Total Expenditures 1,790,870 3,940,870 1,271,559 2,669,311
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
aver (under) Expenditures 14,130 (2,135,870) 7Hh,244 2,891,114
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Transfers Out (14,1300 (14,130 {14,130)
Tatal Other Financing Sources (Uses) (14,130) (14,1300 {14,130)
Net Change in Fund Balance - (2,150,000) 741,114 2,891,114
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,633,261 2,633,261 2,633,261
Fund Balance - Ending $ 2,633,261 b 483,261 $ 3,374,375 $ 2,891,114
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City of Orem
Redevelopment - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget. -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Property Taxes F 2,652,000 § 2,576,049 3 2,576,549 3
Total Revenues 2,652,000 2,576,549 2,576,549
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Redevelopment 1,392,000 2,548,118 1,463,207 1,084,911
Total Expenditures 1,392,000 2,548,118 1,463,207 1,084,911
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures 1,260,000 28,431 1,113,342 1,084,911
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - -
Transfers Out (1,260,000) (1,260,000) {1,260,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {1,260,000) (1,260,000) (1,260,000)
Net Change in Fund Balance - (1,231,569) (146,658) 1,084,911
Fund Balanee - Beginning 1,247,863 1,247 863 1,247 863
Fund Balance - Ending § 1,247,863 % 16,294 3 1,101,205 3 1,084,911
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City of Orem
Community Development and Rehabilitation - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Interest Revenues
Miscellanecus Revenues
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic and Physical Development
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiseal Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Poasitive
Original Final Amgunts (Negative)

3 626,001 3 626,001 % 556,846 3 (69,155)

52,940 52,940 277,118 224,173

- - 20,389 20,389

2,785 2,785

678,941 678,941 857,133 178,192

495 948 673,076 685,850 (12,774
45,000 45,000 45,000

60,000 60,000 39,814 20,186

600,948 778,076 770,664 7,412

77.993 {99,135) 86,469 185,604
42120 42,120 42,120
(120,113) {120,113 (120,11
(77,993) (77,993) 77.993)

(177,128) 8,476 185,604
287,750 287,750 287 750

$ 287,750 $ 110,622  $ 206,226 % 185,604
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City of Orem
Friends of the Library - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services % - 3 157,000 ¥ 150,750 $ (6,250)
Interest Revenues - 37,000 37.274 274
Miscellaneaus Revenues - 81,110 81,110
Total Revenues - 194,000 269,134 758,134
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Library Programs - 229,800 233,842 {4,042)
Totul Expenditures - 229,800 233,842 {4,042)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures - (35,800) 35,202 71,092
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - 35,800 35,800
Transfers Qul - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 35,800 45,800
Net Change in Fund Balance - - 71,092 71,092
Fund Balance - Beginning, As Previously Reported - - -
Prior Period Adjustment 819,267 819,267 519,267
Fund Balance - Beginning, As Restated 819,267 819,287 819,267
Fund Balance - Ending $ 819,267 3 819,267 b 890,359 3 71,092
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City of Orem
Orem Foundation Trust - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amaunts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Interest Revenues % - % - $ 1,204 $ 1,204
Miscellaneous Revenues - 1,800 4,800 3,000
Tatal Revenues - 1,800 6,004 4,204
EXPENDITURES
Current!
City Programs
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficicney) of Revenues
over (under} Expenditures - 1,800 6,004 4,204
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - -
Transfers Out - (36,300) (36,300)
Total Other Financing Sources (Usos) - (36,300) (36,300)
Net Change in Fund Balance - (34,500) (30,296) 4,204
Fund Balance - Beginning, As Previously Reported - - -
Prior Period Adjustment 35,723 35,723 35,723
Fund Balance - Beginning, As Restated 38,723 35,723 35,723
Fund Balance - Ending g 35,723 % 1,223 & 5,427 % 4,204
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City of Orem
Senior Citizens - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounta Yariance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Criginal Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services % - 8 24,750 $ 26,957 % 2,207
Interest Revenues - 6,000 5,545 {455}
Miscellanzous Revenues - 19,250 16,962 (2,288)
Total Revenues - 50,000 49,464 {536)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Dances - 20,009 11,394 8,615
Tours - 36,392 11,255 235,137
Miscellaneous Fxpenditures - 58,036 10,553 47,183
Total Kxpenditures - 114,437 33,202 81,235
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures - {64,437 16,262 80,699
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In -
Transfers Out -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -
Net Change in Fund Balance - (64,437 16,262 80,699
Fund Balance - Beginning, As Previously Reported -
Prior Period Adjustment 120,671 120,671 120,671
Fund Balance - Beginning, As Restated 120,671 120,671 120,671
Fund Balance - Ending S 120,671 3 56,234 $ 136,933 b 80,699
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Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one depariment or agency to other departments or agencies of the
government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fleet Maintenance Fund — This fund is to account for the repair and maintenance of
vehicles and equipment for the entire City operation. It is financed by charges made to
the funds it services. Supplies and materials are charged at cost to the specific fund.
Personnel, administration and overhead costs are charged on an estimated basis
established at the beginning of each year.

Purchasing/Warehousing Fund — This fund is to account for the central purchasing and
warehousing for the City. It provides the service to all governmental and proprietary
funds. Tt is financed by charges made to the other funds. Funds are charged for
supplies and materials at cost. Personnel, administrative and overhead costs are
charged on an estimated allocation basis established at the beginning of each year.

Self-Insurance Fund — This fund is to account for the costs of insurance premiums and
claims made against the City. Monies are accumulated in this fund to pay premiums
for liability and property damage insurance and other claims. The City participates in
the Utah Risk Management Mutual Association for its liability and property damage
insurance. Insurance for large vehicles and equipment is purchased from private
insurers. The fund also accounts for the insurance benefits of employees (i.e., state
unemployment insurance, workers compensation insurance). The fund is financed by
allocated charges made to the other funds for liability and property damage insurance.
It 1s based on an allocation established at the beginning of each year for potential risk
and prior experience. Charges for employee insurance benefits are made directly to
each fund as a part of the payroll system. Another function of the self-insurance fund
1s to accumulate resources to pay the long-term portion of the compensated absences

%iabélity of the general fund. See footnote 5.A. for additional information regarding this
und.
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City of Orem

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Aasets
dJune 30, 2008

Fleet Purchasing / Self-
Maintenance Warehousing Insurance Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents ¥ 74,358 3 29,518 3 1,473,095 $ 1,576,971
Inventories - 371,006 . 371,006
Prepaids - -
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash - Capital Improvement Projects -
Total Current Assets 74,358 400,524 1,473,005 1,947,977
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Buildings 150,000 150,000
Imyprovements other than Buildings 17,195 17,195
Machinery and Equipment 163,879 37,466 17,876 219,221
Construction in Progress : : - :
Less Accumulated Depreciation (118,954) (59,474) (6.268) {184,696)
Tatal Capital Assets (Net of
Accumulated Depreciation) 44,925 145,187 11,608 201,720
Total Assets 119,283 545,711 1,484,703 2,149,697
LIABILITIES:
Current Liahilities:
Accounts Payable 3,030 2,045 60,864 60,939
Acerued Liabilities 16,793 9,260 866,409 892,462
Acerued Vacation and Sick Leave 35,944 16,088 8,249 60,281
Accrued Interest Payable 29 : . 29
Capital Lease Payable - Current Portion 6,561 6,551
Total Current Liabilities 62,347 27,393 935,522 1,025,262
Noncurrent Liakilities:
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 2,044 847 41,772 44,663
Capital Lease Payable - Long-term Portion 519 519
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,563 847 41,772 45,182
Total Liabilities 64,910 28,240 977,294 1,070,444
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets 37.855 145,187 11,608 194,650
Restricted for Capital Improvements - - . .
Unrestricted 16,518 372,284 495,801 884,603
Total Net Assets ¥ 54,578 3 517,471 g 507,409 $§ 1,079,253
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City of Orem
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Asgets
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Fleet Purchasing / Self-
Maintenance Warehousing Insurance Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services to Other Funds % 618,311 3 332 809 $ 1,398,810 § 2,349,930
Other Revenucs - ) . .
Total Operating Revenues 618,311 332,809 1,398,810 2,349,930
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services 452, 604 225,786 85,226 763,616
Supplies, Maintenance and Claims 192 957 98,855 1,598,904 1,890,716
Depreciation Expense 7,625 6,825 2214 16,664
Total Operating Expenses 653,186 331,466 1,686,344 2670,996
Operating Income (Loss) (34,875) 1,343 (287,534) {(321,066)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
(Gain (Loss) on Sales of Fixed Assets . -
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges (485) - - (485}
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (483) - - (485}
Income (Loss) before Operating
Transfers (35,360) 1,343 (287,534 (321,551
Transfers In - - - -
Transfars Out (450) (300) (645,075) (645,825)
Change in Nct Assets (33,810 1,043 (932,609) (967,376}
Total Net Assets - Beginning 90,1483 516,428 1,440,018 2,046,629
Total Not Assets - Ending % 54,373 g 517,471 8 507,409 $ 1,079,253
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City of Orem
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Fleet Purchasing / Self-
Maintenance Warehousing Insurance Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users % 618311 % 332,809 § 1,398,810 § 2,349,930
Payments to Suppliers (184,754) (177,470) (1,110,398) (1,472,622
Payments to Employees (445,910) (225,115) (89,902) (760,927}
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (12,353) (69,776) 198,510 116,381
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Transfers In - -
Transfers Qut {450 (3000 (645,075) (645.825)
Net Cash Provided (Ufsed) by Noncapital
Financing Activities (4500 (300 (645,075) (645,825)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of Capital Assets {13,000 (13,000)
Principal paid on Qutstanding Debt {6,208) (5,208)
Interest paid on Qutstanding Deht, (564 (564
Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
Financing Activities (19,772) (19,772)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Revenue
MNet Cash Provided (Used) by Investing
Activities
Net. Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Fquivalents {32,575) (70,076} (446,565) (549,216)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 106,933 99,594 1,919,660 2,126,187
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 3 74,358 8 29,518 8 1,473,095 & 1,576,971
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided {(Used} by Operating Activities:
Operating Tncome (Loss) $ (34,875} S 1,343 8 (287,534 §  (321,066)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Incame (Loss}
to et Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities!
Depreciation [txpense 7,625 65,825 2,214 16,664
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
{Increase) Decrease in Inventory - (80,842) (80,842}
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaids :
Tnerease (Decrcasc) in Accounts Payable 1,776 {750) 44,454 45,491
Increase (Decrease} in Accrued Liabilities , 6,427 2966 444,052 453,445
Inerease (Decrease) in Acerued Vacation
and Sick Leave 6,694 671 (4,676) 2,689
Total Adjustments 22 522 (71,119) 486,044 437,447
Net Cash Provided {(Used} hy Operating Activitics 3 (12,353) % (69,7768) & 198,510 & 116,381
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CAPITAL ASSETS
USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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City of Orem
Capital Assets Used in The Operations of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedules By Source’
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Governmental Funds Capital Assets:
Land 59,007,221 58,784,875
Buildings 26,992,790 26,908,468
Improvements other than Buildings 27,085,999 26,903,203
Machinery and Equipment 15,413,194 13,876,972
Infrastructure 102,300,984 93,332,952
Construction in Progress 2,135,828 4,344,751
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets 232,936,018 224,151,221
Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source:
General Fund 203,855,396 165,211,067
Capital Projects Fund 17,353,993 48,132,170
Federal Grants 221,518 221,518
State Road Funds 7,077,779 7,132,410
Redevelopment 1,855,415 969,909
Community Development 2571,915 2,484,147
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets 232,936,016 224,151,221

"This schedule presents only the capital asset halances related te governmental funds.

Accordingly, the ¢apital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assots of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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City of Orem
Capital Assets Used in The Operations of Governmental Funds

Schedule By Function and Activity’
June 30, 2008

Improvements
Other Than
Function and Activity Land Buildings Buildings
General Government:
Legislative $ - $ -
Executive - 30,689
Personnel Administration - - -
Administrative Services - 2.075 45,499
Legal - - 10,100
Development Services - - -
General Government 1,580,222 3,663,269 1,536,958
Engineering - - -
Redevelopment - - 85,080
Community Development - 8,105 1,475,818
Total General Government 1,580,222 3,673,449 3,184,144
Public Safety:
Administration - 5,377,906 9,407
Police Protection - . 38,285
Fire Protection 190,596 1,461,832 748,256
Emergency Services - 1,580 -
Total Public Safety 190,596 6,841,318 795,948
Highways and Streets!
Administration & Engineering 33,650 7.739,582 19,224
Maintenance - . -
Street System 51,049,920 411,392 2,484,636
Street Lighting - - 1,421,854
Total Highways and Streets 51,083,470 8,150,974 3,925,714
Parks and Recreation 5,930,588 3,860,824 18,021,668
Library 222 345 4,466,225 1,158,525
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets 3 59,007,221 26,992,790 $ 27,085,999

"This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.

Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
abhove amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Machinery Construction

and in

Equipment Infrastructure Progress Total
$ - % $ 3 :
16,127 46,816
8,483 - - 8,483
947,555 - 240,808 1,235,937
17,5692 - - 27.692
194,862 - - 194,862
121,466 201,428 - 7.193,343
405,342 - - 405,342
7.800 1,707,457 55,077 1,855,414
11,992 988,231 87,768 2,671,914
1,731,219 2,987,116 383,653 13,539,803
1,011,323 - - 6,398,636
3,738,714 . - 3,776,999
3,703,533 - - 6,104,217
52,685 - - 54,165
8,506,155 - - 16,334,017
313,044 - - 8,105,400
2,853,626 97,611,885 1,747,676 156,159,135
- 1,136,156 - 2,558,010
3,166,670 98,748 041 1,747,676 166,822 545
1,844,743 565,827 - 30,223,650
164,407 - 4,498 6,016,000
b 15,413,194 $ 102,300,985 £ 2,135,827 $ 232,936,016
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City of Orem
Capital Assets Used in The Operations of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity'
For The Year Ended June 30, 2008

Governmental Governmental
Funds Capital Funds Capital
Assets Asgsets
Function and Activity June 30, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
General government:
Legislative 8 . 3 - $ - 8 -
Executive 44,816 . . 46,816
Personnel Administration 8,483 - - 8,483
Administrative Services 838,729 397,208 . 1,235,937
Legal 27,692 - 27,692
Development Services 187,467 7,395 - 194,862
General Government 5,773,634 1,479,439 (59,731) 7,193,342
Engineering 326,491 78,851 - 405,342
Redevelopment 969,909 885,503 : 1,855,414
Community Development 2,484,147 87,768 - 2,571,915
Total General Government 10,663,368 2,936,166 {59,731) 13,539,803
Public Safety:
Administration 6,373,524 25,112 . 6,298,838
Police Protection 3,441,945 356,365 {21,311} 3,776,999
Fire Protection 4,781,926 1,322,281 - 6,104,217
Emergency Services 37,903 16,260 - 54,165
Total Public Safety 14,635,300 1,720,028 (21,311} 16,334,017
Highways and Streets:
Administration & Engineering 135,727 7,969,673 - 8,105,400
Maintenance - - - -
Street System 169,285,699 6,369,406 (19,495,968} 156,159,137
Street Lighting 2,538,009 - - 2,558,009
Total Highways and Streets 171,979,435 14,339,079 (19,495 968} 166,822,546
Parks and Recreation 22,093,691 8,129,959 . 30,223,650
Library 4,779,427 1,236,573 . 6,016,000

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 224,151,221 $ 28,361,805 $  (19,577.0100 % 232,936,016

"This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds,
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital asseta of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net assets,

_124-



STATISTICAL
SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION

{Unaudited)

This section of the City of Orem's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the city's overall
financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 127

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the city's financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 134

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
factors affecting the city's ability to generate its property and sales
taxes,

Debt Capacity and Other Debt Information 146

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 158

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the city’s financial
aclivities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with
cther governments.

Operating and Other Information 164

These schedules contain information about the city's operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the city's financial
information relates to the services the city provides and the activities it
performs.

Sources: Uniess otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City of Orem
implemented GASB Statement 44 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006. The new
information required by this staterment is shown prospectively except in those cases in
which prior year information was readily available. The City of Orem implemented GASB
Statement 34 in fiscal year 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information
include information beginning in that year.
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Mel Assels by Component
Last SBeven Fiscal Years

City of Oreny

{Accrual Basis of Accounting!

{Unaudited}
Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 20086 2007 2008
(tovernmental Activities:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Helated Debt & B5.116,180 ) 48 891,248 3 102,275,683 ¥ 102, 753,522 & 106,188,364 % 114,171,270 117,130,313
Restricted 1,584,319 1.197.534 2,825,490 2018812 2,177,533 4,888,201 4,701,465
Unrestricted 45,786 050 25413234 21,368,637 25,146,488 28,835.684 25,580,967 27,564,080

Tetal Govermmeantal Activilies Met Assets 120,486,548 121,602,016 126,373,860 129,958,762 137,108,621 145,440,488 149,396,858
Business-type Activities:
[nvested in Capital Asaets,

et of Related Debt 38,380.885 39,853,758 41,814,627 43,361,442 44,153,831 52,843,374 51,848,628
Restricted - 849,578 1,446,437 120,283
Unrestricted 8.746,135 7,954,318 6,594,578 6005168 8,248.979 4,255,124 8,700,036

Total Busineas-type Activities Net Assets 47,187,023 47,812,094 49.088,633 49813047 52,085,096 27,078,488 60,507,664
Primary Government:
Invested in Capital Azsats,

Met of Related Debt 123,497,065 134,748,008 144,190,060 145,154,564 150,540,238 168,584,644 168,578,041
Restrictad 1,684,319 1,197,634 2,678,068 3,465,249 2,387,816 4,888,201 4,701,465
Unrestricted 42,632,188 28,271,550 27,594,515 31,161,606 A7.084.673 31,136,081 36.273,118

Total Primary Government Net Assets 3__ 187,823,672 § 168,314,090 3 175,462,643 5 179,771,809 §_ 189782717 § 202518936 208,958,522

Note: The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GAST

Statement 34 in Fiseal Vear 2002
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Expecnscs
Covernmenlal Activitics:
General Government
Puhblic Safery
Highways and Pubilic Improvements

Parks, Recreation und Artg

Economic and Phys

al Development
Redevalopment
[nteresi oo Long-term Dabt
Taral Goveramental Activities Bxpenses
Rusinuss-type Activities:
Warter
Water Eeclamarion
Sterm Sewer
Recreation
Solid Waste
Street Lighting
Foral Dusiness Lype Activities Expenses

Tutal Prunary Government Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
Tieneral Government,
Public Salaty
Parks Recreation and Arts

Feannmic and Physical Developmeant

Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants amd Congributions

Taral CGovernmental Activinies Program Revenues

Business Lype Activities:

Charges for Services:
Warer
Water Raclamation
Storm Sewer
Recrcarion
Solul Waste
Street Lighting

Operating Grants and Contributions

Capital Girants and Contributions

Total Business-type Activities Program Revernues

Taotal Primavy Goveroment Pragram Hevenues

Net (Expense) Revenue
(overnmental Acrivities

Business: type Activities

Total Primary Government Net (Expense) Revenue

City of Orem
Changes in Met Assots
Tast Seven Fiscal Years
{Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Yuar

2002

2003 2004

2005

206

2007

2008

3 1,604,586 & 11496617 8 12108241 & 11,540,778 3 12,100,627 ¢ 14331656 & 15.187.762
13,764,037 14.134.185 14,568,500 15,344,380 16,234,941 17,860,827 19,491,191
9,791,936 B.545, D48 5,731,054 7100065 0,485.4972 8,671,954 8,846,544
5502044 6028810 6,333,042 6,662, H04 6,800,860 7,904,950 9416718
1,088,450 920,185 8R1.877 853,787 3,480,829 (19, 244 2.006,573
782,929 BELRIT 10058, 895 542,663 848,212 1,189, A44 AT 28
1,842,812 1,647,707 2.038,846 1,882,977 2,083,152 2,263,478 2217528
44,476,801 40,355,972 42,748,441 43,918,758 AB04R.593 fi,129,762 7,648,602
£.165,967 828,805 6.442.882 8,804,176 T.A03.542 7481471 8,388,220
5.667.83¢ 5,767,224 5,408,945 5,826,744 5078672 5,894,276 F,982,610
1.070.843 1,187,081 1,268.041 1,649,405 1,814,312 1,725,747 2004281
1817454 1.800.263 2.203.195 2,047.026 1,885.045 1A67, 468 1.817.587
2,402,180 2.667. 169 2BALA1E 2,708.103 2,774,493 2,955,318 3014,707
704.035 824,071 410.979 1,184,468 1,131,094 1.166,820 1,244,308
17,618,306 18,595,713 19343 824 20,059,223 21188057 26,741,100 22951 728
61,995,199 58,881,685 £2.082.265 61,047,041 68,236,650 73,870,852 79.801 528
8,104,241 8,498,206 10,000,133 9.725,813 10,282 46) 11,064,187 11A97, 008
2,151,540 2,404,674 2,404,343 2,779,134 2,765,785 3,158,406 5,330,720
8,450 £.960 &910 12,554 18,717 301,989 545,152
415,587 159,023 308367 286,904 289,476 274,979 277,118
1.790.227 1,638,732 1407, 736 1,546,029 1,597,105 852,452 1,438 884
2 619,479 2.648.570 & 300 688 3,178,404 4.368.784 5,800,844 4,127,289
15.098 824 15,564,265 22,439,178 17.528.848 19,123 326 21,438,601 21.425 146
5.881.629 5.754.836 6128218 6,166,147 6,952,156 7,741,810 §.431,098
5.270.158 A117.664 4,968 507 4,824,008 5,500,556 8,164,501 6,073,701
2,144,608 2,153,728 2402202 2,470,226 2,610,341 2,320,428 2,549,082
1,047,647 1.197.535 1,600,892 L7GLIBT 1,618,619 1,462,468 1,588,894
2,557,893 2,700,344 2,852,580 2,000,873 2,863,052 2,061,104
43,127 805,136 468 672 628,448 72033 084,250 689,343
1,000,006 28,000
292,200 BLT000 1,003,250 1,123,170 1,763,440 2,877,880 426,500
L7.288. 162 18,672.076 13,327,085 16,826,707 23 248,010 24,375,370 24.119.812
32,387,086 34,226,341 41,766,263 37,255,583 41,371,338 45,818,927 45,644,858
[20,377.570) (24,801,707 (201,309,263} £26.399,910) (28,025 267) (31,691,211) (46,224 456}
(2311, 143} 146,368 (15,738} (232, 4868) 1.059.953 3,624,270 LBBR.086
5 (@sc08,118r & (24.6855,344) 5 (203245002 & (26,832,896) 5 278663140 8 28,050,938 _§ 34,356, 370)

(Contioued on next page)

-128-



Cily of Crem
Changes in Nat Assera
Last Seven Fiscal Yoars

(Acerusl Basis of Accounting)

(Unandited)
Fiscal Year
(Continued from prior page) PEGE] 2008 2004 2005 2004 2007 2008
Net (Expense} Revenue
Governmental Activiries & (B0 3FTH70) & (24,801,707 % (20,009,263 & [EdiRetelaR =300 IS (28 925 2870 & (31,691,211) & (26, 224 47f)
Businuswetype Activities (2303, 14i8) 145 353 (16,7349 (232 4%6) .953 363,276 1.8668.085
Tolal Primary Government Nep (Expense} Revenne (29,508,110} (24.855.344) L20.5126.002 (26 5. 390) (27.865.314) 48,056,055 (34,366,370
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Cenvernmental Aetivities:
Taxes
Sales Taxes 15163 083 E3TOB 023 11,082,331 15,373.600 18,008,141 21,330,290 2616801
Property Taxes 6,310.153 G.H77,5989 188,114 TTI08G7 8711450 9.508.706 £,182 552
Franchise Taxes 4,728, 185 4,500 848 441 E 5970.311 £.888,934 G.804.007 7291044
Vehicle and Other Taxos 1,183 472 DT, 352 1,011,720 1,078,412 1,288,355 1,114,817
Unrestricted Investment Earnings TAT.178 ATAAG1 152157 1424844 1,735 589 1,468,514
Gain (Los=) on Sale of Capital Assets 161,064 2T, T3 THT2G Ti4.740 3067621 666,083
Transflers (LBR0254) (163.030) (812 768) {781,598 (153.471) (1,636, 166)
Toral Governmental Activilies 25612866 25 507174 2. 151744 29951712 A6, 166,136 44,182,028 #0.204,215
Foginesslype Activities:
Unresteicted Invesiment Earnings 188 859 113,515 88,044 412,682 LER 14T G99.801 443,870
Crain (Losa) on Bale of Capital Aswets (33,4011 {37.448] - 31.500 - (2,146) 181,104
Transfers 1.680.204 463,030 £12, 7RH THLBSG 153.471 L.0G. 106G
“laral Business lype Activitios 1.835.712 ARHAHY 1.263.148 956,550 1.720.088 861,124 1,611,080
Total Primary Government 28,448 578 26, 345, B2 27 485,002 30,041,662 17,888,222 1 983.154 40,815,255
Change in Net Assals
Guyvernmental Activities (2. 765,104) 1,005,487 A RBEAR1 3,584,802 7,240,874 124401817 8,070,789
Businesstype Activities 105,569 £i35.051 1,270,000 T4, 364 2 TRO.040 4,485,401
Total Primary Government 5 (1LI6D.A35) & 1.690.518 & 7.158.080 & 4,309, 183 S 10020908 & 14,826,218 i

Note: The City began to report acerual information when it implemented GASE Statement 34 in Fiscal Year 2002,
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General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Capital Projects Funds
Debt Service Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Total All Other Governmental Funds

Total Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved

Total Governmental Funds

City of Orem
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

1999 2000 2001 2002
$ 1,324,508 § 1,084,193 $ 2,894448 § 2,555,350
4,616,617 5,166,024 9,638,997 6,789,541
5,941,125 6,250,217 12,633,445 9,344,921
1,524,272 1,323,098 1,632,187 1,162,065
10,389,923 6,044,463 10,231,022 19,740,782
560
11,714,195 7,367,561 11,863,209 20,903,397
2,648,780 2,407,291 4,526,635 3,717,435
15,006,540 11,210,487 19,870,019 26,530,883
& 17.685,320 % 13,617,778 § 243966564 S 30,248,318
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Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

$ 2,273,488 § 718,380 % 784,644 8 1,352,706 § 1,740,749 § 1,657,821

7,067,860 9,347,408 6,521,065 6,140,485 9,031,333 10,962,112
9,331,348 10,065,788 7,305,609 7,493,191 10,772,082 12,619,933
1,197,534 2,110,110 2,384,070 2,017,220 2,002,452 3,043,644
6,492 956 3,117.088 16,339,596 16,726,282 9,184,205 4,314,558
168,139 - 604,104 650,902 661,707

653,943 - 376,963 1,368,034 3,881,124 5,608,299
7,754,433 5,395,347 19,100,629 20,715,640 15,718,683 13,528,208
3,471,022 2,828,490 3,168,614 3,369,926 3,743,201 4,701,465
13,614,759 12,632,645 23,237,624 24,838,905 22,747,564 21,446,676

$ 17,085781 % 15,461,135 $ 26,406,238 § 28,208,831 § 26,490,766 § 26,148,141
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City of Orem
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Revenuesa
Taxes and Special Assessments S 22871996 § 24019314 § 25416573 § 27.441,124 § 25773,431
Licenses and Permite 1,089,699 1,134,308 1,004,660 1,044,082 1,004,672
Intergovernmental 2,257,087 3,364,968 3,700,938 4,377,117 4,153,970
Charges for Services 2,005,916 2,061,741 2,385,067 2,919,220 3,197,288
Fines and Forfeitures 382,080 334,801 358,011 454,885 547,888
Charges for Services - Other Funds 2,658,178 2 884,777 3,103,181 5,248,931 3,546,614
Interest Income 488,746 456,268 621,111 779,468 045,689
Miscellaneous Eevenue 2,004,203 1,707,884 1,857,838 1,475,109 1,350,019
Total Revenues 33,857,885 35,973,716 38,667,369 41,742,956 40,089,571
Expenditurea
General Government 8,798,905 7,485,612 7,486,112 9,796,957 9,528,847
Public Safety 11,243,922 12,597,305 12,854,026 13,786,791 14,187,359
Highways and Public Improvements 4,298,774 5,120,196 4,113,686 4,282,923 3,648,773
Parks, Recreation and Arts 3,643,768 3,781,425 4,197,894 4,449,966 5,027,240
Economic and Physieal Development 1,217,882 158,565 1,123,414 1,545,673 1,014,568
Redevelopment GIB,086 612,874 THG, 807 714,309 877,067
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 785,000 905,000 1,721,000 4,455,399 2,249,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 676,200 681,247 1,271,827 1,339,460 1,846,933
Capital Lease Payments - Principal 432 408 128,414 503,974 3,252,624 214,900
Capital Lease Payments - Interest a0,724 54,678 52,926 264,028 26,557
Capital Outlay 7,755,211 10,614,462 6,207,120 11,515,674 14,202,752
Total Expenditures 39,600,375 43,039,578 40,328,696 55,404,704 a2,626,976
Excess of Revenues over
(under) Expenditures (5,642,490 (7.085,832) {1,661.327) (13,661.718) (12,528,404)
Other Financing Sourcee (Uses)
Issuance of Bonds & Other Deht 4,650,000 4,443,000 7,763,487 21,167,630
Eond Issuance Premium
Payment to Bond Refunding Agent
Capital Leases - A50,000 23,160 233,038
Transfera In 8,923,779 3.975,675 17,233,789 10,269,881 5,666,551
Transfers Out (5,499,061) (6,733,713) (16,560,677) (11,949,040} (8,107,642)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 7,074,718 2,034,962 8,459,759 19,721,509 {440,991}
Net Change in Fund Balances § 14329228 § {(5030,870) $ 6798432 $ 6,059,791 § (12,947,306)
Debt Service as o percentage
of Noncapital Expenditures 5.4% 5.8% 10.6% 20,2% 11.7%
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Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007 2068

$ 27,093,824 § 29845163 § 35,035,714 § 39405880 § 38,517.744

1,295,544 1,366,925 1,880,567 1,647,862 1,506,535
4,804,640 4,536,148 4,110,180 3,666,271 4,395,215
3,544,661 3,663,844 3,865,549 4,509,099 4,832,659

454,749 566,176 534,071 607,152 580,510
3,701,855 3,654,209 8,681,870 3,821,727 3,921,154
850,831 477,456 1,270,386 1,619,097 1,321,190
1,643,953 5,464,193 2,335,497 £.116,232 2,311,797

42,840,057 47,674,203 52,713,634 60,684,200 57,407,104
9,777,288 9,042 870 10,183,159 11,243,791 11,620,136

15,121,260 16,203,215 15.434.673 18,593,911 17,851,249
4,850,84% 4,208,804 4,223 289 4,062,508 4,107,184
5,064,150 5,130,601 5,204,410 5,974,738 7,807,327

944,119 1,102,607 5,854,384 3,500,024 1,998,675
857,550 530,618 594,165 620,031 577,702
2,586,957 3,047,454 4,219,780 2 967,022 2,260,950
2,043,617 1,878,517 2,226,774 2,191,810 2,146,891
127,123 80,627 112,590 115.378 68,361
15,026 10,845 18,327 11,815 5,824
4,735,354 1,764,864 12,971,979 17,514,340 10,520,814

46,103,493 43,586,020 58,783,530 64,796,268 59,965,113

(3,213,236) 3,588,183 {6,069,896) (4,112,068) (2,558,000)
1,300,000 12,960,000 8,485,113 6,814,204 7,120,593

188,409 138,450 - 16%,576

{3,790,000) - (8,770,800 (5,750,948)

58,560 - - 90,783

£,899.378 11,582,120 9,018,070 7,873,388 6,648,353
{7,839,8486) (13,643,169 (9,769,144) (8,522,790) (7,038,634
369,532 7,356,920 7,872,489 2,394,002 1,239,725

§ (2,853,704) B 10945103 § 1,802393 § (1,718,088) § (1,318284)

12,3% 12.3% 14.6% 11.4% 10.8%
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City of Orem
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Calendar Years

(Unaudited)
Taxable Value
Primary Other Commercial Unimproved
Calendar Residential Residential & Industrial Agricultural Real

Year! Property Property Property Property Property
1998 1,494,208,145 74869 ¢ 598251550  § 39,950,927  § 802,598
1999 1,518,298,501 74,869 699,553,718 39,501,936 2,029,832
2000 1.674,0565,370 80,110 774,700,081 38,178,438 785,800
2001 1,856,564,339 86,092 841,554,729 34,718,238 719,813
2002 1,881,126,204 170,403 1,004,495,783 33,940,732 754,280
2003 1,911,504,645 361,581 1,007,647,856 1,453,150 90,143,864
2004 1,953,411,264 362,106 1,029,051,253 1,198,488 31,784,709
2005 1,992 628, 465 434,933 1,017,869,457 903,526 31,998,112
2006 2,149,974,976 2,163,884 1,076,093,714 817,809 26,283,264
2007 2. 826,766,252 3,979,753 1,274,663,047 507,506 21,832,436

Source: Utah State Tax Commissicn

Notes® Property in the City of Orem is reassessed once every five years, on average. The city assesses
property at approximately 53 percent of actual value for residential property and 100 percent of actual
value for all other categories. Estimated actual taxable value is calculated by dividing taxable assessed
value by those percentages.

! Assessed values are reported by the County on a calendar year basiz rather than July 1 to June 30 fiscal year.
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Taxable

Total Total Estimated Asgsessed Value
Taxahble Direct Actual as a Percentage
Personal Fee in Lieu Assessed Tax Taxable of Actual
Property Property Value Rate Value Taxable Value
236,061,456 $ 318,059,538 2,687,409,092 0.001864 3,749,801,830 71.67%
242,089,476 4,798,030 2,506,546,362 0.001826 3,910,004,285 84,10%
232,924,820 231,060 2,720,955.779 0.001972 3,748,651,847 72.58%
249,759,927 702,322 2,984,105,460 0.001850 4,090,702,990 72.95%
221,551,045 515,589 3,142,5534,036 0.001677 4,503,183,085 69.79%
214,696,514 41,328,176 3,206,137,786 0.001698 4.681,796,714 68.48%
217,460,513 41,478,607 3,274,746,940 0.001800 4,770,391,971 68.65%
213,740,087 51,946,930 3,3(9,521,510 (.002036 4,9460,209,745 66.99%
233,802,981 30,101,214 3,619,237,842 0.002045 5,280,078,727 66.65%
253,305,890 32,014,012 4,413,068,896 0.001670 6,729,133,809 65.58%
Taxable Assessed Value as a % of Actual Taxable Value
75%
73%
1%
69%
67%
65%
63%
1888 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Calendar Year
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City of Orem
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Calendar Years
{Unaudited)
City of Orem Direct Rates Overlapping Rates '
Central Utah Metropolitan
Deht Total Alipine Water Water
Calendar General Service Direct School Utah Conservancy Diatrict
Year Fund Fund Rate Disiriet County District of Orem Total

1998 % 0.001617 4 0.000247 § 0.001864 § 0.005524 § 0.001268 § 0.000397 $ 0.00004% % 0.009102
19459 0001598 6.000228 (0.001826 0.006410 0.001682 0.000396 0008048 (1.010362
2000 0001621 0.000351 0.001972 0.006884 0.001116 0.000377 0.000044 0.010393
2001 0.001507 .000343 0.001850 0.006769 0.001038 0.000369 0.000042 0.010068
2002 0.001378 0.000299 0.001677 0.006953 0.001053 0.000358 0.000041 0.010082
2003 0.001395 0.000303 0.0016098 (0.007884 0.001411 (.000358 0.000041 0.011392
2004 0.001479 0.000321 0.001800 0.008119 0.061425 0.000363 0.000042 0.011740
2005 (0.001485 0.000551 0.002036 0.008082 0.001391 0.000400 0.000043 0.011952
20046 0.001404 0.000641 0.002045 0.006883 0.001262 0.000357 0.000042 (.010589
2007 0.001154 0.000516 0.001670 N.00R937 0.001000 (.000302 0.000035 0.009944

Source: Utah State Tax Commission - Property Tax Division

Notes: The City's basic property tax rate is primarily increased by: 1) a majority vote of the City Council after holding public
hearings, 2) the approval of general obligation debt by a maiority of the City's residents, 3) through a judgment levy due to a coust
ordered reduction to an entity(s) property tax, and 4) the overall assessed property values of the City's residents are reduced by the
County Assessor. Rates for debt service are set based on each vear's requirements. The tax rate is applied directly to the taxable
value of the property.

! Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments. These rates
apply to all property owners within the City of Orem.

# Taxes are collected and reported by the County on a calendar year basis rather than July 1 to June 30 fiscal year.

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Calendar Year 2007

cuwcD
Utah County 3.0%
10.1% Matro Water of
Orem
0.4%
&f\ﬁity of Orem

Alpine School 16.9%
District
69.8%
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City of Orem

Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

(Unaudited)
Calendar Year Calendar Year
2008 1999
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxahble

Asgsessed Assessed Asgessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value! Rank Value Value' Rank Value
University Mail 88,632,000 1 2.01% $ 15,690,466 3 (.58%
TCU Properties 37,523,100 2 (0.85%
Timpanogas Regional Medical 21,140,000 3 0.48% 40,216,943 2 1.50%
GGP UCLLC 17,723,800 4 0.40%
Parkway Crossing Phase One LLC 16,295,050 5 0.37%
Retail Trust 11} {Walmart} 15,465,900 6 0.35% 6,820,295 10 0.25%
Dayton Hudson Corporation 14,366,000 ki 0.33% 10,228,757 6 0.38%
University Festival L.C 12,055,000 8 0.27%
Canyon River Partnership 12,863,800 9 0.29%
Dickson Properties LC 11,595,200 10 0.26% 7,616,013 8 0.28%
Novell, Inc. 41,825,621 1 1.56%
Price Development 12,647,170 4 0.47%
Wilmington Trust (Fred Meyer) 10,531,040 5 0.39%
ZCMI (Macy's) 9,228,478 7 0.34%
Carillon Square 7,072,000 9 0.26%
Total 247,659,850 5.61% $ 161,876,783 6.02%

Notes: Electrie, telephone and natural gas utilities are centrally assessed by the State Tax
Commission. These sssessed amounts were not available in 1599 and therefore, Qwest
Corporation ($22 743,274), Pacificorp ($34,049,650), and Questar Gas ($13,533,636) have been
excluded from the current year since meaningful comparisons cannot be made.

' Assessed values are reported by the County on a calendar vear basis rather than July 1 to June 30 fiseal year,



City of Orem
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Calendar Years

(Unaudited)
Percent of Delingquent

Calendar Total Current Tax Current Taxes Tax Total Tax

Year' Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections
1998 ¥ 4,058,315 3 3,756,370 92 .56% 3 295,694 $ 4,052,064
19499 4,178,341 3,926,709 93.98% 247,110 4,173,819
2000 4,786,855 4,419,489 92.33% 349,128 4,768,617
2001 4,955,236 4,521,008 91.24% 336,802 4,857,810
2002 4,975,745 4,594,310 92.33% 364,227 4,958,537
2003 5,118,892 4,688,670 91.59% 375,602 5,064,072
2004 5,003,673 4,655,802 93.05% 330,018 4,985,820
2005 5,418,232 4,992 684 92.15% 372,704 5,365,388
2006 6,628,909 6,136,838 92.57% 373,213 6,509,851
2007 6,797,960 6,247,920 91.91% 88,654 6,336,474

' Taxes are collected and reported by the County on a ealendar vear basis rather than July 1 to Junc 30 fiscal year.
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Ratio of Ratio of

Total Tax Outstanding Delinquent
Collections to Delinquent Taxes to
Total Tax Levy Taxes Total Tax Levy
99.85% % 6,251 0.15%
99.89% 4,522 0.11%
99.62% 18,238 0.38%
98.03% 97,426 1.97%
99.65% 17,208 0.35%
98.93% 54,820 1.07%
99.64% 17,853 0.36%
99.02% 52,844 0.98%
98.20% 119,058 1.80%
93.21% 461,486 6.79%
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General Merchandise and Groceries
Building Materials, Hardware, and Tools
Auto Dealers, Supplies, and Accessories
Home Furnishings, Appliances, & Electronics
Eating and Drinking Establishments
Clothing, Apparel, and Accessories
Professional Equipment and Supplies
Arts, Crafts, and Specialty Items
Amusement and Recreation
All Other Categories

Subtotal - City Direct
City Cultural Arts & Recreation (CARE)

Total City Direct Sales Taxes
Total City Direct Sales Tax Rate *

% Increase (Decrease) from prior year

% Increase (Decrease) from prior year,
excluding CARE Tax amounts

City of Orem
Sales Taxes by Category

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

1999 2000 2001 2002
3,223651 § 8,601,615 S 3972554 $ 4,194,426
2,110,444 2,131,157 1,970,028 1,769,262
1,705,249 1,888,238 1,734,194 1,906,772
1,308,723 1,363,533 1,310,584 1,332,570
871,573 748,552 851,118 912,860
941,629 858,399 861,022 807,319
957,547 724,914 714,277 724,009
354,512 396,661 411,263 439,932
560,875 555,666 547,857 571,096
878,590 1,078,706 1,405,110 2,504,817
12,712,793 13,347,441 13,778,007 15,163,063
12,712,793 $ 13,347,441 § 13,778,007 $ 15,163,063
1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
5.62% 4.99% 3.23% 10.05%
5.62% 4.99% 3.23% 10.05%

Source: Internally generated, but based upon sales tax amounts reported to the

City by the Utah State Tax Commission.

! See sales tax rate breakdown on page 145 for additional information regarding

this rate.

~140-



Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$ 4248061 § 4371549 $ 4326371 $ 4583315 § 4,449,949 $ 4,598,711
1,809,798 1,925,917 2,374,234 3,113,143 3,523,720 2,922,582
1,838,888 1,837,823 2 062,928 2,400,102 2,620,381 2,603,405
1,528,310 1,769,511 1,983,027 2. 176,207 2,085,481 1,973,203
955,788 1,038,994 1,048,781 1.092,668 1,057,350 1,045,771
822,242 843,961 851,206 901,081 1,332,725 1,516,201
699,054 711,657 782,075 838,458 904,339 974,911
441,109 494,137 560,885 574,746 588,905 454,428
568,971 535,883 550,779 516,686 618,918 576,829
795,822 562 899 833,404 1,313,808 2,034,389 2,018,848
13,708,023 14,092,331 15,373,690 17,510,210 19,216,187 18,684,689
497,933 2114,103 1,932,202
$ 13,708,023 ¢ 14,092,331 & 15,373,600 § 18008143 & 21,330,290 % 20,616,891
1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.10% 1.10% 1.10%
-9.60% 2.80% 9.09% 17.14% 18.45% -3.34%
-9.60% 2.80% 9.09% 13.90% 9.74% -2.77%
Total Sales Taxes by Fiscal Year
(excluding CARE Tax)
$21,000,000
$19,000,000
$17,000,000
$15,000,000
$13,000,000
$11,000,000
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City of Orem
Other Sales Tax Revenue Information by Category

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year 2008

Number Percentage Sales Tax Percentage

of Filers of Total Revenue of Total
General Merchandise and Groceries 257 9.60% § 4,098 711 24,61%
Building Materials, Hardware, and Tools 164 6.12% 2,522 582 15.64%
Auto Dealers, Supplies, and Accessorics 268 10.01% 2.603,405 13.93%
Home Furnishings, Appliances, & Electronics 232 8.66% 1,973,203 10.56%
Eating and Drinking Establishments 174 6.50% 1,045,771 5.60%
Clothing, Apparel, and Accessories 168 6.27% 1,516,201 8.11%
Professional Equipment and Supplies 321 11.99% 974,911 5.22%
Arts, Crafts, and Specialty Items 283 10.57% 454,428 2.43%
Amusement and Recreation 132 4,93% 576,829 3.09%
All Other Categories 679 25.35% 2,018,648 10.80%
Total 2,678 100.00% & 18,684,68) 100.00%

Fiscal Year 1999

Number Percentage Sales Tax Percentage

of Filers of Total Revenue of Total
General Merchandise and Groceries 247 10.60% & 3,223,651 25.36%
Building Materials, Hardware, and Taols 190 8.15% 2,110,444 16.60%
Auto Dealers, Supplies, and Accessories 197 8.45% 1,705,249 13.41%
Home Furnishings, Appliances, & Electronics 126 5.41% 1,308,723 10.29%
Fating and Drinking Establishments 162 £5.95% 671,573 5.28%
Clothing, Apparel, and Accessories 114 4 89% 941,629 7.41%
Professional Equipment and Supplies 368 15.79% 957,547 7.63%
Arts, Crafts, and Specialty Items 180 7.73% 364,512 2.79%
Amusement and Recreation 128 5.49% 560,875 4,41%
All Other Categories G18 26.52% 878,500 6.91%
Total 2,330 100.00% § 12,712,793 100.00%

Source: Internally generated, but based upon sales tux amounts reported to the
City by the Utah State Tax Commission.
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City of Orem
Principal Sales Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

2008 1999
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Sales Sales Sales Sales

Taxpayer Taxes ' Rank Taxes ' Taxes ! Rank Faxes '
Costeo Wholesale Corporation N/A 1 N/A

Wal-Mart Supercenter N/A 2 N/A N/A 2 N/A
RC Willey Home Furnishings N/A 3 N/A N/A 1 N/A
Target N/A 4 N/A N/A 3 N/A
Mountainland Supply Company N/a 5 N/A N/A 6 N/A
Lowes (Fagle! Hardware N/A G N/A N/A 5 N/A
Best Buy N/A 7 N/A

Macey's, Ine. N/A 8 N/A N/A 4 N/A
Ken Garff Honda of Orem N/A 9 N/A

Geneva Rock Products N/A 10 N/A
Stock Building Supply N/A N/A
BMC West N/A N/A
Albertsons Food Center N/A N/A
Harmon's Food N/A 10 N/A
Total 2,852,810

Source: Utah State Tax Commission,

5,082,060 24.70%

' Due to confidentiality issues, the amounts and percentages of the ten largest revenue payers cannot be
displayed. However, the aggregate total is displayed along with the individual rankings in an effort to
provide the reader with information as to where the City's sales tax base originates.
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City of Orem
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiacal Years

(Unaudited)
City Direct Snles Tax Ratea Overlapping Sales Tax Ratea
City Tatal County State
City Cultural City County Mass State Masas Total
Fiscal Direct Arta & Ree Direct Direct Transit Direct Tranait Sales Tax
Year Rate Rate ' Rate Rate Rate © Rate Rate Rate °
1949 1.00% - 1.00% 0.25% - 4.75% 0.25% 6.25%
2000 1.00 - 1.00 0.25 - 4.75 0.25 6.25
2001 1.00 - 1.00 0.25 - 4.75 0.25 6.25
2002 1,00 - 1.08 0.25 - 4.75% 0.25 G.25
2003 1.00 - 1.00 0.25 - 4.75 0.25 6.25
2004 1.00 - 1.00 0.26 -- 4,75 0.25 G6.25
2005 1.00 - 1400 0.25 - 4.75 0.25 G.25
2008 1.00 0.10 1,14 0.25 - 4.76 0.25 6.35
2007 1.00 0.10 1.10 0.25 Q.25 4.75 0.25 f.60
2008 1.00 0.10 1.10 0.26 0.30 4.65 0.25 6.55

Source: Utah State Tax Commission

! This additional sales tax rate, titled CARE tax, was voted on by the

citizens of Orem and went into effect on April 1, 2006.

* This additional sales tax rate was voted on by the citizens of iJtah

County and went into effect an April 1, 2007. The additional tax is to be
used to fund highways, fixed guideways, or systems for public transit.

# The total sales tax rate for non-prepared food and food ingredients was
set at 3.00% statewide (1.00% City Direct Rate, 0.25% County Dircct Rate,
and 1.75% State Direct Rate} and went into effect on January 1, 2008,
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City of Orem
Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Governmental Aetivities

General Excise Tax Sales Tax Lease Special

Fiseal Obligation Revenue Revenue Revenue Asgsessment Notes Capital
Year Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Payable Leases
1999  §10,290,000  $ 1,005,000 S - % 2725000 % 8 § 4,059,179
2000 10,015,000 4,963,000 2,580,000 854,214 3,939,660
2001 9,660,000 3,752,000 10,410,000 808,836 3,536,675
2002 9,200,000 2,985,000 12,175,000 12,860,000 3,675,000 750,035 517,089
2003 8,900,000 2,181,000 12,010,000 11,975,000 3,670,000 1,010,632 302,189
2004 8,490,000 1,337,000 11,720,000 11,075,000 4,965,000 892,680 175,066
2005 17,225,000 452,000 11,285,000 10,140,000 4,735,000 765,119 152,999
2006 21,885,000 10,810,000 9,170,000 3,195,000 3,697,449 243,896
2007 21,025,000 10,310,000 3,423,000 2,940,000 6,396,631 124,186
2008 19,960,000 9,985,000 7,343,000 2,675,000 7,476,274 140,400

Notes: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the
notes to the financial statements.

-146-



Business-type Activities

Water Water &

Quality Storm Sewer Total Percentage

Revenue Revenue Capital Primary of Personal Per
Bonds Bonds Leases Government Income Capita

¥ 2,978,000 % £ s 21,067,179 1.61% £ 251

2,836,000 25,187,874 1.52 299
2,689,000 30,856,511 2.13 365
2,537,000 44,789,124 3.00 535
2,380,000 42,428,721 2.64 491
2,217,000 40,871,646 2.36 458
2,048,000 17,440,000 - 64,243,118 3.52 T11
1,873,757 17,440,000 52,829 68,377,931 3.57 746
1,692,757 17,850,000 39,834 68,901,408 3.43 747
1,505,757 24,583,000 21,210 73,699,641 3.63 792
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City of Orem

Ratios of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)
Ratio of Net Net
Gross Debt Service Net Bonded Debt Bonded
Fiscal Taxable Bonded Monies Bonded To Asseased Debt Per
Year Population * Value Debt Available * Debt Value Capita
1999 83,921 $ 2,687,409,002 $ 10,290,000 § 26,449 8 10,263,551 0.358% 122
2000 84,326 2,506,346,362 10,015,000 25,513 9,988,487 0.40 118
2001 84 500 2,720,955,779 9,660,000 16,839 9,643,161 0.35 114
2002 83,662 2,984,105,460 9,290,000 339,058 8,960,942 0.30 107
2003 86,346 3,142,554,036 8,900,000 229,007 8,670,993 0.28 100
2004 89,326 3,206,137,786 8,490,000 251,119 8,238,881 0.26 92
2005 90,374 3,274,746,940 17,225,000 441 821 16,783,179 0.51 186
2006 91,649 3,309,621,510 21,995,000 604,104 21,390,896 0.65 233
2007 92212 3,518,237,842 21,025,000 645,663 20,379,337 0.58 221
2008 93,090 4,413,068,896 19,960,000 655,990 19,304,010 0.44 207

¥ Population estimates were hased upon census data and building activity within the City.

Dbt service monies available are net of resarves dedicated to other debt issues, ie., revenue

bends and capital leases.
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City of Orem
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2008

(Unaudited)
Percentage Amount
Net General Applicable to Applicable to
Obligaticn the Citizens the Citizens
Debt of the of the
Jurisdiction Outstanding * City of Orem City of Orem
Direct Debt:
City of Orem 3 19,504,010 100.0000% ¥ 19,304,010
Overlapping Debt:
Alpine School District 382,210,000 28.2767% 108,076,554
Utah County 13,390,000 17.1414% 2,295,238
Central Utah Water Conservancy District 317.382,560 3.9246% 12,456,047
Taotal Overlapping Debt 712,982 560 122 827 840
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 732,286,570 $ 142,131,830
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt Per Capita $ 1,527

'Applies only to General Obligation Bonds,
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Debt. Limit
Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit
Legal Debt Margin

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit
as a percentage of debt limit

City of Orem

Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Fiacal Year
1999 2000 2001 2002
$ 156,400,171 g 149,946,071 ¥ 163,625,120 $ 180,127,323
(10,263,5351) (9,989,487) (9.643,161) (8,950,942)
3 146,138,620 B 139,958,587 g 153,984,959 3 171,176,381
6.56% 6.66% 5.89% 4.97%

' Debt margin applies only to general obligation bonds.
? Debt service monies available are net of reserves dedicated to other debt
issues {i.e. revenue bonds and capital leases).
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Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2008

Agsessed Valuations:

Taxable Value § 4,413,068 896

Estimated Market Value $ 6,729,133,809
Legal Debt Margin:

Debt Limitation - 4% of Estimated Market Value ! $ 269,165,352
Debt Applicable to Limitation:

Total General Obligation Bonded Deht § (19,960,000}

Less:
Assets in Debt Service Funds Available

for payment of Prineipal * 655,990
Total Debt Applicable to Limitation (19,304,010)
Legal Debt Margin $ 249,861,342
Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
8 187,271,869 § 190,815,675 B 194,931,562 % 197,608,390 8 211,408,327 8 260,165,352
(8,670,993) (8,238,881 (18,783,179} (21,390,896) (20,379,337 (19,304,016}

B 178,600,876 ¢ 182,576,798 $ 178,148,373 $ 176,217,494 & 191,028,990 g 249,861,342

4.63% 4.32% 8.61% 10.82% 5.64% T.17%
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City of Orem

Pledged-Revenue Coverage

L:ast Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Lease Revenue Bonds Special Asseasment Revenue Bonds
Special
Fiacal Lease Debt Service Assessment Debt Service
Year Revenues Principal Interest Coverage Collections Principal Interest Coverage
1999 § 289,406 8§ 145,000 145,273 1.00 2 86,874 b 41,000 8 14,393 1.57
2000 284,147 145,000 137,423 1.01 77,036 44,000 11,256 1.41
2001 540,891 155,000 323.318 1.13 85,957 47,000 8,165 1.56
2002 1,104,085 545,000 529,222 1.02 66,230 50,000 89,224 .48
2003 1,439,752 885,000 580,253 0.94 78,767 54,000 183,349 0.33
2004 1,150,286 900,000 544,337 1.00 186,941 5,000 181,583 1.00
20056 1,444,808 935,000 505,090 1.00 1,470,871 230,000 183,250 3.56
2006 1,444, 384 970,000 470,630 1.00 117,274 1,540,000 231,152 0.24
2007 1,424,239 1,053,000 367,639 L.00 419,611 255,000 159,750 1.01
2008 1,431,397 1,080,000 343,797 1.00 415,963 265,000 147,000 1.01
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

Fizeal Sales Debt Service

Year Taxes Principal Intereat Coverage

19499 $ % 0.00

2000 0.00

2001 0.00

2002 15,153,083 5,000 47,442 289.14

2003 13,708,023 165,000 633,546 16.15

2004 14,002,331 290,000 562,047 16.54

20045 15,373,690 435,000 552,621 15.57

2006 18,008,143 475,000 539,136 17.76

2007 21,330,280 500,000 522,986 20.85

2008 20,616,891 530,000 485,915 20.29

Notes: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in
the notes to the financial statements,

1

amortization expenses.

Operating expenses do not include depreciation, interest, or
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Water & Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds

Utility Leas: Net

Service Operating Available Debt Service
Charges Expensea ! Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
g $ - 3 - 8 - % 0.00
.06
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
.00
9,141,784 6,959,093 2,182,691 - 681,773 3.20
141,003,642 7,137,454 2,864,188 H80,000 13,519 1.47
11,050,437 7,659,539 3,390,898 707.000 T62,092 2.31

Water Reclamation Revenue Bonds
Utility Lesa: Net

Service Operating Available Debt Service
Charges Expenses ' Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
$ 4,399,131 § 4,155,237 8 243,894 $ 137,000 $ 109025 0.99
4,607,442 3,600,351 1,007,091 142,000 104,230 4.09
5,128,911 3,805,019 1,323,892 147,000 99,260 5.38
4,791,987 3,983,007 508,080 152,000 94,115 3.29
4,648,383 1,134,290 514,093 157,000 88,795 2.09
4,762,198 4,272,036 190,162 163,000 83,300 1.949
4,481,980 4,264,174 217,806 169,000 77,595 0.88
5,341,595 4,415,907 925,688 174,243 71,675 3.76
5,678,134 4,572,648 1,105,486 181,000 65,590 4.48
5,682,018 4,864,370 817,648 187.000 59,247 3.32
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City of Orem
Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding Lease Revenue Bonds
June 30, 2008

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Series 2000 Series 2001
Year Ending $7,985,000 (Street Lights) $5,345,000 (Refunding)
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 440,000 § 92,985 % 650,000 § 67,375
2010 460,000 72,085 675,000 42,675
2011 485,000 50,005 380,000 15,675
2012 505,000 25,755 -
2013 - - -
2014 - - - -
2015 - - ' - -
2016 - - - -
2017 - - - -
2018 - - - -
TOTALS 3 1,890,000 $ 240,830 $ 1,705,000 $ 125,725.

Note: This table is included in accordance with the requirements of 15¢2-12 promulgated by the

Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Series 2007 Totals

$3,520,000 (Refunding) Total Total Total Debt
Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

k] 31,000 $ 140,943 & 1,121,000 ] 301,303 $ 1,422,303
32,000 139,778 1,167,000 254,538 1,421,538
33,000 138,574 298,000 204,254 1,102,254
34,000 137,333 539,000 163,088 702,088
571,000 136,035 571,000 136,055 707,065
589,000 114,582 589,000 114,582 703,682
612,000 92.434 612,000 92,434 704,434
634,000 69,419 634,000 69,419 703,419
659,000 45,577 659,000 45,577 704,577
553,000 20,796 553,000 20,796 573,796

5 3,748,000 i 1,035,491 § 7,343,000 $ 1,402,046 $ 8,745,046
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City of Orem
Long-term Bonded Indebtedness Paid By Governmental and Enterprise Funds
Schedule of Bonded Indebtedness
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)

Total Revenue Bonds
Total Enterprise Funds
Total Governmental and Enterprise Funds

-156-

Annual
Issue Term of Terms of
Interest Rate Date Bonds Serial Bonds
Governmental Funds:
General Obligation Bonds!
Series 1998 Road Bonds 4.06% - 5.26% 08/15/98  1998-2018 Varicus
Series 2004 Road Bonds - Refunding 3.00% - 4.00% 12/22/04  2004-2016 Various
Series 2005 Hoad Bonds 3.50% - 5.00% 04/20/05  2005-2024 Various
Series 2006 Road Bonds 3.63% - b.00% 03/07/06  2006-2024 Various
Total General Obligation Bonds
Revenue Bonds:
Lease Revenue Bonds - Series 2000 4.46% - 5.60% 09/11/00  2000-2012 Various
Canyon River - Special Improvement Distriet
Bonds - Series 2001 4.49% - 5.560% 10/02/01  2002-2016 Various
Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2001 2.50% - 4.60% 10/15/01  2001-2011 Various
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - Series 2002 3.00% - 5.50% 02/01/02  2002-2023 Various
Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2007 3.76% 01/03/07  2007-2018 Various
Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2007 3.80% - 5.00% 10/17/07  2007-2023 Various
Tatal Revenue Bonds
Total Governmental Funds
Enterprise Funda:
Revenue Bondas:
Water Quality Revenue Bonds 3.50% 04/12/94 1994-2014 Various
2005A Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds 3.50% - 5.25% 03/17/05  2005-2025 Various
20058 Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds 1.48% 03/17/05  2005-2025 Various
2008 Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds 3.25% - 5.25% 03/13/08  2008-2028 Various



Principal Interest

Retired Expense Payable

Original Balance Year Ended Year Ended In Future

Amount 06/30/08 06/30/08 06/30/08 Years
$ 4,650,000 $ 3,125,000 3 210,600 8 145,490 $ 857,048
$ 3,975,000 3,580,000 325,000 137,019 652,310
$ 5,985,000 8,100,000 320,000 372,783 3,680,391
$ 5,515,000 5,155,000 210,000 217,616 2,092,000
19,960,000 1,065,000 873,408 7,282,649
$ 7,985,000 1,890,000 420,000 112,725 240,830
g 3,680,000 2,675,000 265,000 147,000 635,750
$ 5,345,000 1,705,000 630,000 91,000 125,725
$ 12,175,000 4,265,000 6,045,000 364,641 814,000
$ 3,826,000 3,748,000 30,000 142,072 1,035,491
$ 5,720,000 5,720,000 121,274 2,361,505
20,003,000 7,380,000 978,712 5,213,301
39,963,000 8,455,000 1,852,120 12,495,950
$ 3,500,000 1,505,757 187,000 59,247 218,085
$ 17,390,000 16,265,000 575,000 752,338 2,036,662
$ 2,950,000 2,738,000 132,000 14,393 400,887
$ 5,590,000 5,590,000 5,001,391
26,098,757 894,000 825,978 15,657,025
26,098,757 894,000 825,978 13,657,625
3 66,061,757 5 9,349,000 §F 2,678,098 $ 26,152,975
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City of Orem
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Per
Capita

Fiscal Personal Personal Median Unemployment
Year Population ! Income Income * Age Rate
1999 83,921 $ 1,309,251,621 15,601 23.7 3.00%
2000 84,326 1,385,138,876 16,426 23.9 3.00
2001 84,500 1,446,640,000 17.120 24.3 4,10
2002 83,662 1,492,781,066 17,843 24.8 5.70
2003 86,346 1,6056,776,662 18,597 25.2 5.20
2004 89,326 1,731,405,858 19,383 25.7 4.80
2005 90,374 1,826,006,670 20,205 26.1 4.70
2006 91,649 1,914,914,206 20,894 26.4 3.10
2007 92,212 2,009,483,904 21,792 26.6 2.80
2008 93,080 2,030,645,897 21,814 26.6 3.70

! Population astimates were based upon eensus data and building activity within the City.

2 . . . .
Personal income data was based upon estimates using federal income tax data.
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City of Orem

Other Demographic Statistics

(Unaudited)

Census Population Count

Percent

Year Population Increase Increase
1890 435 - -
1900 692 257 37.14%
1910 1,064 372 34.96
1920 1,664 600 36.06
1930 1,915 251 13.11
1940 2,914 999 34.28
1950 8,338 5,424 65.05
1960 18,394 10,056 54.67
1970 25,760 7,366 28.59
1980 52,399 26,639 50.84
1990 67,561 15,162 22 44
2000 84,324 16,763 19.88

Age Distribution of Population '
Total Male Female

Age Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
0-4 8,501 10.56% 4,549 5.39% 4. 3562 5.16%
5-9 7,762 9.20 3,942 4.67 3,820 4.53
10- 14 7,879 9.34 4,054 4.81 3,825 4.54
15-19 9,157 10.86 4,531 5.37 4,626 5.49
20- 24 10,832 12.85 5,413 6.42 5,417 6.42
25-29 7,530 8.93 4,081 4.82 3,469 4.11
30 - 34 4941 5.86 2,601 2.97 2,440 2.89
35 -39 4,568 5.42 2,263 2.68 2,305 2.73
40 - 44 4,675 5.54 2,262 2.68 2413 2.86
45 - 49 4,270 5.06 2,066 2. 45 2,204 2.61
b - b4 3,496 4.15 1,642 1.85 1,854 2.20
55 - 59 2,594 3.08 1,248 1.48 1,346 1.60
60 - 64 1,861 221 585 1.056 976 1.16
65 - 69 1,572 1.86 712 0.584 860 1.02
70 - 74 1,479 1.75 658 0.78 821 0.97
75-79 1,210 1.43 520 0.62 G690 0.82
80 - 84 830 0.98 321 0.38 509 0.60
85 - 89 525 0.62 183 0.22 342 0.41
90+ 244 0.29 63 0.08 176 0.21
TOTAL 84 326 100.00% 41,879 49.66% 42 445 50.33%

' Source: 2000 Census
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City of Orem

Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

(Unaudited)

Fiseal Year Fiacal Year
2008 1999
Percentage Percentage
Number of Number of
of Total City of Total City

Taxpayer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Utah Valley State College 1,432 1 2.89% 1,426 1 8.73%
Alpine School District 1,318 2 2.66% 930 4 3,42%
Convergys Corporation 600 3 1.21% 1,100 2 3.96%
1J.8. Synthetic Corporation 590 4 1.19%

Timpanogos Regiunal Hospital 542 5 1.09%

City of Orem 541 6 1.09% 477 9 1.72%
Wal-Mart 540 7 1.09%

StoresOnline, Inc. 478 8 0.97%

Mity-Lite, Lnc. 360 9 0.73%

Costeo 305 10 0.62%

Nowvell, Inc. - 1,000 3 3.60%
Geneva Rock Produets e 750 A 2.70%
S08 Temporary Services - 700 6 2.52%
Manpower Temporary Services - 500 7 1.80%
Macy's (ZCMD - 483 8 1.74%
Adeceo Employment Services 300 10 1.08%
Total 6,704 13.54% 7,886 31.27%

Source: Orem City's husiness licensing database and personal communications with certain
governmental entities by Orem City personncl.
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General Government
Public Safety:
Police Protection
Fire Protection
Highways and Public Improvements
Parks and Recreation:
Parks and Recreation
Library
Cemetary
Economic and Physical Development
Water
Water Reclamation
Storm Sewer
Recreation

Street Lighting

Total

City of Orem

Full-Time-Equivalent City Government Employees
by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

1999 2000 2001 2002
133 127 131 136
110 112 117 114
53 a3 63 53
1 0 1 4
25 35 30 31
53 56 54 57
4 & 5 4
3 3 3
22 22 23 23
31 33 31 32
8 8 9 9
34 34 31 35
0 0 1 1
477 490 489 502

Source: City of Orem - Human Resocurce Department

Notes: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per yvear (including vacation
and sick leave). Full-time equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total labor

hours by 2,080.
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Fiseal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
145 129 138 130 119 124
114 127 118 134 137 141
53 53 5 56 54 59
1 1 4 5 2 3
az 32 33 31 34 36
57 58 54 54 50 53
5 4 5 5 5 6
3 2 2 2 1 1
23 23 24 23 24 26
32 30 31 29 29 31
9 10 9 9 8 11
40 47 45 45 49 48
4 2 2 2 1 2
518 516 520 625 513 541
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Jeneral Government:
Building Permits Issued
Public Safety:
Folice Protection:
Physical Arrests
Traffic Citations
Traffic Warnings
Fire Protection:
Emergency Responses
Ambulance Transports
Other Public Safety Services:
Emergency Dispatch Calls
Highways and Public lmprovements:
Asphalt Used - Streets {Tons)
Conerete Used - Sidewalks (Yards)
Parks and Hecreation:
Library - Volumes in Cellection (approx.)
Cemetery - Internments
Economic and Physical Development:
Public Service Organizations Assisted
Housing Behab Loans/Grants Added
Major Project Improvements Completed
Water:
Number of Consumers
Average Daily Cansumption {(MGD)
Water Reclamation:
Number of Service Connections
Average Daily Treated (M{3I1)
Storm Sewer!
Number of Sumps
New Infrastructure (Feet}
Recreation:
Reereation Programs Participants
Solid Waste:
Annual Waste Tonnage
Avg Annuval Waste per Household (Tons)
Street Lighting:
Number of Street Lighte Added

Source: Various city departments

City of Orem
Operating Indicators by Function / Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
1,389 1,223 1,192 1,203 1,396
8117 6,483 9,571 8,254 0479

NIA N/A N/A 11,621 10,807
N/A /A N/A 7,363 10,642
N/A NA N/A 1,568 1,558
2106 1,958 2,066 2,224 2 508
N/A N/A N/A 2,802 4,697
N/A NIA NiA 5,376 5417
NiA N/A N/A 1,008 972
221,000 243,900 254,235 260,000 266,720
229 221 216 2232 255
N/A N/A MN/A 14 13
N/A N/A N/A 7 13
NiA N/A NiA 2 3
19,000 19,668 19,856 19,900 20,142
23.2 24.1 22.5 225 22.0
18,966 18,0966 19,406 19,425 19,511
9.8 9.8 9.8 9.8 9.7
N/A N/A N/A 21 18
NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A 20,800 24,000 23.800 22,800
N/A N/A NrA N/A 29,221
N/A N/A /A N/A 1.69
3 0 1,121 434 0
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Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
1,118 1,083 1,149 1,166 1,242
8,308 8,145 8,495 6,509 6,454
9,634 11,504 11,190 13,937 14,238
9,484 9,464 11,168 10,350 7,406
1,383 1,230 1,169 2,738 2,325
2,548 2,761 3,145 3,026 3.168
4,961 4,935 5,236 5,448 8,260
6,599 4,048 4,500 4,300 4,290

05 1,089 1,100 1,200 1,443
276,497 280,000 284,573 289,742 297,067
247 250 289 200 303

15 14 14 14 13

12 15 8 7 7

4 1 1 o} 1
20,425 20,240 21,228 21,153 21,187
20.6 21.2 235 23.7 45.0
20,017 20,107 20,314 20,616 20,578
8.4 8.4 8.5 8.5 8.8

24 25 22 22 24
6,500 4,000 4,500 6,872 12,144
24,000 24,500 24,700 24,750 26,035
29,883 30,209 27,193 26,586 26,568
1,72 1.72 1.51 1.26 1.45
1,477 233 230 171 149
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General Government:

Vehicles

Public Safety:

Police Protection:
Stations
Vehicles

Fire Protection:
Stations
Vehicles

Highways and Public Improvements!

Streeta (miles)

Traffic Signals

Parks and Recreation:

Parks

Parks Acreage

Playgrounds

Walking/Jogging Trails (milea)

Libraries

Cemeteries

Water:
Water Mains (miles)

Wells

Storage Capacity (thousands of gallans)

Water Reclamation:

Sewer Lines (miles)

Treatment Capacity (MGD)
Storm Sewer:

Storm Sewer Lines {miles)
Recreation:

Fitness Centers

Pools

Baseball / Softball Diamends

Soccer / Football Fields
Street Lighting:

Street Lights

Source: Varicus city departments

City of Orem
Capital Asset Statistics by Function / Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

146 148 141 182 164

1 1 1 1 1

88 88 94 98 104

3 3 3 3 3

28 a8 28 26 25
N/A N/A /A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A NIA
14 14 id 18 18
127 127 131 212 212
14 14 14 17 17
/A N/A N/A N/A 20.5

1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1
308 308 310 310 345
7 7 7 7 7
12,040 12,440 12,440 12,440 12,440
260 260 260 260 272
123 12,3 12.3 12,3 12.3
N/A N/A N/A N/A 64.6

1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 2

12 12 12 18 18

5 B B 13 18
1,075 1,075 2,196 2,630 2,630
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Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
169 177 191 170 176
1 1 1 1 I
105 166 108 111 121
3 3 3 3 3
25 25 23 24 26
232 233 235 238 230
25 25 25 26 26
20 20 20 240 22
277 277 277 287 333
18 18 18 18 18
33.0 33.0 33.0 33.0 356.6
1 1 1 i 1
1 1 1 1 1
345 346 315 34k 345
8 8 3 3 8
12,440 12,440 12,440 22,440 22,440
272 272 272 276 280
12.3 12,3 12.3 12.3 12.3
64.8 64.6 64.6 65.9 68.2
1 1 1 1 1
2 2 2 2 2
18 18 18 18 18
18 18 18 18 18
4,107 4,340 4,570 4,741 4,880
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City of Orem
Water Impact Fees Report '
Last Ten Fiseal Years
(Unaudited)

Water Impact Fees

Impact
Fees

Impact City of Orem Remitted to Unspent
Fiscal Fees Administrative Metro Water Impact
Year Collected Fee of Orem Fees
1999 S 448279 % (49,352) % (398,927) %
2000 364,584 (29,140) {(335,444)
2001 335,145 (18,731) (316,414}
2002 418,708 (47 329) (371,379
2003 632,175 {69,003) (563,172
2004 649,883 (72,677) (577,206)
2005 683,798 71,547) {612,251)
2006 920 602 (104,069 {#25,533)
2007 994 624 {109,408) (885,216)
2008 940,116 {104,501 (835,315)

Notes: The City remits all water impact fees collected (less an administrative fee) to
Metropolitan Water Conservancy District of Orem. The City anticipates this practice
will continue to occur in the future,

! The State of Utah Legislature modified I/tah Code Sections 10-5-129, 10-6-150, 17-
36-37, and 17A-1-4 to require goverments to provide additional reporting for impact
fees collected.
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